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GUNNISON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 
DATE:  Tuesday, August 20, 2013        Page 1 of 1 
PLACE:   Commissioners Meeting Room at Courthouse 


 


 


NOTE:  This agenda is subject to change, including the addition of items up to 24 hours in advance or the deletion of items at any time.  All times are approximate.  The 
County Manager and Assistant County Manager’s reports may include administrative items not listed.  Regular Meetings, Public Hearings, and Special Meetings are recorded 
and ACTION MAY BE TAKEN ON ANY ITEM.   Work Sessions are not recorded and formal action cannot be taken.  For further information, contact the County 
Administration office at 641-0248.  If special accommodations are necessary per ADA, contact 641-0248 or TTY 641-3061 prior to the meeting.  Meeting agendas and 
approved meeting minutes are posted at http://www.gunnisoncounty.org/177/Agendas-Minutes-Portfolios.   


GUNNISON COUNTY BOARD OF EQUALIZATION: 
9:35 am • Call to Order 


• Certification; Affidavit of Assessor to Assessment Roll 
• Minutes Approval: 


1. 7/22/13; Regular Meeting 
2. 7/24/13; Regular Meeting 


• Adjourn 
 
GUNNISON COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 
9:40 am • Call to Order; Agenda Review 


• Minutes Approval: 
1. 7/23/13; Special Meeting 
2. 8/6/13; Regular Meeting 


 
9:45  • Consent Agenda:  These items will not be discussed unless requested by a Commissioner or citizen.  Items removed 


from consent agenda for discussion may be rescheduled later in this meeting, or at a future meeting. 
1. Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement between Delta County, Colorado and 


Gunnison County, Colorado and Hinsdale County, Colorado and Montrose County, Colorado and 
Ouray County, Colorado and San Miguel County, Colorado to Establish a Multicounty Regional 
Emergency Medical and Trauma Advisory Council; 8/5/13 


2. Ratification of Correspondence; Letter of Support; El Pomar Foundation Grant Application; Six Points 
Evaluation and Training, Inc.; $100,000 


3. Out-of-State Travel Request; NBAA Conference; Gunnison-Crested Butte Regional Airport Staff; Las 
Vegas, NV; 10/21/13 - 10/25/13; $1,906 


4. Resolution Authorizing Expenditure of Funds from the Water Resources Protection Fund for Water 
Resource Protection Purposes 


 


9:50 • Scheduling 
 
9:55 • Deputy County Manager’s Reports and Project Updates: 


1. Design Review Committee of Gunnison Valley Animal Welfare League Building and Site Plan 


 
10:10 • Treasurer’s Reports 
 
10:15 • Vouchers and Transfers 
 
10:20 • Extension to Submit Preliminary Plan; 28.07 acres in the NW1/4SW1/4 and SW1/4NW1/4, Section 


3, Township 49 North, Range 1 East, N.M.P.M., a/k/a 43950 Highway 50; Hal Hearne 
 
10:25 • Request for Letter of Support; City of Gunnison’s Parks and Recreation Department; Great 


Outdoors Colorado Grant Application; Update the 1996 Parks and Recreation Master Plan 
 
10:30 • Gunnison/Hinsdale Board of Human Services (see separate agenda) 
 
11:00 • Presentation of the 2012 Gunnison County Financial Audit 
 
11:30 • Unscheduled Citizens:  Limit to 5 minutes per item.  No formal action can be taken at this meeting.   


 • Commissioner Items:  Commissioners will discuss among themselves activities that they have recently participated 
in that they believe other Commissioners and/or members of the public may be interested in hearing about. 


 • Adjourn 
 
Please Note: Packet materials for the above discussions will be available on the Gunnison County website at 


http://www.gunnisoncounty.org/177/Agendas-Minutes-Portfolios no later than 6:00 pm on the Friday 
prior to the meeting.   



http://www.gunnisoncounty.org/177/Agendas-Minutes-Portfolios

http://www.gunnisoncounty.org/177/Agendas-Minutes-Portfolios






Term Begins: Term Ends: Grant Contract #:


Submitter's Email Address:


Finance Review: Not Required


County Attorney Review: Required Not Required


Regular Agenda Time Allotted:


Action Requested:


Parties to the Agreement:


AgendaTitle: 


Summary:


Fiscal Impact:


Submitted by:


Certificate of Insurance Required


Reviewed by: Discharge Date:


Yes           No
Reviewed by: Discharge Date:


County Manager Review:


Discharge Date:


Required


Comments:


Consent Agenda 


AGENDA ITEM or FINAL CONTRACT REVIEW SUBMITTAL FORM 


 Revised April 2013


Comments:


Reviewed by:


Comments:


Worksession


Follow Up Agenda Date:Agenda Date:


KHaase 8/16/2013


Board of County Commissioners' Signature


?


2013 Abstract of Assessment for review by the BOCC at their meeting on Tuesday.  Please note the following:
•The values for statutory exempt property (federal, state, county etc.) have not yet been entered.  This is something that Vicki will work on next week.
•The remaining values have been thoroughly reviewed.  However, if we discover anything further that needs to change we will notify the Board.
•The Abstract Affidavit needs to be signed by Paula as Chairperson of the Board.


Wspicer@gunnisoncounty.org


N/A8/20/2013


B. Lucero for W. Spicer
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 July 22 2013 


GUNNISON COUNTY BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 
MEETING MINUTES 


July 22, 2013 
 


The July 22, 2013 Board of Equalization meeting was held in the Board of County 
Commissioners Meeting Room at the 200 East Virginia, Gunnison Colorado.  Present were: 
 
Paula Swenson, Chairperson    Jonathan Houck, Commissioner   
Phil Chamberland, Commissioner   Bobbie Lucero, Clerk to the Board 
 
County Assessor Kristy McFarland, Deputy Assessor and Senior Appraiser/Analyst George Lickiss 
and others were present and participated as indicated in the text.  
 
NOTICE:  The Petitioner’s and Assessor’s exhibits for each case are located in their 
individual Board of Equalization files. 
 
The valuation time period is July 1, 2010 –June 30, 2012 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  Chairperson Swenson called the July 22, 2013 meeting of the County Board 
of Equalization to order at 8:30 am.  Chairperson Swenson explained the roles, rights and 
responsibilities of the Board and the Petitioner during each hearing where a Petitioner and/or a 
Petitioner’s representative was present, either in person or via telephone.  Appeal notices were 
also provided to each Petitioner.   
 


CBOE #01; Faye L. Mott 
 
Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the packet 
materials.  
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Property owner, Jayleen, was present for the hearing via conference call. 
Jayleen discussed the letter that had been provided on 7/19/2013. She explained that the 
property was not used for grazing for one year due to the draught, but the property is still 
agricultural land. She informed to the board that she made a mistake while filling out the form 
and expressed that she accidentally marked on the form that they do not use the land for 
grazing, because they didn’t last year due to the draught.  
 
Chairperson Swenson explained to the petitioner that the Assessor’s Office cannot use the 
valuations of the adjoining properties, if they haven’t sold. Jayleen explained that they do other 
things for a source of income, they do own cattle and they do farm on this property. The 
petitioner explained that they live roughly 5-10 miles from the property. Jayleen explained that 
she was given the property from Faye Mott, because Faye moved to Paraguay. 
 
The Assessor’s Office confirmed that they already made adjustments to the value, due to lack of 
access and location. Chairperson Swenson explained to the petitioner that the property was not 
being used as agricultural land when the form was filled out.  Moved by Commissioner 
Chamberland, seconded by Commissioner Houck to deny CBOE #01.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 


CBOE #02; The Carolyn J. Summers Family Trust 
 
Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the packet 
materials. The board reviewed the petitioner’s packet materials. 
 
Petitioner’s Case: The petitioner was not present for the discussion. The board discussed that 
property is either on the river or off the river, and there is nothing in between. There was 
discussion that these property owners disputed a few years ago to change that their property is 
off the river.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland, seconded by Commissioner Houck, to 
deny CBOE #02 because it was discussed to be classified off the river a few years back, and it 
is indeed off the river.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


CBOE #06; John Cosentino 
 


Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the packet 
materials. He explained that no integral agricultural use is the main issue with this appeal. The 
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values of the residential and agricultural land is the issue. He referenced House Bill 11-46 (HB-
1146) if a residential structure is not integral to the agriculture operation the Assessor’s Office 
must subtract up to 2 acres and place full market value, not agriculture value. Lickiss provided 
the state statute for the board to review. Lickiss informed the board that the home is vacant 
and cannot be deemed as integral to the operation. Lickiss described the subject property and 
the examples provided in the packet materials. The board and the Assessor’s Office discussed 
the comparables provided in the petitioner’s packet materials. 
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioners, John Cosentino, was present for the hearing. He provided 
additional information at the hearing. He provided an affidavit that the structure is an integral 
part of the operation and it is vacant. He explained that he lives 15 minutes from this property 
and argued that the statues is ambiguous. 
 
Lickiss explained that he spoke with County Deputy Attorney Art Trezise about this property, 
and Trezise advised him that the statute wording says “shall be…” which means the property 
must be occupied. Lickiss explained that since the house is not occupied the land is not integral.  
The petitioner disagreed that the statute is ambiguous, and it does not say he has to reside in 
the property.  
 
The board discussed that the intent of the law is because so many land were being sold and the 
home was not being lived in while the agricultural land was being worked, the idea was that 
unless it was the home or ranch hands living in the property that the property was no longer 
considered integral.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner 
Houck to deny CBOE #06 based off of the facts provided for this appeal.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 


CBOE #07; Glenn Saunders 
 


Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the packet 
materials. Lickiss informed the board that during the reassessment, the value went down 
significantly due to the condition. The board and the Assessor’s Office discussed the 
comparables provided in the petitioner’s packet materials.  
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner, Glenn Saunders, was present for the hearing via conference call. 
He informed that he reviewed all of the sales during the valuation period, and opined that there 
haven’t been enough sales to support increasing his valuation. The board explained the new 
HB-1146.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to 
deny CBOE #07 based off of the facts provided for this appeal.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
BREAK:  The meeting recessed from 9:16 am until 9: 22 am.  
 


CBOE #08; Robert Newman 
 
Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the packet 
materials. He explained that the property is steep and they have already made an adjustment 
to bring the value down. The board and the Assessor’s Office discussed the comparables 
provided in the petitioner’s packet materials.  
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner, Robert Newman, was present for the hearing via conference call. 
He explained to the board that in 2009 he went through the same process on this property, and 
it was agreed up on the value was $29,000. He opined the terrain it is not very steep, and there 
isn’t a five acre flat spot. He reported to the board that there isn’t an opportunity to get 
electricity to the property in a reasonable cost, because it is not on a road or prepared road, it 
is across an easement across from other property. He informed that he can’t get a building 
permit because the cost to improve the road would be $100,000+. He opined that the value in 
2009 is the same value of the property today, and he can’t see how the value has increased 
when the access and terrain are not the same as the comparables.  
 
Swenson explained the adjustment that the Assessor’s Office already made to his property due 
to the steep terrain.  Lickiss explained that the valuation was based off of the last appeal, 
regarding the five acres of flat terrain.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded 
by Commissioner Houck to adjust the value for CBOE #08 to $40,140 based on the flat area is 
one acre vs. five acres.  Motion carried unanimously. 
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CBOE #03; Renee Wiseman 
 
Assessor’s Case:  McFarland described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials. The board and the Assessor’s Office discussed the comparables provided in 
the petitioner’s packet materials. She explained that the properties are affected based on the 
steep slope and availability to utilities. She informed that there is already an adjustment of 5% 
due to the steep slope. She mentioned that the property has an avalanche zone on the property 
and this does not qualify as being in an avalanche zone. It is in a snow slide area, not an 
avalanche zone, based on the Town of Crested Butte standards. 
 
Petitioner’s Case: Petitioner, Todd Wiseman, was present for the hearing via conference call.   
Todd referenced the additional materials that he provided in the packet materials regarding the 
Sales Comparison Method. The board explained that they cannot use the sales price because it 
was outside of the valuation period. The petitioner informed the board that the property was 
listed for sale for $90,000 for four years, and no one bought it. 
 
The board referenced the Time Trend Analysis and that there was no significant decline in the 
sales. The Assessor’s Office explained that this sale would not qualify because it is considered a 
distress sale, because the seller confirmed that this property was sold in a distressed mode and 
sold it for less than what he wanted to sell it for.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and 
seconded by Commissioner Houck to deny CBOE #03 based on the information provided.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 


CBOE #04; Renee Wiseman 
 


Assessor’s Case:  McFarland described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials. She informed the board the property has been adjusted based on it being 
affected by wetland at the bottom of the property. The board and the Assessor’s Office 
discussed the comparables provided in the petitioner’s packet materials.  
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner, Todd Wiseman, was present for the hearing via conference call. 
The board reviewed sales during the valuation period in the property’s area. The petitioner 
explained that the comparable provided in the packet materials do not compare because they 
do not have wetlands on the properties. He mentioned a property that has wet lands on a 
property that sold for $80,000 during the valuation period. Swenson explained that the 
Assessor’s Office uses all of the properties that sold in Economic Area 6 to value his property, 
not just the examples provided in the packet materials.  McFarland informed that she was on 
the property last week and does not have a large area of wet land.  Moved by Commissioner 
Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to deny CBOE #04 based on the 
information provided.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
BREAK:  The meeting recessed from 10:10 am until 10:17 am.  
 


CBOE #05; John Ferrell 
 
Assessor’s Case:  McFarland described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials. The board and the Assessor’s Office discussed the comparables provided in 
the petitioner’s packet materials. 
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner, John, was present for the hearing via conference call. He 
explained that he looked at all the one bedroom units that sold in the time period. He explained 
that he as an unobstructed view of the mountain. He referenced other units that sold up at the 
mountain.  
 
The Assessor’s Office explained that views are not a criteria for valuation in Mountaineer 
Square.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to deny 
CBOE #05 based on the information provided. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 


CBOE #09; Joan Atkinson 
 


Assessor’s Case:  Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials. The board and the Assessor’s Office discussed the comparables provided in 
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the petitioner’s packet materials. Lickiss proposed changing the value to $300 a square foot and 
valuing the property at $1,276,800. 
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner’s Agent, Attorney David Leinsdorf, was present for the hearing. He 
expressed to the board the timing the Assessor’s Office provides their valuation information is 
un-timely and it is a violation of law because they do not provide the specific information they 
use to value the property. Leinsdorf reviewed examples that he had mentioned in his additional 
materials, previously provided in the packet materials. He opined that both were built by the 
same contractor and within the same size, and the subject property should be valued above lot 
28.  
 
Lickiss informed that an Appraiser went out to all of these properties in May of 2013 and 
verified that the construction of all of these properties are very good. Leinsdorf defended that 
he cannot see why the value is 43% higher than the other comparables. He opined that the 
Assessor’s Office is not complying by statute, because they are not notifying the tax payers of 
the change in condition or how the property is valued. There was discussion that there are 
many factors that cannot be shown in the photos regarding the quality of construction.  Moved 
by Chairperson Swenson and seconded by Commissioner Chamberland to adjust the value of 
CBOE #09 to $1,128,000 based on the average of the comparables shown today.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
McFarland informed that Gunnison County Deputy Attorney Art Trezise has confirmed with the 
Department of Property Taxation that they have complied by the statute, and the example 
provided at the hearing is a courtesy, not a requirement, because they use all sales during the 
valuation period.   
 


CBOE #10 and #11; Gerald and Carolyn Revocable Living Trust 
 


Assessor’s Case:  McFarland described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials. She explained that the time adjusted sales price ranges in value from $176.14 
to $230.77 a square foot. There was discussion that the values from floor to floor differ.  
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner’s Agent, Attorney David Leinsdorf, was present for the hearing. He 
provided additional information to the board at the hearing. He informed that he reviewed the 
averages for square footage from year to year, and compared to the 4th floor and 5th floor. He 
opined units should be, at the least, the value of the floor below them, because they are on the 
5th floor.  
 
There was discussion regarding the Time Adjustment. McFarland explained the Mass Appraisal 
Process and how the units are valued. She informed that the Assessor’s Office is audited on the 
Time Trend Analysis and it is very stringent. Lickiss confirmed that there were 33 sales within 
the Grand Lodge during the valuation timeframe. Leinsdorf provided the statute that informs 
that they should not go back farther than 6 months at a time to gather enough sales for the 
valuation, and the Assessor’s Office went back four years, which increased the value 
significantly. McFarland explained that to comply with the audit they had to go back four years. 
Leinsdorf commented that going back into a market where values were higher is not justifiable. 
Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to deny CBOE 
#10 and CBOE #11 based on the information provided. Motion carried unanimously. 
 


CBOE #12 - 22; Verzuh Ranch, Inc. 
 


Assessor’s Case:  McFarland described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials.  
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner’s Agent, Attorney David Leinsdorf, was present for the hearing. He 
explained that there are two adjacent lots that sold during the valuation period. The board 
reviewed these lots. He explained that the interior lot prices have dropped 32% during the 
timeframe. He opined that the lots have been time adjusted enough, and it doesn’t make sense 
to raise exterior lots. He recommends that there are 3 different sizes of lots.  
 
McFarland explained that you cannot pick and choose subdivisions to apply the time 
adjustment, because it would be against the law. She informed that no sales is not an indication 
that the value is not there, and the Assessor’s Office would need a sale in the subdivision to 
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show the value the subject property could sell for. Lickiss explained that Leinsdorf is making his 
case based on 2 sales, and 2 sales does not make a trend. 
 
Leinsdorf expressed to the board that they are not bound by the same laws as the Assessor’s 
Office and they can make a determination if they think that the Assessor’s Office did a valuation 
that is incorrect, even if they followed the laws. 
 
CBOE discussed that there is no indication that once the lots start selling that they need to be 
lowered to the amount requested by Leinsdorf. McFarland confirmed to Leinsdorf the 54% 
increase is based on all of the sales in CB.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland, seconded 
by Commissioner Houck, to deny CBOE #12 - #22 based on the information provided. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 


CBOE #23; David Weekley 
 
Assessor’s Case:  Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials. He explained that the subject property is in excellent condition. He referenced 
the packet materials that show the above quality conditions in this subject property.  
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner’s Agent, Attorney David Leinsdorf, was present for the hearing. He 
agrees that it is in excellent property, but it is not in the top of the line condition. He referenced 
top of the line qualities to properties that this property does not have. He requests that it 
should be considered above average quality, and not excellent quality. He informed lot values in 
Prospect have plummeted. 
 
The board researched other comparable that are in very good condition. There was discussion if 
there are any guidelines to score for condition. The Assessor’s Office explained that the list they 
review to rate a property for condition is exhaustive. McFarland explained that this property has 
unobstructed views, where the other properties have obstructed views.  Moved by 
Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to deny CBOE #23 based on 
the information provided. Motion carried unanimously. 
 


CBOE #24; Sherman Street Holdings, LLC. 
 


Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner’s Agent, Attorney David Leinsdorf, was present for the hearing. He 
recommended denial of CBOE #24 because there are supporting sales that he found justify the 
Assessor’s Office valuation.  Moved by Commissioner Houck and seconded by Commissioner 
Chamberland to deny CBOE #24 based on the petitioner’s agent requesting denial. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 


CBOE #25; Sherman Street Holdings, LLC. 
 
Assessor’s Case:  Lickiss proposed adjusting this subject property to $400,000. 
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner’s Agent, Attorney David Leinsdorf, was present for the hearing. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to adjust the 
subject property value to $400,000, based on the Assessor’s Office recommendation. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
The board discussed making a neighborhood adjustment based on the information provided.  
Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to adjust the 
value of R003151 to $400,000; R003156 to $200,000 and R003183 to $300,030 based on the 
information that rose from the appeal with CBOE #25. Motion carried unanimously. 
 


CBOE #26; David Leinsdorf 
 
Assessor’s Case:  Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials.  
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner, Attorney David Leinsdorf, was present for the hearing. There was 
discussion on the other commercial properties that sold in the valuation period that compare to 
the subject property.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner 
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Houck to adjust the value to $200/square foot for a total value of $160,600 based on the 
condition and the 3rd floor location in the building.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


CBOE #27; David Leinsdorf 
 
Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the packet 
materials.  
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner, Attorney David Leinsdorf, was present for the hearing. He opined 
that comparable #2 should not qualify because it sold for noncommercial purposes. Moved by 
Commissioner Chamberland, seconded by Commissioner Houck to adjust the value of CBOE 
#27 to $704,500 based on the information provided at the hearing and that one of the 
comparable was sold to a non-governmental entity. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
BREAK:  The meeting recessed from 12:11 pm until 2:15 pm.  
 


CBOE #28 and 29; Renbarger Family LLC 
 
Assessor’s Case:  Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials. Lickiss informed the board that he inspected the property on 7/11/2013, and 
upon inspection, he did not find any cattle on the property at the time, nor did he find any sign 
of current or past evidence of cattle use. The Assessor’s Officers also inspected the watering 
hole and salt lick on the property and did not find any evidence of cattle. Lickiss informed the 
board that Brand Inspector, Irby, informed Lickiss he does not have any recollection of 
inspecting cattle on this property. 
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioners, Randy Renbarger and Don Renbarger, and Petitioner’s Agent, 
Fourth Scoufos, was present for the hearing via conference call. There was a discussion 
regarding the salt lick. Lickiss explained that there were no signs of cattle manure around the 
salt lick. The agent mentioned that there were cattle panels on the property. Lickiss did not 
inspect the pin for cattle or horses, he opined he thought they were to be used for hunters to 
hold their horses. The agent commented that the pins could also be used for cattle wranglers to 
hold their horses. There was discussion that the current owner has owned this property since 
1998. Scoufos informed the board the summer of 2011 and 2012 there were cattle on this 
property, and all of the cattle were all wrangled up by fall.  
 
Scoufos explained to the board that the Renbarger Family transports cattle to the property from 
Oklahoma. He explained that the Renbarger Family bought the property to use for cattle 
grazing for a few months, to get them through pasturing season in Oklahoma, and there isn’t a 
schedule or regular routine. McFarland commented that there was no physical evidence of 
cattle on the property when it was inspected. Scoufos confirmed that the Renbarger Family has 
no intention to irrigate or hay on the property. There was discussion that transportation of 
cattle in and out of the state of Colorado, the cattle owners must stop at a port of entry and 
obtain a brand inspection. The Renbarger Family informed the board that they did not stop at 
the port of entry and get a brand inspection while transporting the cattle. Mr. Renbarger 
expressed that he did not know stopping at the port of entry was a requirement, and they 
transported the cattle in gooseneck trailers. Lickiss informed that it is required by the State of 
Colorado to stop at the port of entry when transporting livestock. 
 
The board discussed that this is definitely a ranching family, there isn’t a brand inspection 
provided for transporting the cattle across the state line, there is an affidavit from someone 
stating they have seen cattle on this property yet there is no evidence of cattle on the property 
near the watering hole or salt lick.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by 
Commissioner Houck to re-classify the property as Agricultural Land. Chairperson Swenson 
opined that she will not support this motion, because there is no evidence that there have been 
cattle on this property, and if cattle was transported, they were transported illegally because 
there was not a brand inspection at the state line. Motion carried 2 to 1. 
 


CBOE #30-33; Dena Hildreth 
 


CBOE #30:  Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided 
in the packet materials. The board and the Assessor’s Office discussed the comparables 
provided in the petitioner’s packet materials. 
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Petitioner’s Case: Petitioner’s Agent, John Johnson, and Petitioner, Dena Hildreth, were present 
for the hearing. There was discussion that the Assessor’s Office had to use properties that sold 
in 2008 and 2009, but the owners purchased the property for $2 million, and the seller had 
owned it for 38 years before. The petitioner expressed that there is $45,000 in taxes, which is 
15% of gross revenue for a business that is trying to make it in Gunnison County. The 
petitioner and agent commented that they purchased the property a few months ago for $2.4 
million dollars and it’s already valued at $2.9 million. They informed the board that the previous 
owner didn’t sell it in duress. The board reviewed other properties that sold during the valuation 
period. The Assessor’s Office explained the valuation process and valuation time period. Moved 
by Commissioner Houck and seconded by Commissioner Chamberland, to deny CBOE #30. 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
CBOE #31:  Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided 
in the packet materials.  
 
The Assessor’s Office confirmed that the little pond on the property would not be enough wet 
land area to qualify for the adjustment. The board reviewed other properties that sold during 
the valuation period that are affected by being adjacent to commercial property.  Moved by 
Chairperson Swenson and seconded by Commissioner Chamberland to adjust CBOE #31 to 
$80,000 based on 12 Red Lady Way, which is a property that was affected by its location to a 
commercial property. Adjust the property to the value as affected property that sold lower than 
5%.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CBOE #32 & #33: Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples 
provided in the packet materials.  
 
The CBOE discussed the location of this property and that it is a low density multifamily lot. 
There was discussion that the Assessor’s Office used comparables from Gunnison. The 
Assessor’s Office informed the board that they could have used comparables from Aspen or 
Vail, but chose Gunnison because you have to use comparables in a ski area.  Moved by 
Commissioner Houck and seconded by Commissioner Chamberland to deny CBOE #32 based on 
the information provided. Motion carried unanimously.  Moved by Commissioner Houck and 
seconded by Commissioner Chamberland to deny CBOE #33 based on the petitioner’s agent 
requesting denial. Motion carried unanimously. 
 


CBOE #40; Alan Lauer Trust 
 


Assessor’s Case: McFarland described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials. The board and the Assessor’s Office discussed the comparables provided in 
the petitioner’s packet materials. 
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner was not present for the discussion. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to deny CBOE 
#40 based on the information reviewed. Motion carried unanimously. 
 


CBOE #35; LSC Southwest Colorado LLC 
 


Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the packet 
materials.  
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner, Layne, was present for the hearing via conference call. There was 
discussion on the market approach. Lickiss explained that the comparables are based on a 
multiple regression analysis. He mentioned that the bank appraised his property. The bank said 
the valuation must be wrong or the appraisal must be wrong, because the value dropped to 
$80,000 in 2013.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner 
Houck to deny CBOE #35 based on the information reviewed. Motion carried unanimously. 
 


CBOE #36; John A&M Isabel Gibson Revocable Real Estate Trust Agreement 
 


Assessor’s Case:  Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials.  
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Petitioner’s Case: Petitioner, John Gibson, was present for the hearing. He mentioned that unit 
11 is the same square footage as the subject property, and unit 5 has a better view and is 
bigger house than the subject property. He provided a comparable at the hearing for the 
Assessor’s Office and the board to review. The comparable provided by the petitioner has the 
exact square footage, view, condition, and is in the same complex as the subject property.  He 
mentioned that the comparable he provided actually has better view because it looks at the 
mountain, whereas his unit looks at an office building. This comparable provided by the 
petitioner is within the valuation period. McFarland explained the Mass Appraisal process.  
Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to deny CBOE 
#36 based on the information reviewed. Motion carried unanimously. 
 


CBOE #37; Worldwide Properties LLC 
 


Assessor’s Case:  Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials. He explained based on the discussion of only one acre being integral to adjust 
the property to. The board explained that the law changed, and now the land under the 
residence is included in the valuation. Lickiss recommended the following value of this subject 
property: 
 


1 acre of land = $27,180 
Cabin = $5,210 
Ag Land = $1,050 
Total Valuation of $33,440 


 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner, Denver Price, was present for the hearing. There was discussion 
that there is an error on the Assessor’s Office Notice of Determination sheet. The board 
discussed that you begin at a baseline of $25,000 then add additional values. Petitioner 
commented that he was concerned that the value for his 300 square foot shack was $29,130.  
Lease agreement needs to be renewed every two years if it expires.  Moved by Commissioner 
Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to adjust the value of CBOE #37 to 
$33,440.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


CBOE #38; David Esposito 
 


Assessor’s Case:  Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials. The board and the Assessor’s Office discussed the comparables provided in 
the petitioner’s packet materials. 
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner was not present for the hearing. Chairperson Swenson left a 
message, informing the petitioner that we are reviewing his appeal.  Moved by Commissioner 
Chamberland, seconded by Commissioner Houck, to adjust value to $2,238,090 because the 
condition changed from excellent to good. Motion carried unanimously. 
 


CBOE #39; Jennifer Lynn French Revocable Trust 
 


Assessor’s Case:  Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials. He explained that the subject property is located in the area commonly known 
as Gunnison Highlands North. 
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner, Ken French, was present for the discussion via conference call. 
Ken reviewed the comparable provided and disagreed with them because some of the 
comparable have utilities, live creeks, year round access, etc.  The board discussed that the 
quality and condition of properties affects the value. There was discussion that one of the 
comparables sold within the valuation period that is in his area.  Moved by Commissioner 
Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to deny CBOE #36 based on the 
information reviewed. Motion carried unanimously. 
 


CBOE #41; 1st Net Real Estate Services, Inc. 
 


Assessor’s Case: Lickiss informed the board that the petitioner and the Assessor’s Office have 
agreed upon a stipulated amount of $1,005,000. 
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Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner was not present for the hearing.  Moved by Commissioner 
Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to adjust the value of CBOE #41 to 
$1,005,000 based on the stipulated amount agreed upon.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
ADJOURN:     Moved by Commissioner Swenson, seconded by Commissioner Houck, to 
adjourn the meeting.    Motion passed unanimously.    The July 22, 2013 meeting of the Board 
of Equalization adjourned at 5:00 pm. 
 
 


******** 
 


__________________________________ 
Paula Swenson, Chairperson 


 
__________________________________ 
Phil Chamberland, Commissioner 


 
__________________________________ 
Jonathan Houck, Commissioner 


 
Minutes Prepared By: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Bobbie Lucero, Deputy County Clerk 
 
Attest: 
 
__________________________________ 
Stella Dominguez, County Clerk 
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GUNNISON COUNTY BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 
MEETING MINUTES 


July 24, 2013 
 


The July 24, 2013 Board of Equalization meeting was held in the Board of County 
Commissioners Meeting room. Located at 200 East Virginia Avenue, Gunnison Colorado.  
Present were: 
 
Paula Swenson, Chairperson    Jonathan Houck, Commissioner   
Bobbie Lucero, Clerk to the Board 
 
County Assessor Kristy McFarland, Deputy Assessor and Senior Appraiser/Analyst George Lickiss 
and others were present and participated as indicated in the text.  
 
NOTICE:  The Petitioner’s and Assessor’s exhibits for each case are located in their 
individual Board of Equalization files. 
 
The valuation time period is July 1, 2010 –June 30, 2012 
 
CALL TO ORDER:   Chairperson Swenson called the July 24, 2013 meeting of the County 
Board of Equalization to order at 9:54 am.  Chairperson Swenson explained the roles, rights and 
responsibilities of the Board and the Petitioner during each hearing where a Petitioner and/or a 
Petitioner’s representative was present, either in person or via telephone.  Appeal notices were 
also provided to each Petitioner.   
 


CBOE #34; Robert Weiss 
 
Assessor’s Case:  Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials. He informed the board there was an error on his account, because the barn 
structure was listed twice and the price should adjust to $320,470 after accounting for the 
error. He reported that he used “off the grid” properties to compare to the subject property. 
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner, Robert Weiss, was present for the discussion. He mentioned he 
noticed the error on the Notice of Valuation. There was discussion regarding the examples 
provided. He argued that the value of his property increased 51%. Lickiss explained due to the 
improvement value, this property increased even though the land value may have decreased. 
The board explained to the petitioner agricultural land values have increased. The Assessor’s 
Office explained the various Economic Areas in Gunnison County.  Moved by Commissioner 
Houck and seconded by Chairperson Swenson to adjust CBOE #34 to $320,470 based on the 
adjustment calculated by the Assessor’s Office.  Motion carried. 
 


CBOE #42; Estate of Carl Smith 
 
Assessor’s Case: Lickiss informed the board that there is a stipulated value agreed upon by the 
Assessor’s Office and the petitioner in the amount of $1,690. 
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner was not present for the hearing.  Moved by Commissioner Houck, 
seconded by Chairperson Swenson to adjust CBOE #42 to the stipulated amount of $1,690. 
Motion carried. 
 


CBOE #43; Tincup Investments LLC 
 
Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the packet 
materials. The board and the Assessor’s Office reviewed the information provided in the 
petitioner’s packet materials. Lickiss informed the board the property was found to have 
structural damage and he recommend adjusting the value to $109,180 after accounting for the 
error. They used “off the grid” properties to compare. 
 
Petitioner’s Case:  The petitioner was not present for the hearing.  Moved by Commissioner 
Houck and seconded by Chairperson Swenson to adjust CBOE #43 to $109,180 based on the 
adjustment calculated by the Assessor’s Office.  Motion carried. 
 


CBOE #51; Wallace McNeill 
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Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner was not present for the hearing. The board reviewed the stipulated 
agreement.  Moved by Commissioner Houck and seconded by Commissioner Swenson, to 
adjust CBOE #51 to the stipulated amount of $465,280 for the Commercial, $369,820 for the 
Residential, for a total value of $835,100. Motion carried. 
 


CBOE #57; Elaine Millman  
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner was not present for the hearing. The board reviewed the stipulated 
agreement.  Moved by Commissioner Houck and seconded by Commissioner Swenson to 
adjust CBOE #57 to the stipulated amount of $810,000. Motion carried. 


 
CBOE #58 – 63; G M Worsley Inc. 


 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner was not present for the hearing. The board reviewed the stipulated 
agreement. Moved by Commissioner Houck and seconded by Chairperson Swenson to adjust 
the values of CBOE #58 – #63 to the stipulated amounts of $99,070.  Motion carried. 
 


CBOE #64 - 88; Benson Sotheby’s 
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner was not present for the hearing. The board reviewed the stipulated 
agreement. Moved by Commissioner Houck and seconded by Chairperson Swenson to adjust 
values of CBOE #64 - #88 to the stipulated amounts of $25,950. Motion carried. 
 


CBOE #96 and 97; Carletta Taylor 
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner was not present for the hearing. Moved by Commissioner Houck 
and seconded by Commissioner Swenson to re-classify CBOE #96 and #97 to residential, the 
value of the property remains the same at $17,550.  Motion carried. 
 


CBOE #44; Ingham LLC 
 
Assessor’s Case: McFarland described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials. She explained each type of commercial business carries a different value in 
terms of an adjustment, and the difference between an office and medical office is a 15% 
adjustment. 
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner, John Ingham, was present for the hearing. He mentions that he 
paid too much for the property and the shape of the building is very bad. He informed the 
board the windows are rotting, there is no insulation and the siding is falling off. 
 
McFarland explained that the values are based on sales, they have to use the actual facts of the 
sales to determine the value. She informed to adjust the condition of the property, the 
Assessor’s Office must see the inside of the property, because they must rate the condition of 
the inside and outside of commercial property. The Assessor’s Office recommended the board 
deny the appeal and then the petitioner can file the appeal with the Board of Assessment of 
Appeals (BAA). After the BAA, the Assessor’s Office can do a physical inspection and adjust the 
condition of the property. The value will be recalculated if the condition adjusts. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Houck, seconded by Commissioner Swenson, to deny CBOE #44 
based on the evidence provided that the condition is inconclusive and for the AO to provide a 
physical inspection once appealed through the BAA. Motion carried. 
 


CBOE #45-47; Chaco LLC 
 
Assessor’s Case:  McFarland described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials.  
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner’s Agent, Attorney Jim Starr, was present for the hearing. Starr 
informed the board that he had asked the Assessor’s Office for the documentation that was 
going to be presented at the hearing and all he got was the large list of comparables. He 
referenced the additional information he provided in the packet materials. He opined there is no 
distinction between commercial units on Elk Avenue vs. off Elk Avenue, which is not appropriate 
because the units that face Elk Avenue have access from the main road. He informed the units 
that do not face Elk Avenue look into an alley and all they have a view of is trucks and 
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dumpsters. He pointed out the average square footage is $220/square foot, and was confused 
at how they reached $378/square foot. McFarland informed the only sale of a commercial 
condominium in Crested Butte during the valuation period was the Majestic Class Condos, and it 
also has average condition and average construction quality. When the quality and condition 
changed, the value changed approximately $100/square foot more than what it was. 
 
There was discussion on what the value of the property would be if the three units would 
become one main unit. The board informed Starr the property owner would need to finalize the 
paperwork and plat this year, and then it will be valued during the next valuation period. The 
Assessor’s Office informed that the assessment date is January 1st of each year.  
 
Starr pointed out that the Assessor’s Office already makes a 40% adjustment for units that do 
not have an entrance on Elk Avenue. He inquired why the valuation increased 80% since the 
last valuation, and the Assessor’s Office confirmed that adjustments were made due to zoning. 
Moved by Chairperson Swenson and seconded by Commissioner Houck to adjust: CBOE #45 to 
the amount of $85,800, CBOE#46 to the amount of $65,000, and CBOE #47 to the amount of 
$121,770.  Motion carried. 
 


CBOE #48; Rosaline Francoise Ivy 
 
Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the packet 
materials.  
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner, Allan Ivy, was present for the discussion. The board explained HB-
1146, and legislature passed that two acres of agricultural land that surrounds the home site 
will be classified as residential, unless the person who lives in the house actually performs the 
agricultural work on the property.  Ivy confirmed that when he performs the agricultural work 
he lives in the home, but it is not his primary home. The Assessor’s Office and the board 
reviewed the leases and determined that in 2014 he will be able to classify the property all to 
agricultural.  The board explained to Ivy, next year the property will get reclassified. Ivy 
confirmed that he has proof that he performed all of the irrigating on the land and did all of the 
agricultural work from the cabin. The Assessor’s Office informed fencing and irrigation is not a 
part of agricultural work in the new law, yet bookkeeping, doctoring the animals and preparing 
the animals for sale is. The statute does not say how the land must be harvested, the law just 
clarifies how the land must be valued.  
 
There was discussion that there is an electrical fence around the home, to keep the cattle away 
from the home and the owners don’t even use up to one acre for the residence.  Moved by 
Chairperson Swenson and seconded by Commissioner Houck to adjust value of the residence to 
$27,170 to adjust for the one acre of residence use. The total value will be $72,510.  Motion 
carried. 


CBOE #49; Sarah Jane Earley Voigt 
 
Assessor’s Case: McFarland described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials. McFarland explained to the board a property sold within the timeframe, and 
sold for a higher amount than the valuation of the subject property, and has more difficult 
access than the subject property. The Assessor’s Office explained that the value of the subject 
property is the value for all the lots in this area.  
 
Petitioner’s Case:  The petitioner was not present for the hearing. Bobbie Lucero, Administrative 
Assistant III, provided the petitioner Chairperson Swenson’s cell phone number, and Mr. Earley 
has not called her to discuss his concerns.  Moved by Commissioner Houck and seconded by 
Chairperson Swenson to deny CBOE #49 based on the information reviewed and the 
determination that the value was calculated correctly.  Motion carried. 
 
BREAK:  The meeting recessed from 11:40 am until 1:02 pm. Commissioner Phil Chamberland 
was present for the hearings at this time. 
 


CBOE #50; The Frick Neill H. Revocable Trust 
 
Assessor’s Case: McFarland described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials.  
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Petitioner’s Case: Petitioner was not present for the hearing. The board reviewed the packet 
materials provided by the petitioner.  Moved by Commissioner Houck and seconded by 
Commissioner Swenson to deny CBOE #50 based on the information reviewed and provided 
today. Motion carried. 
 


CBOE #52; Herbert Martin 
 


Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the packet 
materials. The board and the Assessor’s Office discussed the comparables provided in the 
petitioner’s packet materials. Based on the photos provided during the appeal, Lickiss opined 
the valuation amount is correct. He confirmed that the valuation was already adjusted due to 
the condition of the property, and the average was $89/square foot. 
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner, Eric, was present for the hearing via conference call. He informed 
the board that the building is inhabitable since June 30th and has been sitting there for 32 
months with no utilities or working fixtures. He informed the board that he spoke with a 
contractor, and he said it would cost $6,000 to fix some of the work that need to be fixed. He 
informed he used $87/square foot valuation for his property, as the starting point. He 
mentioned that there is a portion of the home that has never been completed and it will take 
over $50,000 in work to make it sellable. 
 
Lickiss informed that he missed that there is a finished basement of 1,800 square feet in one of 
the comparables. There was a discussion regarding the condition of the property and at the 
minimum it would be classifying it close to being salvaged or reaching abandonment.  
 
There was discussion regarding the 20 x 44 area in the Assessor’s database that is classified as 
living area.  Moved by Chairperson Swenson and seconded by Commissioner Chamberland to 
table this discussion until 3:30 pm, so that the Assessor’s Office can recalculate what an 
adjustment would be. Motion Carried unanimously.  
 
The AO recalculated the area above the garage. After the recalculation the value came to 
$372,290.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to 
adjust CBOE #52 to the value of $372,290.  Motion carried. 
 


CBOE #53; Robert Cope 
 
Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the packet 
materials.  
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioners Robert Cope and Kelli Cope were present for the discussion. Kelli 
mentioned she didn’t know that you could go outside the state to pull comparables. She 
expressed that this is a 44% increase in value from what it was valued at two years ago, and 
what they paid for it four years ago. She informed the board that they are not allowed to use 
this as a permanent residence due to the seasonal access. They all reviewed the information 
that was presented by the petitioner. Kelli informed the board that they don’t even have 
cabinets, all they have are shelves.  
 
Lickiss confirmed that this subject property is rated at averaged quality, and the other 
properties are classified as fair quality. Lickiss mentioned that due to the information provided 
he would not disagree with valuing this property at fair quality.  Moved by Commissioner 
Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to adjust the quality rating of this property 
to fair, adjusting the value to $121,390.  Motion carried. 
 


CBOE #54 and 55; Marjorie Rosenfield 
 
Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the packet 
materials. He informed the board all of the lots in Gold Link are valued the same price. 
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner was not present for the discussion. The board reviewed the packet 
materials provided by the petitioner.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by 
Commissioner Houck to deny CBOE #54 and #55 because there is no justification to lower the 
amount to what the petitioner requests.  Motion carried. 
 


CBOE #56; Ryan LLC 
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Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the packet 
materials. He informed that this is the Holiday Inn Express hotel. He recommended valuing the 
property at $100/square foot. He confirmed that he did not receive any income information 
from the property owner. 
 
Petitioner’s Case: Petitioner, Matthew Poling, was present for the discussion. He presented the 
information that he provided for the hearing. The board reviewed the income information that 
the petitioner provided. There was a discussion on the cap rate. The petitioner confirmed that 
the 9.7 is an unloaded cap rate. Lickiss informed that for Gunnison County the cap rate is a little 
high, he recommends it being 9.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by 
Commissioner Houck to adjust value of CBOE #56 to $6,620,000.  Motion carried. 
 


CBOE #89; Lawrence M. Good 
 
Assessor’s Case:  McFarland described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials.  
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner, Karen Good, was present for the hearing via conference call. 
There was discussion that there were so few sales in the valuation period that they had to go 
back in time for sales. The petitioner mentioned that nothing has sold in the area for more than 
$90,000 in quite some time. She mentioned she spoke with Lickiss earlier in the year when their 
request was denied. She informed the board to build in Marble you must have 8 lots.  There 
was discussion regarding other properties in her Economic Are that sold during the valuation 
period.   
 
McFarland informed the board that any adjustment made can affect other lots in this area and 
there are 20 other properties in this section/category in Marble. She informed that the ability to 
build on this property makes it more valuable because it is 12 lots.  Moved by Commissioner 
Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to deny CBOE #89 based on the 
information provided and also the other lots in the area are being assessed and are being 
treated equally.  Motion carried. 
 
BREAK:  The meeting recessed from 2:43 pm until 3:30 pm.  
 


CBOE #90; Alexander Gruzen 
 
Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the packet 
materials. He informed this property sits on the north side of Crested Butte. He commented that 
he agrees the valuation is a little high, but he is not sure how to value the property because 
there has only been one sale. There was discussion that they could use the average cost per 
square footage.  
 
Petitioner’s Case:  The petitioner was not present for the hearing. Moved by Commissioner 
Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to adjust CBOE #90 to the value of 
$1,346,000. Motion carried. 
 


CBOE #91; Better to Ski LLC 
 
Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the packet 
materials. He informed that he did not have true sales during the valuation timeframe, so he 
broke the property into two. One as the office building and one as the residential building. He 
proposed the value adjust to $340/square foot for the commercial and $400/square foot for the 
residential, with a total value of $454,920. Lickiss commented that he thinks the value is correct 
on the residential lot. 
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner’s Agent, Attorney Aaron Huckstep, was present for the hearing. 
Lickiss confirmed that they have already discounted the property 10% because it is not a 
standalone property. Huckstep argues that the subject should be given a bigger discount due to 
condition, location and that this is not a standalone property. The Assessor’s Office informed 
that they do have adjustments for alley access.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and 
seconded by Commissioner Houck to adjust CBOE #91 to the value of $259,940 for the 
residential, and $454,920 for the commercial, the total value will be adjusted to $714,860.  
Motion carried. 
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CBOE #92 and 93; Four Squared LLC 


 
Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the packet 
materials.  
 
Petitioner’s Case: Petitioner’s Agent, Aaron Huckstep, was present for the hearing. There was a 
discussion on why the Assessor’s Office not use 322 Elk Avenue or 226 Elk Avenue as 
comparables. The Assessor’s Office explained that those building are not condominiumized. 
Huckstep informed that the valuation has increased 86% on these two properties. He informed 
five other sales during the valuation period that are listed as commercial, are valued less than 
the two subject properties.  
 
The Assessor’s Office confirmed they are using commercial condo sales as their comparable and 
they do factor in large square footage buildings, and adjust them for large square footage. The 
board explained the process of valuations from sales, and when there are no sales they have to 
find sales where they can to estimate a value on the property.  Moved by Commissioner 
Chamberland and seconded by Chairperson Swenson because of the small array of sales and no 
common property exterior to assess CBOE #92 to the amount of $340/square foot, and 
adjusting the value to $350,540. Lickiss opined that the board just threw the quality of the 
property out the door. Motion carried. There was discussion that there were four other 
condominium appeals earlier this morning.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and 
seconded by Commissioner Swenson to withdraw the previous motion for CBOE #92 and #93. 
Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to deny CBOE 
#92 and #93 because of no justification to change how the outcome came from the current 
valuation from the formula used. Motion carried.  
 
Deputy Assessor Vicki Hildreth was present for the discussion at this time.  
 


CBOE #94; Marble Lot 3 LLC 
 
Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the packet 
materials. He informed the board that he used linear regression on these sales, and he opined 
that the 1.3 acres is valued correctly. 
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner’s Agent, Doug Grawe, was present for the hearing via conference 
call. He opined that the valuations are inaccurate due to the sales used as comparables in Pitkin 
County. He informed the board that the neighboring property, next door, is $10,000 less per 
acre.  There was discussion that the subject property is next to the Marble Institute. Like being 
next to a construction site 6 months out of the year.  
 
Lickiss informed the board that Deputy Assessor Vicki Hildreth went to Pitkin County and 
received an adjustment for on river or off river to apply it to sales in Gunnison County. The 
board informed the petitioner that they are aware of the Marble Institute operation, and it only 
runs for three weeks out of the year. There was discussion about meets and bounds. Assessor’s 
Office recommended adjusting the property value to $40,000/acre.  Moved by Commissioner 
Houck and seconded by Commissioner Chamberland to adjust CBOE #94 to the value of 
$192,760.  Motion carried. 
 


CBOE #95; Carletta Taylor 
 
Assessor’s Case: Lickiss described the subject property and the examples provided in the packet 
materials.  
 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner was not present for the discussion. The board reviewed the packet 
materials provided by the petitioner.  The board reviewed that this property was purchased in 
January 2012 as a tear down building.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded 
by Commissioner Houck to deny CBOE #95 based on the information reviewed.  Motion carried. 
 


CBOE #98 - 103; Poplar 3 LLC 
 
Assessor’s Case: McFarland described the subject property and the examples provided in the 
packet materials. She informed the differences in completion have already been adjusted, along 
with quality, age and garages. 
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Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioners David Klauser, Jerry and Alenka Vobornik were present for the 
hearing. The petitioners inform the board these units were 50% complete as of June 30th 2012. 
McFarland explained that June 30th 2012 is the appraisal date and January 1st of each year is 
the assessment date for the state of the property.  Klauser expressed that they are 60% 
complete as of January 2013, not 75% complete. Lickiss explained that the Division of Property 
Taxation has criteria for calculating completion percentages and there isn’t an in-between state 
of completion from 50 -75%.  There was discussion that the plat was completed October.  
Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to deny CBOE 
#98-103. Motion carried.  
 
ADJOURN:     Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck 
to adjourn the meeting.    Motion passed unanimously.    The July 24, 2013 meeting of the 
Board of Equalization adjourned at 5:36 pm. 
 
 


******** 
 


__________________________________ 
Hap Channell, Chairperson 


 
__________________________________ 
Paula Swenson, Vice-Chairperson 


 
__________________________________ 
Phil Chamberland, Commissioner 


 
Minutes Prepared By: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Bobbie Lucero, Deputy County Clerk 
 
Attest: 
 
__________________________________ 
Stella Dominguez, County Clerk 
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GUNNISON COUNTY BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 
MEETING MINUTES 


July 30, 2013 
 


The July 30, 2013 Board of Equalization meeting was held in the Board of County 
Commissioners Meeting Room at the 200 East Virginia, Gunnison Colorado.  Present were: 
 
Paula Swenson, Chairperson    Jonathan Houck, Commissioner   
Phil Chamberland, Commissioner   Bobbie Lucero, Clerk to the Board 
 
County Assessor Kristy McFarland, Deputy Assessor and Senior Appraiser/Analyst George Lickiss 
and others were present and participated as indicated in the text.  
 
NOTICE:  The Petitioner’s and Assessor’s exhibits for each case are located in their 
individual Board of Equalization files. 
 
The valuation time period is July 1, 2010 –June 30, 2012 
 
CALL TO ORDER:      Chairperson Swenson called the July 30, 2013 meeting of the County 
Board of Equalization to order at 9:01 am.  Chairperson Swenson explained the roles, rights and 
responsibilities of the Board and the Petitioner during each hearing where a Petitioner and/or a 
Petitioner’s representative was present, either in person or via telephone.  Appeal notices were 
also provided to each Petitioner.   


 
CBOE #28 and 29; Renbarger Family LLC 


 
Petitioner’s Case:  Petitioner was not present for the hearing. 
 
This hearing was called to be re-opened by the Assessor’s Office. The board discussed that they 
can re-open the hearing because the decision has not been sent, and the Assessor’s Office 
reported that they had new information that came forth, and the board agreed to re-open the 
hearing for CBOE #28 & #29. 
 
Assessor’s Case:  Lickiss reported that he spoke with State Veterinarian Dr. Carl Heckendorf and 
he confirmed, to bring cattle in and out of the state of Colorado (CO), Colorado revised State 
Statute 35-50-112 requires a Certificate of Veterinary Inspection (CVI). He informed the board 
that he researched with the State of Oklahoma (OK), and they have the same requirement 
when transporting cattle in and out of the state. He provided the documentation that shows the 
same requirements for transporting cattle in and out of OK. The State of CO has their 
information in a database, which Dr. Heckendorf researched and found no records of the 
Renabrger Family transporting cattle in and out of CO. Lickiss informed that are criminal 
penalties for doing this, which is a fine of $500 - $2,000 per incident , imprisonment/ jail for up 
to 90 days, or both. Lickiss explained that there is no record of the Renbarger’s transporting 
cattle in and out of CO. He reported that since the CVI is basically nationwide requirements, the 
Renbarger Family would know if they needed documentation to transport cattle across state 
lines. He also reported that the neighboring property owner confirmed they have never seen 
cattle on the property. The only time they have seen cattle on the property is when their cattle 
have crossed the fence. Lickiss informed that he spoke with the neighbors, Sanderson, they 
have not seen cattle on the property. There has been a cut fence on the property that has not 
been repaired for years. Lickiss observed that the fence has still not been repaired by the 
property owner.  
 
Deputy County Attorney Art Trezise joined the conversation. He expressed concern that the 
Renbarger’s mentioned that they had cattle on the property and that if so, they were not legally 
there. He advised that it might be their responsibility to report illegal/criminal activity when it 
becomes known.  The confirmed that the board has authority to re-open he hearing because a 
final notice does not have to be provided until 8/5. He informed the board that notice was given 
as due process to ensure the agent and Renbarger Family was aware the hearing was going to 
be re-opened.  
 
The board discussed that the property owners said that they used it for agriculture, there is no 
evidence that it is being used for agriculture. Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and 
seconded by Commissioner Houck to resend the motion previously made for CBOE #28 and 
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#29 on July 22nd. Motion carried unanimously.  Moved by Commissioner Houck and seconded 
by Chairperson Swenson to deny CBOE #28 and #29. Motion carried unanimously. 
 


CBOE #44; Ingham LLC 
 
Lickiss informed that he performed a physical. They had the property condition at average, after 
the physical it is determined that the property is below average. (Zinc building.) 
 
Lickiss informed the board that he performed a physical inspection on CBOE #44. He informed 
the board that the condition is below average and recommends changing them due to the 
below average condition.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by 
Commissioner Houck to resend the denial of CBOE #44 due to evidence brought forth today. 
Motion carried unanimously.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by 
Commissioner Houck to adjust CBOE #44 to the value of $156,470 due to the building condition 
not being average. Motion carried unanimously.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and 
seconded by Commissioner Houck to adjust the value of R003584 to the amount of $174,580 
due to the building condition. Motion carried unanimously. Moved by Commissioner 
Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to adjust the value of R003586 to the 
amount of $179,770 due to the building condition. Motion carried unanimously.  Moved by 
Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to adjust the value of 
R003587 to the amount of $231,890 due to the building condition. Motion carried unanimously.  
Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to adjust the 
value of R003588 to the amount of $125,000 due to the building condition. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 


Natalie Yadon Living Trust 
 
The Assessor’s Office reported to the board the Natalie Yadon Living Trust in Pitkin, when they 
inspected the property in the past they would find a “For Rent” sign on the property. This year 
an Assessor’s Office Appraiser went back to the property and observed that the property owner 
is still renting the property after the property owners said that they will not be renting it out. 
After inspection and seeing confirming the owners are still renting out the property, the 
Assessor’s Office recommends reclassifying the property back to commercial.  Moved by 
Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to change the value of 
R003796 to the amount of $12,760 due to the commercial use of the storage area. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
ADJOURN:     Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck 
to adjourn the meeting.    Motion passed unanimously.    The July 30, 2013 meeting of the 
Board of Equalization adjourned at 9:22 am. 
 
 


******** 
 


__________________________________ 
Paula Swenson, Chairperson 


 
__________________________________ 
Phil Chamberland, Commissioner 


 
__________________________________ 
Jonathan Houck, Commissioner 


 
Minutes Prepared By: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Bobbie Lucero, Deputy County Clerk 
 
Attest: 
 
__________________________________ 
Stella Dominguez, County Clerk 
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GUNNISON COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 


SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
July 23, 2013 


 
The July 23, 2013 meeting was held in the Commissioners’ boardroom in the Courthouse located at 200 E. 


Virginia, Gunnison, Colorado.  Present were: 
 


Paula Swenson, Chairperson     Matthew Birnie, County Manager 


Phil Chamberland, Vice-Chairperson    Katherine Haase, Clerk to the Board  
Jonathan Houck, Commissioner    Others Present as Listed in Text  


        
 


CALL TO ORDER:  Chairperson Swenson called the meeting to order at 1:00 pm. 


 
CONSENT AGENDA:  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland, seconded by Commissioner Houck to 


approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  Motion carried unanimously.   
1. Agreement between Gunnison County HHS and Region 10 League for Economic Assistance & 


Planning, Inc., Region 10 Area Agency on Aging; 7/1/13 thru 6/30/14 


2. Acknowledgment of County Manager Signature; Acceptance of Proposal; Buckhorn Geotech; 
Geotechnical Services 


3. Professional Services Agreement; Cindy Chamberland; Provide Services to the Office of Juvenile 
Services Regarding Assessment, Service Planning, Case Management and Clinical Services to 


Promote Health and Wellness to Individuals and Families Referred from Gunnison County Family 
Advocacy and Support Team through the Office of Juvenile Services; 7/23/13 thru 6/30/14 


4. Provider Agreement; Gunnison/Hinsdale Youth Services, Inc.; Provide Professional Services 


Regarding Mentoring to Individuals and Families Referred from Gunnison County Department of 
Health and Human Services and Gunnison County Juvenile Services; 6/1/13 thru 5/31/14; $11,189 


5. 2013 Community Foundation Grant Contract; Gunnison County Substance Abuse Prevention 
Project; Updated Prevention Curriculum for Middle School Students; 7/1/13 thru 4/30/14; $1,900 


6. 2013 Community Foundation Grant Contract; Multicultural Resource Office; General Operating 


Support; 7/1/13 thru 4/30/14; $2,500 
7. Deleted:  Second Amendment to Ground Lease Agreement; B.A.M.P., LLC; Lot 3B, Gold Basin 


Industrial Park; 4/1/13 
8. Deleted:  First Amendment to Ground Lease Agreement; B.A.M.P., LLC; Lot 5, Gold Basin Industrial 


Park; 4/1/13 
9. Deleted:  First Amendment to Ground Lease Agreement; B.A.M.P., LLC; Lot 6, Gold Basin Industrial 


Park; 4/1/13 


10. Memorandum of Understanding between the Bureau of Land Management Uncompahgre Field 
Office and Gunnison County; Cooperating Agency Status 


11. Ratification of Signature; Conservation Agreement for the Gunnison Sage-grouse; US Fish and 
Wildlife Service, States of Colorado and Utah, the Boards of County Commissioners of Gunnison, 


Saguache, Dolores, Montezuma, Delta, Montrose, Hinsdale, Mesa, San Miguel and Ouray Counties, 


and San Juan County, Utah; Establish a Culture of Cooperation, Collaboration and Partnership that 
Foster Gunnison Sage-grouse so that the Species is Stable and Growing, Healthy and Likely to 


Persist in the Long Term  
12. Small Community Air Service Development Program Grant Application; Support Summer-Season 


Air Service from Gunnison to Markets in Texas; $350,000 


13. Ratification of Correspondence; Support for Daniel Michael D’Aquila, Jr. Nomination to the US Air 
Force Academy or the US Naval Academy 


14. 2013 Community Grant Cycle Grant Contract; Community Foundation of the Gunnison Valley; 
Gunnison County Juvenile Services; 7/1/13 thru 4/30/13; $2,000 


15. 2012-2015 Community Services Block Grant Allocation Amendment; $24,791 
16. Funding Proposal; Colorado Department of Human Services; Gunnison Hinsdale Early Childhood 


Council Funding; $25,000 


17. Coalition Master Prescription Benefit Services Agreement; CaremarkPCS Health, LLC and 
WisconsinRx Cooperative, dba WisconsinRX and dba National CooperativeRx; Prescription 


Medication Discounts; 1/1/14 thru 12/31/16 
18. Purchase of Service Contract, County, Colorado; Discover Goodwill of Southern and Western 


Colorado; Low-Income Energy Assistance Program (LEAP) Administration; 10/1/13 thru 9/30/14 


 
VOUCHERS AND TRANSFERS APPROVAL:  Finance Director Linda Nienhueser presented the voucher 


approval report dated July 23, 2013 and the cash transfer authorization dated June 2013 for discussion 
and approval.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland, seconded by Commissioner Houck to approve the 


vouchers in the amount of $2,783,233.89.  Motion carried unanimously.  Moved by Commissioner 
Chamberland, seconded by Commissioner Houck to approve the cash transfers in the amount of 


$3,284,729.09.  Motion carried unanimously.  


 
TREASURER’S MONTHLY REPORT:  County Treasurer Melody Marks presented the June 2013 


Treasurer’s report; an investment report dated June 30, 2013; a quarterly interest report for April through 
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June 2013; and a semi-annual financial statement for January 1, 2013 through June 30, 2013 for discussion 


and acceptance.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland, seconded by Commissioner Houck to accept the 
Treasurer’s report.  Motion carried unanimously.  


 
RESOLUTION; REPEALING RESOLUTION NO: 2013-13, A RESOLUTION IMPLEMENTING STAGE 


1 FIRE RESTRICTIONS:  County Attorney David Baumgarten, Emergency Manager Scott Morrill, 


Undersheriff Randy Barnes and Fire Marshall Dennis Spritzer were present for discussion.   
 


Fire Marshall Spritzer informed the Board that all related indicators suggested that it was safe to lift the 
restrictions.  He noted that the Bureau of Land Management and the Forest Service were similarly lifting 


the restrictions on their lands.  Undersheriff Barnes and Emergency Manager Morrill agreed with his 
assessment.  Since the implementation of the fire restrictions, there have been four or five lightning-caused 


fire starts, and there have not been any human-started fires.  Moved by Commissioner Houck, seconded 


by Commissioner Chamberland to adopt Resolution #2013-18, a Resolution Repealing Resolution No: 2013-
13, a Resolution Implementing Stage 1 Fire Restrictions.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
ADJOURN:  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland, seconded by Commissioner Houck to adjourn the 


meeting.  Motion carried unanimously.  The meeting adjourned at 1:11 pm. 


 
 


 
__________________________________ 


Paula Swenson, Chairperson 
 


 


__________________________________ 
Phil Chamberland, Vice-Chairperson 


 
 


__________________________________ 


Jonathan Houck, Commissioner 
 


Minutes Prepared By: 
 


 


__________________________________ 
Katherine Haase, Deputy County Clerk 


 
Attest: 


 
 


__________________________________ 


Stella Dominguez, County Clerk 
 


 
GUNNISON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS TEXT INCLUSION INTO MINUTES 


 


BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF GUNNISON, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO.  2013-18 


 
A RESOLUTION REPEALING RESOLUTION NO: 2013-13, A RESOLUTION IMPLEMENTING STAGE 1 FIRE 


RESTRICTIONS 
 


WHEREAS, on June 18, 2013, as a result of increased danger of wildfires in unincorporated Gunnison 


County,  the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Gunnison, Colorado (hereinafter the “Board”) 
passed Resolution No: 2013-13, “A Resolution Implementing Stage One Fire Restrictions” and  


WHEREAS, as a result of consistent rainfall, the danger of wildfires has since been significantly reduced 
in Gunnison County; and  


WHEREAS, staff has advised the Board that it would be safe to repeal Stage One Fire Restrictions 


identified in Resolution No: 2013-13 and the Board wishes to repeal the Stage One Fire Restrictions in 
unincorporated Gunnison County effective July 23, 2013 upon execution by the Board.  


NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Gunnison, 
Colorado, that Resolution No: 2013-13, “A Resolution Implementing Stage One Fire Restrictions”, shall be 


and hereby is repealed effective July 23, 2013 upon execution by the Board.  
INTRODUCED by Commissioner Houck, seconded by Commissioner Chamberland, and adopted this 


23rd day of July, 2013 


      BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
      OF THE COUNTY OF GUNNISON, COLORADO 


Chamberland – yes; Houck – yes; Swenson – yes. 
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 August 06 13 


GUNNISON COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


August 06, 2013 
 
The August 06, 2013 meeting was held in the Commissioners’ boardroom in the Courthouse located at 200 
E. Virginia, Gunnison, Colorado.  Present were: 
 
Paula Swenson, Chairperson    Matthew Birnie, County Manager 
Phil Chamberland, Vice-Chairperson    Bobbie Lucero, Deputy Clerk to the Board  
Jonathan Houck, Commissioner    
Others Present as Listed in Text   
 
  
GUNNISON COUNTY BOARD OF EQUALIZATION: 
CALL TO ORDER: Chairperson Swenson called the Gunnison County Board of Equalization meeting to 
order at 11:33 am. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to approve the July 08, 2013 
CBOE minutes as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ADJOURN: Moved by Commissioner Houck and seconded by Commissioner Chamberland to adjourn the 
August 06, 2013 Board of Equalization meeting. Motion carried unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 
11:33 am. 
 
GUNNISON COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Chairperson Swenson called the Gunnison County Board of County Commissioners 
meeting to order at 11:33 am. 
 
AGENDA REVIEW:  There were no changes to the agenda. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to 
approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
1. Colorado Division of Criminal Justice; DCJ Form 4-B, Change in Signing Authority; Gunnison County 


Substance Abuse Prevention Project; 1/7/13 
2. Acknowledgment of County Manager Signature; Colorado Department of Public Health and 


Environment; Additional Funding for Amendment 35 Immunizations; Purchase Order #OE FHA 
EPI13000(070); 7/1/13 thru 12/31/13; $5,264 


3. Application for Gunnison Sage Grouse Conservation Trust Funds; Raven Study at the Gunnison County 
Landfill; Dr. Patrick Magee; $4,500 


4. Memorandum of Understanding; Western Local Workforce Investment Board and the Western Chief 
Local Elected Official Representing the Boards of County Commissioners of Delta, Gunnison, Hinsdale, 
Montrose, Ouray and San Miguel Counties, and the State of Colorado, Acting by and through the 
Department of Labor and Employment, for the Benefit of the Colorado Rural Workforce Consortium, 
Division of Employment and Training, 633 17th Street, 12th Floor, Denver, Colorado 80202; Term 
6/30/2018 


5. Quit Claim Deed and Statement of Authority; Gunnison Heights Subdivision Association; Approximately 
0.191 Acres Identified as the "Common Area" on the Plat Titled "Plat of Gunnison Heights Subdivision 
W1/2NE1/4 Sec 3, T49N, R1W, NMPM, Gunnison County, Colorado" Recorded in the Records of the 
Office of Clerk and Recorder of Gunnison County, Colorado on June 14, 1984, Bearing Reception No: 
381601 


6. Agreement for Genetic Testing Services; DNA Diagnostics Center; Paternity Testing; 7/22/13 thru 
6/30/14 


7. Professional Service Agreement; Monica Bilow; Provide Services to the Office of Juvenile Services 
Regarding Assessment, Service Planning, Case Management and Clinical Services to Promote Health 
and Wellness to Individuals and Families Referred from Gunnison County Family Advocacy and Support 
Team through the Office of Juvenile Services; 8/6/13 thru 6/30/14 


8. Software Sales Order; Peak Performance Imaging Solutions; Laserfiche Document Management 
System; $35,287 


9. Ratification of Submission; State of Colorado – Department of Local Affairs, Energy and Mineral Impact 
Assistance Program Application, Tier II; Gunnison County Courthouse Project; $1,000,000 


10. Memorandum of Understanding; Mesa County Health Department and Gunnison County Health and 
Human Services; Emergency Preparedness Response; $19,003 


11. Fourth Addendum to the Development Improvements Agreement for Skyland Filing III, Phase II; N.D. 
Enterprises, LLC; Extension of Work Completion Date to 11/30/16 


12. Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment, PSD-WIC, FLA, Contract Routing #14-58765; 
Amendment for Task Orders #1; Women and Infant Children Program; 7/11/13 thru 9/30/14; $55,836 


13. 2014-2018 Gunnison County Capital Improvement Plan 
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SCHEDULING: The Upcoming Meetings Schedule was discussed and updated. 
 
UNSCHEDULED CITIZENS:  There were no unscheduled citizens present for the discussion. 
 
BREAK:  The meeting recessed from 11:48 am until 1:03 pm.  
 
COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT:  County Manager Birnie was present for discussion. 


1. Gunnison Valley Animal Welfare League (GVAWL) Shelter Loan Guarantee. County Manager Birnie 
informed the board that this item is on the agenda as a follow up, regarding a meeting with the 
City of Gunnison earlier about creating a shelter with GVAWL. He suggested that if the board wants 
him to proceed with the loan, the board will need to direct him to proceed with the loan for the 
shelter and work out the contractual agreements with GVAWL. Moved by Commissioner 
Chamberland and seconded by Houck to authorize the County Manager to proceed with the loan 
agreement and begin executing on all contractual agreements with GVAWL.  


2. Courthouse Renovation Project. County Manager Birnie informed the board the architect is working 
on the details for the Courthouse Renovation Project. He informed that the architects met with all 
of the different user groups to try and accommodate their needs.  


3. Construction Manager Position. County Manager Birnie informed the board that he has received a 
lot of interest in the Construction Manager position. He reported the position will have a maximum 
set price, and the Construction Manager will agree to work on the project for a set amount. The 
Request for Proposals required the applicants to present a plan for local substitutes and material 
suppliers. He informed that the new building will separate county and state services, depending on 
the requirement and level for security. He also reported that the next public meeting will be at the 
County Fairgrounds on 8/28/2013 at 5:30 pm.   


 
DEPUTY COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORTS AND PROJECT UPDATES:  Deputy County Manager 
Marlene Crosby was present for discussion.  


1. Update from 7/26/13 Meeting in Tin Cup. Deputy County Manager Crosby informed the board she 
needs staff direction and has received calls after the meeting on 7/26 in Tin Cup. Commissioner 
Houck informed that he will take the lead for the Commissioners on this topic. He will contact 
United States Forest Service (USFS) District Manager John Murphy about the USFS portion of this 
topic. Commissioner Houck will meet with Deputy County Manager Crosby, and direct her how to 
move forward.  
 
Deputy County Manager Crosby reported to the board that she received several calls after the 
meeting about the following: 


1. The reduced speed has helped. 
2. The local ATV Traffic Only signs were not a decision of the board and they should be taken 


down. 
3. This is not a matter of blocking ATV use, it is more about controlling speed around the 


trading post and in Tin Cup.  
 


Deputy County Manager Crosby informed the board that since the local ATV Traffic Only signs are 
not legal, and are not supported or approved, she approves asking them to be removed. She 
confirmed that she is okay with leaving the local speed sign of 15 MPH, even though it cannot be 
enforced. The board agreed that the ATV Traffic Only signs need to be removed.  
 
Chairperson Swenson informed that Sheriff Besecker would like to be a part of the discussion. 
There were a few concerns about the trail closures with the USFS. Trail Closures will be a discussion 
next year after the NEPA process on the Pitkin side. Commissioner Houck has a contact list of 
people who would like to be involved in this discussion. He will contact them and set up a meeting.  
 


4. Riverwalk Estates Bank Stabilization. Deputy County Manager Crosby informed the board to refer 
to the map provided. She reported that the riverbank had eroded enough that it is near the 
property. She reported the bank needs to be repaired and also the sand bar, because it collects 
debris. She suggested that Public Works haul some rock from the Taylor Project or the Landfill, 
which can be used to repair the bank, which will last many years. The Riverwalk HOA will need to 
hire a private contractor to place the rock.  
 
Deputy County Manager Crosby informed the board that she will need authorization before she 
moves further with the HOA. She reported she told the HOA that they will need to: 


1. Designate a spot alongside the road that the trucks could drop off the rocks 
2. Take care of permitting  
3. Create an agreement with the County Attorney’s Office 


 
The board agreed to authorize Deputy County Manager Crosby to pursue this topic and come up 
with costs and a recommendation for the board to approve.  
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5. ATV Variance Request; Portion of County Road 76; Quartz Creek Property Owners 
Association. Terry Davis, Rick Coffman & Bruce Councilman were present for the discussion. Deputy 
County Manager Crosby informed the board that the three gentleman are proposing a solution to 
the Quart Creeks property owner’s access of the Town of Pitkin. There was discussion that the 
current speed limit is posted at 35 MPH and says no ATVs allowed.  Deputy County Manager Crosby 
informed the board that they could pass an annual resolution that designate a specific road and 
the usage and traffic allowed. Her concern is it will create a precedent for other areas in Gunnison 
County. 
 
Chamberland commented that he would like to pursue the off road trail for ATV users. 
Commissioner Houck informed he is working with Pelletier to find out who has owners ship and 
discuss other alternatives. The ATV users use to have access from another road, but that road has 
been blocked off. Deputy County Manager Crosby will look into what it will take to create a trail 
next to the road. There was discussion that a meeting with the Pitkin Town Council will need to be 
scheduled once there is a decision. 


 
6. Taylor Road Closures and Traffic Control Zones. William J. Lacy, Jr., Mark Schumacher and Federal 


Highway Administration Administrator Eric Zeller were present for the discussion. Deputy County 
Manager Crosby informed the board that the original plan presented by Mr. Lacy was there wouldn’t 
be traffic stops between Jacks Cabin and the Harmels Resort. She informed that due to the heavy 
rain and night work there are some obstacles, and Mr. Lacy is wondering if they can work on the 
road during the day.  
 
Mr. Lacy informed the board that his crew has been working nights to avoid holding up traffic 
during the day. They are at a point where it is not safe to be doing the work at night because they 
will have to perform cuts and fills. Mr. Lacy confirmed that his crew can work on the shoulder, but 
will only have one lane open.  Mr. Lacy reported that he discussed with Mr. Shumaker his concerns 
about the traffic delays, which will be about 15-20 minutes. Mr. Lacy would like the option to work 
during the day and continue night work. He informed the board that they will not work every day 
during the day time, it will just be when they need to perform work that cannot be done safely at 
night. He will provide Mr. Shumacker the delay schedule so that he can get his rafting vans through 
the construction area in a timely manner. 
 
Mr. Shumaker opined that the Jacks Cabin cut off is in the worse shape than it has ever been. He 
commented that the road was promised to be kept in great shape. He opined that there is a long 
list of promises the County made that have not happened. He informed the board that there is still 
rafting after August 15th, but the volume of rafters dramatically decreases.  
 
Mr. Zeller advised the board that if they allow day work, they will avoid delaying the project into 
colder weather, and the possibility of delaying it until next spring.  Moved by Commissioner 
Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to approve the road closures on the Taylor 
Park Project as presented today. Motion carried unanimously. 


 
7. Region 10 Transportation Planning Meeting Update. Deputy County Manager Crosby informed the 


board that the first round of the meeting was prioritizing funding for repairing roads.  She reported 
that Highway 50, the Little Blue Canyon, is the number one priority for repair.  
 


8. County Road #25.  Deputy County Manager Crosby informed the board that there are two cutoffs 
between Highway 149 and Highway 50. One cutoff is Country Road (CR) 26 (the Lake City Bridge 
Cutoff) and the other is CR 25 (the Red Bridge Cutoff). She informed the board that the two roads 
get less than 100 cars a day. She informed that Public Works maintains CR 25, and majority of the 
maintenance is from Highway 50 up to the Ute Mountain Tribe property, due to wash boards in 
the canyon. She reported that Public Works applies magnesium chloride and blades CR 25 due to 
maintenance and curve issues, and the steep grade towards the water.  
 
She reported she cannot afford to haul gravel from Gunnison to this location. It would have to be 
hauled from Hinsdale County.  Hinsdale County doesn’t have any suitable areas for gravel. She 
reported that they need 6 inches of gravel across the middle of the road. She reported that because 
the road is in such bad shape, she suggested drivers use the Lake City cutoff or drive to Highway 
149 on the road with magnesium chloride and go around. She will continue to look for a source of 
gravel. 


 
9. Gunnison Heights Subdivision Water.  Deputy County Manager Crosby informed the board that 


while serving water to the Antelope Hills Subdivision they went into a few property owner’s wells. 
She reported that while speaking with the property owners, she mentioned Gunnison County will 
provide the meter. There was a miscommunication of the interpretation of what “providing a meter” 
would be. She recommended that the board allow her to waive the charge on those meters because 
she was not clear on the discussion with the property owners.  Moved by Commissioner 
Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck waive the meter fee to the Gunnison Heights 
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Subdivision, based on the information represented today. The board agreed to treat the other two 
lots in Gunnison Heights equally. Motion carried unanimously. 


 
RESOLUTION; ADJUSTING GROUND RENT FOR USE OF PREMISES AT THE GOLD BASIN 
INDUSTRIAL PARK:  Deputy County Manager Marlene Crosby and Assistant Finance Director Ben 
Cowan were present for the discussion. Assistant Finance Director Cowan informed the board that these 
leases were negotiated and created individually as lot were created, and for some various reasons some 
lots have been subdivided. He reported that some leases require the Finance Department to bill them 
annually, yet they have been allowing them to pay monthly. Assistant Finance Director Cowan explained 
it will be easier to control the billing by resolution and release the rate when the CPI adjusts every April. 
Assistant Finance Director Cowan explained the differential will be a loss to the County of $2,200. Deputy 
County Manager Crosby confirmed that the lease holders all agree to this proposal. Moved by 
Commissioner Houck and seconded by Commissioner Chamberland to pass Resolution 2013-19: A 
Resolution Adjusting Ground Rent for Use of Premises at the Gold Basin Industrial Park. Motion carried 
unanimously.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to approve 
the Second Amendment to Ground Lease Agreement for Lot 3B, Gold Basin Industrial Park; the First 
Amendment to Ground Lease Agreement for Lot 5, Gold Basin Industrial Park, and the First Amendment 
to Ground Lease Agreement for Lot 6, Gold Basin Industrial Park. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSERVATION EASEMENT AMENDMENT CONCURRENCE; VIKING VALLEY; RAZOR CREEK 
RANCH, LLC; GREG PETERSON:  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner 
Houck to send a support letter concurring the amendment of the conservation easement for the Viking 
Valley Razor Creek Ranch Easement. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
2013 COLORADO COUNTIES, INC. (CCI) LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE MEMBER APPOINTMENT; 
RSVP FOR LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING OCTOBER 4, 2013:  Moved by Commissioner 
Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to make Chairperson Paula Swenson the CCI 
representative. 
 
REQUESTS FOR LETTERS OF SUPPORT:  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by 
Commissioner Houck to approve a letter of support to the Great Outdoors Colorado Grant Application for 
the Little Cimarron Farm; and also approve a letter of support for the Gunnison Arts Center application to 
El Pomar Foundation. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
LOT CLUSTER APPLICATION; LOTS S-15 AND S-16, LARKSPUR SUBDIVISION; ROBERT AND 
EMILY PANNIER:  Community Development Director Russ Forrest and Community Development Planner 
Cathie Pagano were present for the discussion. Community Development Planner Pagano informed the 
board that the applicant purchased the lots out of foreclosure and now they would like to cluster the lots. 
She reported that one of the requirements for the property owner to purchase the lots out of foreclosure 
was he had to purchase both lots.  Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner 
Houck to approve the lot cluster for Larkspur Lots S-15 and S-16. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
FOSSIL RIDGE SUBDIVISION EXEMPTION:  Attorney Jim Starr, Gunnison County Paralegal Rachel 
Magruder and County Attorney David Baumgarten were present for the discussion. Attorney Starr 
provided a map for the BOCC to review. Attorney Starr explained that they are subdividing the cabin 
piece out and requesting the subdivision exemption on the 15 acre parcel; and the rest of the property 
will be exchanged to the USFS. There was discussion on the subdivision of the property. Gunnison Valley 
Housing Foundation Members Ellen Harriman and Butch Clarke were present for the discussion. Attorney 
Starr explained that if the board adopts the resolution they will ask the board to execute an upcoming 
agreement creating restrictive covenants on the use of the parcel.  Moved by Commissioner 
Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to adopt Resolution 2013-20: A Resolution Granting 
An Exemption For A Division Of Land From The Definition Of The Terms “Subdivision” And “Subdivided 
Land” For A Parcel Of Land Located Within Sections 2, 3, 4, 10 And 11, Township 50 North, Range 2 
East, N.M.P.M., County Of Gunnison, State Of Colorado; and authorize commissioner’s signatures on the 
plat. Motion carried unanimously. County Attorney Baumgarten and all the other attendees in the room 
thanked Butch and Judy Clarke for their generosity. 
 
BREAK:  The meeting recessed from 2:07 pm until 2:10 pm.  
 
ADOPTION, ORDER TO PUBLISH AND SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE PROHIBITING THE 
OPERATION OF MARIJUANA CULTIVATION FACILITIES, MARIJUANA PRODUCT 
MANUFACTURING FACILITIES, MARIJUANA TESTING FACILITIES OR RETAIL MARIJUANA 
STORES WITHIN THE UNINCORPORATED BOUNDARIES OF GUNNISON COUNTY, STATE OF 
COLORADO:  County Attorney David Baumgarten was present for the discussion. Chairperson Swenson 
informed that the first reading was read and adopted on 6/18/2013. County Attorney Baumgarten informed 
that Amendment 64 can be divided into many different siloes, and they are not discussing possession or 
use of individuals, they are discussing the opportunity for local government to regulate grow operations, 
product manufacturing facilities, testing facilities and retails stores. He explained if the County choose not 
to act, all four types of these facilities would be allowed in Gunnison and would be regulated by the State. 
He explained if Gunnison County chooses to act, they can approve or prohibit these facilities and they can 
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regulate these four types of facilities; and in the future possibly change your mind to approve or deny these 
facilities. He informed that the County is choosing to not be silent.  He expressed that he County can choose 
to prohibit now, and in the future decide to allow certain facilities. He informed if the county does not act, 
then these facilities are allowed and will be regulated by the state. Chairperson Swenson clarified if they 
choose to act and create our own regulations and fees, Gunnison County must do one of these options: 


a) Have our own regulations in place by October; 
b) Have a ban in place by October and start working on regulations; or 
c) Put ban in place and not do anything further at that point. 


 
There was a long discussion that if Gunnison County does not do anything by October, they will not have 
the ability to control facility regulations. County Attorney Baumgarten explained the County has to act in 
an ordinance and there is no moratorium opportunity. 
 
County Attorney Baumgarten explained that there is an opportunity to tell the State that we do not have 
regulations in place now, but we will have them in place by a specific date. He explained that the 
Commissioners would have taken an action by October and say they are not accepting obligations until our 
other regulations are in place. County Attorney Baumgarten informed the board he would really like to 
think that option through. He suggested that the board have their information and regulations in place 
before they agree to anything because they would not like to cue up expectations that they cannot fulfill.  
 
Commissioner Houck informed that his position has moved since the first reading. He has had several 
discussion with the community and there is a general misunderstanding between county relationships 
regarding if the county does pass an ordinance it trumps everything. He opined that the growth and 
manufacturing of this product are potential opportunities. He is concerned about the possible violation of 
federal law when we receive a lot of federal money, and if it will jeopardize future funding. He would like 
to see the County continue this discussion, and give staff time to research all avenues. He expressed if the 
reading is made, he wonders what we need to do to respond to the will of the people and what they want. 
County Attorney Baumgarten confirmed that hemp is not marijuana.  
 
Commissioner Chamberland informed he agrees with Commissioner Houck. He commented if they don’t 
make any stance on hemp it can become a legal crop after the first of the year. He is in support of hemp 
because it is a very useful product. He opined that he doesn’t think it will be a big job producing industry 
here in Gunnison. His perception is that there were a lot of people who voted to get it off of the class one 
narcotic list. He opined that use and abuse is the same level as alcohol. He opined that Gunnison County 
should say something so that we can control our regulations. Commissioner Chamberland voted to read 
the ordinance, pass it and set up a task force to see what the rules and regulations will be, then set up a 
symposium the week of September 16th. He reported that Jason from Hemp Cleans, Ron from the Colorado 
Department of Agriculture and Shawn from Sensible Actions will have a presentation regarding 
marijuana/hemp at WSCU the week of September 16th.  
 
Swenson opined that all of the Commissioners are basically on the same page about cautiously moving 
forward.  There was discussion that doing the ordinance today will allow the County to not go under the 
State regulations, they can take a step back and figure out what it is Gunnison County wants to do, also 
see what is coming out at the State level, gather more information on this topic, have the symposium in 
September, and figure out there appropriate place to have any type of commercial activity due to the short 
growing seasons in Gunnison. There was discussion of potentially creating a task force to gather all the 
information regarding this topic.   
 
County Attorney Baumgarten suggested to the board that they include an additional paragraph in the 
ordinance. The last “Where As” paragraph in the document, carry it into a paragraph that says “Now 
Therefore” activities prohibited the operation of specific activates. He advised that the “Where As” and 
“Now Therefore” will be tied together and will make the Commissioner’s intent clear. Or, create a paragraph 
that is titled “Revisit”: The Commissioners will revisit the issue of Amendment 64 no later than a specific 
date.  
 
County Attorney Baumgarten confirmed that the Commissioners can repeal at any time. He advised the 
board to include this additional paragraph the board will need to make a motion to approve the additional 
paragraph at the second reading, with the addition. 
  
Attorney Starr opined that this is a tough issue. He appreciates the fact that 68% of the county approved 
this, and they are discussing the possibility of grow operations in Gunnison. He is assuming 50% of the 
68% who voted for it will take advantage of the grow operations, and 40% of that 50% will purchase the 
products as opposed to growing the product. He commented that it is important that we reserve the 
opportunity to be in control of our regulations. He opined that it is important to keep these activities in the 
county especially if Crested Butte has the possibility of allowing retail. He expressed that it is very important 
to have control over the regulations.    
 
Steve Sheckter commented that there is an underground economy and criminals supplying this product, 
and they are bringing it illegally into the country. He opined that it would be nice to bring it out in the open, 
regulate it, and control it. He commented that he would like to see retail in Gunnison, and not just Crested 
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Butte so that customers don’t have to drive all the way to Crested Butte to purchase their marijuana. He 
commented that 68% of the voters want to pursue retail sale in Gunnison County. He opined that we 
should find a rational way to have this is our society without incarceration. 
 
Greg Winslow informed that he is retired and was an EMT for 20+ years. He opined that marijuana is a 
drug that is considerably less dangerous that alcohol. He commented that 68% of local county voters say 
let’s move forward with this topic. He opined that the Commissioners need to act on what the community 
wants because the community is the ones that pay their salaries. He informed that he is ready to move to 
Breckenridge where there is a community that is embracing this, and their ski community is booming, 
whereas Crested Butte is dying. 
 
Mark Reman commented that he appreciated that the commissioners have shifted their opinions since the 
first reading. He suggests that the commissioner review this at a later date after the symposium when they 
have more information. County Attorney Baumgarten informed that he has not heard a definite answer if 
the County can write their own regulations after the State takes control over their regulations.  
 
There was discussion that County Attorney Baumgarten has attended several meeting regarding marijuana 
in Denver. The board discussed that the community has been heard and the commissioners are trying to 
figure out a path that reflects the public’s desires and the needs of the community. The board discussed 
delaying this discussion to the Work Session and Special Meeting on 9/24/2013. County Attorney 
Baumgarten will provide the board a synopsis of the State regulations and a copy of the regulations. He 
will also provide the board a synopsis of discussions in other communities, and will get details on whether 
the board can create regulations after the State enforces regulations. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Chamberland and seconded by Commissioner Houck to continue this decision 
and second reading of Ordinance #17 to 9/24/2013 at a Special Meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ADJOURN: Moved by Commissioner Houck and seconded by Commissioner Chamberland to adjourn the 
August 06, 2013 meeting. Motion carried unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 3:08 pm. 
 


 
 


_________________________________ 
Paula Swenson, Chairperson 
 


 
__________________________________ 
Phil Chamberland, Vice-Chairperson 
 


 
__________________________________ 
Jonathan Houck, Commissioner 


 
Minutes Prepared By: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Bobbie Lucero, Deputy County Clerk 
 
Attest: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Stella Dominguez, County Clerk 
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Bobbie Lucero


From: Terri WRETAC <terri.foechterle@wretac.org>
Sent: Monday, August 05, 2013 5:05 PM
To: Bobbie Lucero
Subject: BoCC agenda item for review
Attachments: Agenda wording.pdf; County IGA Approved by Board.pdf; By-Laws Adopted 07 16 2013.pdf; 


BoD_Description of Duties_2-2013cc.pdf


Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged


Bobbie, 
I would like to have the Inter‐Governmental Agreement added to the agenda for the Gunnison County Board of County 
Commissioners.  The agreement has been approved by the Western Regional EMS Council, Inc. which is also known as 
Western Regional Emergency Medical and Trauma Advisory Council (WRETAC) that represents Gunnison County, 
Hinsdale County, Delta County, Montrose County, Ouray County, and San Miguel Counties.  The amended and restated 
Inter‐governmental Agreement, updated from the original signed document adopted in 2001, is submitted for 
consideration and possible authorization for the Chairman’s signature for the establishment of the Multicounty Regional 
Emergency Medical and Trauma Advisory Council.  All county attorneys were contacted and have given their input to the 
document.  I have attached the wording on the agenda from Montrose County as it was presented and signed this 
morning.  Also included is the By‐Laws of the WREMSC/WRETAC updated and approved to correspond with the 
presented IGA and the Description of Duties of Board of Directors of the organization since the BoCCs are responsible for 
appointing members  to the regional council.  If you have any questions, please contact me.  I am very excited about the 
amended document and have talked to Gunnison Valley Hospital emergency physicians, trauma coordinator, and EMS 
director who have given their support. 
Thank you, 
Terri L. Foechterle 
(970)258‐5765 
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Board of Directors 


Description of Duties:  Director 


Overview 


The Board of Directors of the Western Regional EMS Council, Inc., also known as WRETAC, will 
lead, guide, and evaluate the work of WREMSC, Inc.  The day-to-day operations will be led by 
WREMSC, Inc.’s Coordinator.  The Board-Coordinator relationship will be a partnership to carry out 
the direction of the Board.  The appropriate involvement of each Board member is both critical and 
expected. Specific Board Member duties and responsibilities include: 


Leadership, governance and oversight 


 Serve as a trusted advisor to the Board and to the Board’s Coordinator in development and


implementation of Board direction and strategic planning


 Review agenda and supporting materials and perform any other preparatory work prior to


Board and Committee meetings such that the Board member is prepared for discussion and


potential action in the meeting


 Review and approve WREMSC, Inc.’s annual budget, audit reports, and material business


decisions.  Assist in meeting all legal and fiduciary responsibilities of WREMSC, Inc.


 Contribute to an annual performance evaluation of the Coordinator


 Partner with the Coordinator and other board members to ensure that board


resolutions/direction are carried out


 Review outcomes and regularly measure performance and effectiveness of WREMSC, Inc.


 Serve on committees or task forces and take on special assignments


 Be willing to take a leadership role in WREMSC, Inc. as chairing committees and with


adequate experience,  becoming an elected officer of WREMSC, Inc.


 Represent WREMSC, Inc. to stakeholders; acting as an ambassador for the organization


and seeking input from stakeholders







300 North Cascade Avenue, U-10 


Montrose, CO 81401 


970.249.5685 


Fax: 970.249.5364 


 


 Be willing on an occasional basis to represent WREMSC, Inc. on regional- and state-level


committees and organizations


Board terms/participation 


WREMSC, Inc. Board members serve at the pleasure of their respective county’s Board of 
Commissioners.  The Commissioners will receive annual reports from WREMSC, Inc. identifying 
the Board members participation and activities in that year.  This may assist the Commissioners to 
help determine the Board members effectiveness for decisions to re-affirm their appointment or 
make another choice.    


Qualifications 


Ideal candidates for appointment to this Board of Directors will have the following qualifications: 


 Professional experience (paid or volunteer) in emergency medicine as a provider and/or


administrator


 A commitment to and understanding of WREMSC, Inc.’s role and activities in providing an


organized and predictable response to medical and trauma emergencies in our communities


 Diplomatic skills and a natural affinity for cultivating relationships and persuading, convening,


facilitating, and building consensus among diverse individuals and organizations


 Personal qualities of integrity, credibility, and a passion for improving the lives of citizens and


visitors to this region


Service on WREMSC, Inc.’s Board of Directors is without remuneration, except for administrative 


support, travel and accommodation costs, and expense reimbursements that are required to carry


out Board members’ duties. 


1/30/2013c 







By-Laws 
Of the 


Western Regional EMS Council, Inc. 
 d.b.a. 


Western Regional Emergency Medical and Trauma 
Advisory Council 


 
Article I - NAME 


 
The name of this Nonprofit Corporation will be the Western Regional EMS Council, Inc. 
(WREMSC) 
 
 


Article II - OBJECTIVES AND FUNCTIONS 
 


The objectives of this Corporation will be to: 
 


A. Promote, foster and support cooperative organization of emergency medical services for 
Delta, Gunnison, Hinsdale, Montrose, Ouray and San Miguel Counties.  


B. Represent equitably the interests of Delta, Gunnison, Hinsdale, Montrose, Ouray, and San 
Miguel Counties.  


C. Incorporate the duties and responsibilities of the Western Regional Emergency Medical 
and Trauma Advisory Council (WRETAC) into those of the WREMSC and to delegate the 
WRETAC duties and functions to WREMSC in accordance with the Inter-Governmental 
Agreement as approved by the above counties.  


D. Facilitate the successful and effective performance of the duties set forth for a Regional 
Emergency Medical and Trauma Advisory Council (WRETAC) as specified by CRS 25-
3.5-701, and maintain, update and revise the Biennial Regional Emergency Medical and 
Trauma System Plan submitted to the Colorado State Emergency Medical and Trauma 
Services Advisory Council. 


 
 


Article III - WREMSC IGA 
 


A. The executed Inter-Governmental Agreement and Colorado Revised Statutes shall govern 
the appointment of membership.  The members of the WRETAC appointed in accordance 
with the IGA shall be the same persons who are the members of the governing board of 
WREMSC. 


B. The WREMSC will perform all RETAC functions and shall comply with all Colorado 
statutes and regulations applicable to the RETAC. 







C. WREMSC is charged with maintaining, updating and revising as required by State Law or 
Regulation the Biennial Regional Emergency Medical and Trauma System Plan submitted 
to the Colorado State Emergency Medical and Trauma Services Advisory Council.  The 
plan shall at a minimum address the issues included in but not limited to CRS 25-3.5-
704(2)(c)(B)(II), as amended.  Any updates or revisions shall be submitted for review and 
approval by the governing bodies of each County. 


D. All funding received by the WREMSC in accordance with CRS 25-3.5-601, shall be 
maintained and accounted for separately from any WREMSC funds designated for other 
projects and shall only be used for authorized RETAC purposes in accordance with the 
purpose of the funds and any restrictions on the use of such funds imposed or required by 
the funding source.  The WREMSC board shall provide copies of all such financial records 
to any of the Counties immediately upon request by such County and shall fully cooperate 
in any audit performed by any of the counties of such financial records.   


E. The WREMSC Board shall provide to each county, biannually, by the 31st day of January 
and again by the 31st day of July of each year a report of the WRETAC’s activities 
including revenue and expenditure information for the six month period preceding the date 
of the report. 


F. Any proposed changes to the by-laws that may affect any provision of the Multi-County 
IGA, must be discussed in advance with the Board of County Commissioners of the six 
counties.   


 
 


Article IV - Membership 
 


Section A  WREMSC BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 
The membership of the WREMSC Board of Directors shall be defined as follows: 
 


A. Two voting members from each County as appointed by the Board of County 
Commissioners and representing the appointing County. 


a. A description of duties for a WREMSC Board Director will be provided by 
WREMSC. 


b. The WREMSC will provide an annual report to the Board of County 
Commissioners of the 6 counties identifying their appointees attendance, voting 
record, and committee participation in order for commissioners to evaluate their 
appointees’ effectiveness. 


B. One voting member as appointed by the governing body of the Delta-Montrose Technical 
College, a state approved EMT training center. 


C. One ad hoc, non-voting, member appointed by the administrator of St. Mary’s Hospital 
and Medical Center, the regional resource facility. 


D. Additional ad hoc, non-voting members to be appointed by a WREMSC Board delegated 
committee within the following categories of service providers, to include: 


a. West All-Hazards Emergency Management Region, also known as West Region 
Emergency Planning Committee. 


b. Public Health 







c. Law Enforcement 
d. Public Safety Access Points 
e. Other subject matter experts as needed 


E. Members of the WREMSC Board will represent the agencies and other constituents of their 
respective counties. 


F. The WREMSC Board of Directors will: 
a. Approve meeting minutes. 
b. Advise the Executive Board on relevant issues. 
c. Approve any contract or obligation over $5,000.00. 
d. Elect the Executive Board members and officers. 
e. Approve the annual WREMSC Budget. 
f. Approve the WREMSC quarterly financial reports 
g. Make suggestions for and approve the WRETAC Biennial Plan. 


 
Section B  TERMS OF APPOINTMENT WREMSC BOARD OF 


DIRECTORS 
 
A. Appointments to the WREMSC Board shall be for four (4) year terms, commencing with the 


date of the appointment.  In order to stagger the terms of the members, for the first term of the 
County appointments, one county appointee shall be for a two (2) year term and one appointee 
shall be for a four (4) year term.  All future appointments shall be for the full four (4) year 
terms.   


B. Any member appointed to the WREMSC Board may be removed by the appointing authority 
of that member. 


 
Section C WREMSC BOARD OF DIRECTOR MEETINGS 
 


A.  The Board of Directors shall meet quarterly or as otherwise deemed necessary. 
B. A quorum consists of seven (7) members. 
C. The President will have the authority to call a special meeting of the WREMSC Board if 


necessary. 
D. There will be three (3) days written notice for emergency meetings. 
E. There will be five (5) days written notice for regular meetings and work sessions. 
F. Meetings will be open to any persons interested in the WREMSC Board and its function 


with the exception of QA/QI Committee meetings that are allowed to be closed to the 
public in accordance with Colorado Revised Statutes and those meetings as deemed closed 
by the Sunshine (open) meeting laws. 


G. Only WREMSC Board members will be allowed to cast votes on any matter brought before 
the Board.  The President of the Board may not vote except to break a tie vote. 


H. All decisions made by the WREMSC Board will be made by a simple majority vote of the 
attending members. 


I. All requests for funding must be submitted to the President or their alternate no later than 
fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the quarterly meeting for review by all members.  Only 
an extreme emergency may allow for submittal later than fourteen (14) calendar days.  The 
emergency will be determined by the President or his/her alternate. 







J. The WREMSC Board shall be allowed to conduct business by e-mail including votes.  The 
President must have a quorum of responses in order for a decision to be binding, that is: 
seven from the full WREMSC Board of Directors.  E-mail or electronic voting should 
include a signature on a clearly stated motion and be scanned or faxed back to the President 
and Secretary for the permanent records.   


 
Section D WREMSC MEETING ATTENDANCE 
 


A.  Any WREMSC Board member missing three consecutive meetings without prior approval 
of the President or designee will be viewed as resigning from their position. 


B. The appointing entity will be notified if any WREMSC Board member misses two 
consecutive meetings without prior notification to the President of the Board of Directors 
or his/her designee. 


 
Section E WREMSC BOARD MEMBER REPLACEMENT 
 


A. When a position is vacated for any reason, the represented entity will provide a replacement 
within ninety (90) days of receipt of notification that a position has been vacated.  If the 
represented entity does not provide a replacement person within the 90 days, the President 
may make a temporary appointment to the Board of Directors until such time as the entity 
provides a replacement. 


 
Section F  WREMSC EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 


A.  The Executive Board shall act with the full authority of the WREMSC, set policy for the 
WREMSC and conduct the business of the WREMSC. 


B. The WREMSC Executive Board shall be composed of one member from each of the six 
counties that are elected by the full WREMSC Board members. 


C. Four members of the Executive Board shall serve as corporation officers that are elected 
by the full WREMSC Board members.  The officers include: President, Vice President, 
Treasurer and Secretary. 


 
Section G WREMSC EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETINGS 
 


A. The Executive Board shall meet monthly or as otherwise deemed necessary. 
B. A quorum for the Executive Board consists of four members. 
C. The President will have the authority to call a special meeting of the Executive Board if 


necessary. 
D. There will be three days written notice for emergency meetings. 
E. There will be five days written notice for regular meetings and work sessions. 
F. The Executive Board will be the decision making body of WREMSC and will report to and 


solicit advice from the WREMSC Board of Directors at their quarterly meetings. 
G. All decisions made by the Executive Board will be made by a simple majority vote of the 


attending members. 







H. Only WREMSC Executive Board members will be allowed to cast votes on any matter 
brought before the Executive Board.  The President may not vote except to break a tie vote. 


I. At the discretion of the President, any important decisions shall be referred back to and 
discussed by the full WREMSC Board of Directors. 


J. The Executive Board shall be allowed to conduct business by e-mail including votes.  The 
President must have a quorum of responses in order for a decision to be binding, that is: 
four members from the Executive Board and seven members from the full WREMSC 
Board of Directors.  E-mail or electronic voting should include a signature on a clearly 
stated motion and be scanned or faxed back to the President and Secretary for the 
permanent records. 


 
Section H COMPENSATION 
 


A.  WREMSC Board members may be compensated for mileage and travel expenses in 
accordance with state fiscal rules regarding such.   


 
Section I CONFLICT OF INTERESTS 
 


A.  Disclosure of interest required.  Any member of the WREMSC Board who has a direct or 
indirect interest in any contract or transaction with the WREMSC or associated advisory 
groups shall disclose this interest to the other members of the Board.  This interest shall be 
set forth in the minutes of the WREMSC meeting.  No director, employee or other agent 
or advisor having such interest shall participate on behalf of the WREMSC/WRETAC in 
the authorization of any such contract or transaction. 


B. All WREMSC Board members will sign the WREMSC Conflict of Interest/ 
Confidentiality Agreement indicating they have received, read, and will comply with said 
agreement. 


 
Section J CASH RESERVE FUND 
 
The WREMSC Board has established the Board Designated Reserve Funds for Cash Reserve and 
Capital and Strategic Initiatives by resolution at its August 2, 2011 Board of Directors meeting.  
The fund will be managed in accordance with the established policy.  
 
 


Article V - WREMSC OFFICERS 
 
Section A ELECTION OF THE WREMSC BOARD OF DIRECTORS 


EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 
 


A. The Executive Board shall consist of one member from each of the six (6) counties. 
B. The officers will be President, Vice-President, Secretary, and Treasurer. 
C. Election of officers will be held at the January meeting each year. 
D. At the fall meeting prior to each election, a slate of candidates will be developed and 


candidates will be nominated in writing prior to the elections in January. 







E. Election of officers will be alternated every two (2) years as follow:  President and 
Treasurer will be elected during odd years; Vice-President and Secretary will be elected in 
even years. 


F. Nominated officers must be members of the WREMSC Board of Directors, be a member 
in good standing, and be actively involved in WREMSC affairs.  


G. All WREMSC Board members will be eligible for nomination to the Executive Board and 
as Officers. 


H. Election of officers will take place by written ballot.  All officers hold their office at the 
pleasure of the WREMSC Board.  Officers may be relieved from duty by a simple majority 
vote of the WREMSC Board of Directors. 


I. Candidates receiving a simple majority vote will be considered elected and will assume 
their duties immediately following the meeting for two years or for that interval until the 
next designated election meeting.  All newly elected officers will be sworn in with an oath 
of office administered by the current or retiring president.   


J. If the office is vacated during the term, the following process will be observed to fill the 
vacancy: 


a. Office of President:  The Vice-President will move to the position of President and 
the WREMSC Board will select by nomination and vote a person to fill the office 
of Vice-President until the next regular election. 


b. Office of Vice-President, Secretary or Treasurer:  The WREMSC Board will select 
by nomination and vote a member to fill the vacant office until the next regular 
election 


c. No one person can hold an office for more than two consecutive terms beginning 
in 2008. 


 
Section B EXECUTIVE OFFICER DUTIES 
 


A.  The President shall: 
a. Supervise and control the business and affairs of the corporation. 
b. Sign deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments which the Board of 


Directors has authorized to be executed, except in cases where the signing and 
execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors or by these 
bylaws to some other officer or agent of the corporation, or shall be required by law 
to be otherwise signed or executed.. 


c. Be responsible for preparing the meeting agenda. 
d. Preside over all meetings of the WREMSC Executive Board and the WREMSC 


Board of Directors. 
e. Carry out assignments and instructions given by the will of the WREMSC Board. 
f. Appoint person(s) to serve on special committees as needed. 
g. Be the official spokesman for the WREMSC Board. 
h. Represent the Executive Board & Board of Directors in coordinating with and 


giving general direction to the WREMSC Coordinator. 
i. May appoint special committees, subject to WREMSC Board approval, as is 


necessary to expedite the objectives and functions of the Board. 
j. Be the tie breaking vote in any dead-locked vote. 


 







B.  The Vice President shall: 
a. Assist the President in any and all duties. 
b. Assume the duties of the President in his/her absence. 
c. Serve as Chair of all Special Committees appointed by the President. 
d. Perform all of the duties incident to the office of Vice President and such other 


duties as from time to time may be assigned to him/her by the President or by the 
WREMSC Board of Directors, or by these by-laws. 


C. The Secretary shall: 
a. Keep minutes of all meetings or delegate the task in his/her absence. 
b. Sign all minutes after final approval by the WREMSC Board. 
c. Keep corporation files complete and up-to-date. 
d. Be responsible for preparing copies of the meeting notice, agenda, minutes, and 


other appropriate documents for distribution two weeks prior to the next Board 
meeting. 


e. Take care of any correspondence necessary for the Board activities. 
f. Perform all of the duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as 


from time to time may be assigned to him/her by the President or by the WREMSC 
Board of Directors, or by these by-laws. 


D. The Treasurer shall: 
a. Have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the 


corporation. 
b. Receive and give receipts for moneys due and payable to the corporation from any 


source whatsoever, and deposit all such moneys in the name of the corporation in 
such depositories as shall be selected. 


c. Keep records of income and disbursements as directed by the WREMSC Board. 
d. Report to the WREMSC Board quarterly regarding the financial status of the 


corporation. 
e. Cause a yearly audit to be performed in the month of January. 
f. Perform all of the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as 


from time to time may be assigned to him/her by the President or by the WREMSC 
Board of Directors, or by these by-laws.   


 
 


Article VI - AMENDMENTS 
 


These by-laws may be amended or repealed or new by-laws adopted by majority vote of the voting 
WREMSC Board members at any regular meeting provided the written notice of such proposals 
is mailed to each Board member at least 10 days in advance of the meeting.  Any proposed changes 
to the by-laws that might have an effect on any provision of the Multi-County IGA, must be 
discussed in advance with the Board of County Commissioners of the six counties prior to 
adoption. 
 
 
 
 
 







Article VII - RULES OF ORDER 
 


The latest edition of Robert’s Rules of order will be considered the guide for determining 
procedures not addressed in these by-laws. 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Jerry Gray, the Duly Elected and acting Secretary of the Western Regional EMS Council, Inc. 
do hereby certify that the foregoing By-laws were adopted as the By-laws of the said Corporation 
on the 9th day of December, 1998 and Amended the 22nd day of May, 2007.  The foregoing By-
laws were amended and adopted on the 16th day of July, 2013. 
       


_________________________________ 
      Jerry Gray, Secretary 







AMENDED AND RESTATED 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 


BETWEEN 
 


DELTA COUNTY, COLORADO 
AND 


GUNNISON COUNTY, COLORADO 
AND 


HINSDALE COUNTY, COLORADO 
AND 


MONTROSE COUNTY, COLORADO 
AND 


OURAY COUNTY, COLORADO 
AND 


SAN MIGUEL COUNTY, COLORADO 
 


TO ESTABLISH A 
MULTICOUNTY REGIONAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL AND TRAUMA ADVISORY COUNCIL 
 


THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this  day of    , 2013, by and 
among the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Delta, Colorado (hereinafter 
“Delta”), Board of County Commissioners of the County of Gunnison, Colorado (hereinafter 
“Gunnison”), Board of County Commissioners of the County of Hinsdale, Colorado 
(hereinafter “Hinsdale”), Board of County Commissioners of the County of Montrose, 
Colorado (hereinafter “Montrose”), Board of County Commissioners of the County of Ouray, 
Colorado (hereinafter “Ouray”), and the Board of County Commissioners of the County of San 
Miguel, Colorado (hereinafter “San Miguel”), referred to herein singularly or collectively as 
the “County” or “Counties” as the case may be. 


 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 18 of Article XIV of the Colorado 


Constitution and Section 29-1-201-203, C.R.S., as amended, Colorado counties may cooperate 
or contract with one another to provide any function, service or facility lawfully authorized to 
each County; and 


 
WHEREAS, the General Assembly of the State of Colorado enacted the Colorado 


Trauma Care System Act, Section 25-3.5-701, et seq., C.R.S. (hereinafter “Act”); and 
 
WHEREAS, said Act requires that the Board of County Commissioners of each 


Colorado County establish a Regional Emergency Medical & Trauma Advisory Council 
(hereinafter, “RETAC”) with the governing body of four or more other counties, or with the 
governing body of a City and County, to form a multi-county RETAC; and 


 
WHEREAS, said Act allows funding for established RETAC’s by the distribution of 


funds in accordance with Section 25-3.5-605, et seq., C.R.S. for planning and, to the extent 
possible, coordination of emergency medical and trauma services in the County, City and 
Counties, and between counties when such coordination would provide for better service 
geographically; and 
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WHEREAS, Delta, Gunnison, Hinsdale, Montrose, Ouray, and San Miguel counties 


recognize that appropriate care for those persons experiencing a medical emergency or 
traumatic injury is immediately necessary and that much of the infrastructure and cooperative 
spirit needed to create such a multi-county organization including shared resources, equipment, 
and facilities that provide trauma service already exist; and 


 
WHEREAS the Boards of County Commissioners of Delta, Gunnison, Hinsdale, 


Montrose, Ouray, and San Miguel counties, being located in Western Colorado within 
reasonable geographic proximity to one another, recognize the benefits and advantages 
obtained by working together to develop a statewide emergency medical treatment system are 
greater than participating as individual counties and therefore desire to participate with one 
another in a RETAC; and 


 
WHEREAS, Western Regional EMS Council, Inc. ("WREMSC"), a Colorado not for 


profit corporation, was originally established as a regional EMS council for this six county 
region and is comprised of members from Delta, Gunnison, Hinsdale, Montrose, Ouray, and 
San Miguel counties; and 


 
WHEREAS, Delta, Gunnison, Hinsdale, Montrose, Ouray, and San Miguel counties 


entered into an IGA, dated May 14, 2001, to establish a RETAC in accordance with law and 
pursuant to that IGA established the Western Regional Emergency Medical and Trauma 
Advisory Council ("the WRETAC") and designated WREMSC to function as the WRETAC 
for this six county region (the May 14, 2001 IGA shall hereinafter be referred to as the "old 
IGA"); and 


 
WHEREAS, the Counties desire to continue to incorporate the duties and 


responsibilities of the RETAC for this six-county region into those of the WREMSC and to 
delegate the WRETAC duties and functions to WREMSC, but desire to amend the membership 
structure of the WRETAC board; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Counties desire to amend the old IGA accordingly to implement the 


revisions and changes established in this Amended and Restated IGA. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and 


obligations herein set forth, Delta, Gunnison, Hinsdale, Montrose, Ouray, and San Miguel 
counties agree as follows: 


 


1. Delta, Gunnison, Hinsdale, Montrose, Ouray, and San Miguel counties do hereby 
jointly establish in cooperation with each other, a RETAC to be known as the 
“Western Regional Emergency Medical & Trauma Advisory Council” or “Western 
RETAC” (WRETAC). 


2. The purpose of the WRETAC is to satisfy all the requirements and obligations and 
to perform all the duties required under state law of RETACs for the region 
consisting of Delta, Gunnison, Hinsdale, Montrose, Ouray, and San Miguel 
counties. 
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3. The WRETAC shall perform the duties of a RETAC for this six county region as 
same are specified by CRS 25-3.5-701, et seq., as amended or as otherwise required 
by the law of the State of Colorado and this Amended and Restated IGA; and such 
RETAC duties for this six county region are hereby delegated to WREMSC.  It is 
intended that the WRETAC will work cooperatively with WREMSC and WREMSC 
is expected to work cooperatively with WRETAC and the Counties to facilitate the 
successful and effective performance of the duties set forth for RETACs under state 
law.   


4. The WRETAC shall represent equitably the interests of Delta, Gunnison, Hinsdale, 
Montrose, Ouray, and San Miguel counties. 


5. WREMSC has amended its bylaws to be consistent with the applicable provisions 
of this Amended and Restated IGA, including, but not limited to, appointment of 
membership, requiring advance notice and approval from the boards of county 
commissioners for the six counties prior to any further amendment of the WREMSC 
by-laws, and the performance of RETAC functions, and shall comply with all 
Colorado statutes and regulations applicable to the RETAC.   


6. It is intended under this Amended and Restated IGA that the members of the 
WRETAC appointed in accordance with this Agreement shall be the same persons 
who are the members of the governing board of WREMSC.  However, no member 
of the WRETAC shall be permitted to have any financial or other conflict in serving 
on both the WRETAC and WREMSC or in performing the duties of either 
WRETAC or WREMSC. 


7. The WRETAC shall be governed by a board consisting of thirteen (13) voting 
members with two voting members appointed by each of the six participating 
counties and a voting member appointed by a state-approved EMT training center.  
Also other non-voting, ad hoc members may be appointed as provided herein in 
Section 21. 


8. The WRETAC, as directed under State Statute and this Amended and Restated IGA, 
is, at a minimum, charged with maintaining, updating and revising as required by 
State Law or Regulation the regional emergency medical and trauma system plan 
(hereafter the “Plan”) submitted to the Colorado State Emergency Medical and 
Trauma Services Advisory council created by the Act. Any updates or revision to 
the Plan shall be submitted for review and approval by the governing bodies of each 
County. The Plan and any updates or revisions thereof, as approved, shall at a 
minimum address the issues  required by applicable state statute or state regulation, 
including but not limited CRS 25-3.5-704(2)(c)(B)(II), as amended.  


9. WREMSC may, in its discretion, assume other responsibilities not required by 
Colorado RETAC rules, which are in the public interest and for the public good so 
long as such tasks are in support of emergency medical and trauma services within 
the Counties and not in conflict with the purposes and duties of the WRETAC.  


10. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to require any County to provide funds 
or support of any additional tasks undertaken by the WRETAC not set forth in 
paragraph 6 above. 


3 
 







11. All funding received by the WRETAC, whether from the Colorado Department of 
Public Health and Environment (CDPHE) in accordance with CRS 25-3.5-601, et 
seq. or from any other source, shall be maintained and accounted for separately from 
any WREMSC funds and shall only be used for authorized RETAC purposes in 
accordance with the purpose of the funds and any restrictions on the use of such 
funds imposed or required by the funding source.  The WRETAC and WREMSC 
board shall provide copies of all such financial records to any of the Counties 
immediately upon request by such County and shall fully cooperate in any audit 
performed by any of the counties of such financial records.  Also the WRETAC 
board shall provide to each county, biannually, by the 31st day of January and again 
by the 31st day of July of each year a report of the WRETAC's activities including 
revenue and expenditure information for the six month period preceding the date of 
the report. 


12. Any party to this Amended and Restated IGA may terminate its participation in the 
WRETAC with or without reason upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the 
other parties of this agreement and the Colorado Department of Public Health and 
Environment. 


13. Nothing herein contained shall make or be construed to make WREMSC, the 
WRETAC, Delta County, Gunnison County, Hinsdale County, Montrose County, 
Ouray County, and/or San Miguel County a partner or joint venture of any of the 
others. The WRETAC shall not be deemed to be a separate governmental entity, it 
being the intent of the counties that each shall retain their independent public entity 
status and the purpose of the formation of the WRETAC is to cooperate in fulfilling 
the RETAC duties as required by the Act. 


14. This Amended and Restated IGA shall be deemed to be made, shall be subject to, 
and shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado. 


15. Should any one or more paragraphs or provisions of this Amended and Restated 
IGA be judicially determined invalid or by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not effect, impair, or invalidate the remaining provisions hereof, 
the intention being that the various provisions hereof are severable. 


16. In the event WREMSC is dissolved for any reason, all funds and capitalized 
equipment, if any, received for the specific use by the WRETAC shall be returned 
to the WRETAC. 


17. This Amended and Restated IGA embodies the entire agreement about its subject 
matter among the parties and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, if 
any, and may be amended or supplemented only by an instrument in writing 
executed by all parties to this agreement.  


18. The parties to this Amended and Restated IGA do not intend to benefit any person 
not a party to this agreement; there shall be no third party beneficiaries. No person 
or entity, other than the parties to this Amended and Restated IGA, shall have any 
right, legal or equitable, to enforce any provision of this agreement. Nothing in this 
Amended and Restated IGA is intended to, or shall waive any legal defenses or 
immunities otherwise available to the parties hereto pursuant to the Colorado 
Governmental Immunity Act. 
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19. Each person signing this Amended and Restated IGA in a representative capacity, 
expressly represents the signatory has the subject party’s authority to so sign and 
that the subject party will be bound by the signatory’s execution of this agreement. 
Each party expressly represents that except as to the approval specifically required 
by this agreement, such party does not require any third party’s consent to enter into 
this agreement. 


20. This Amended and Restated IGA may be executed in counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed to be an original and all of which together shall constitute an 
original agreement. 


21. The membership of the WRETAC board shall be defined as follows: 


A. Two voting members from each County as appointed by the Board of County 
Commissioners and representing the appointing County. 


1. A description of duties will be provided by WREMSC as specified in 
paragraph 22 of this Amended and Restated IGA.  


2. WREMSC will provide an annual report to the BOCCs identifying their 
appointees attendance, voting record, and committee participation in 
order for commissioners to evaluate their appointee’s effectiveness. 


B. One voting member as appointed by the governing body of the Delta-Montrose 
Technical College, a state approved EMT training center. 


C. One ad hoc, non-voting,  member appointed by the administrator of St. Mary’s 
Hospital and Medical Center, the regional resource facility. 


D. Additional ad hoc, non-voting, members to be appointed by any interested 
organization within the following categories of service providers, to include: 


1. Western Regional All-Hazards Emergency Management 


2. Public Health 


3. Law Enforcement 


4. Public Safety Access Points 


5. Other subject matter experts as needed 


       E. In making appointments to membership on the WRETAC, each appointing 
  County shall make appointments to reflect as equally as possible representation 
  between hospital and pre-hospital providers and from each participating county 
  and shall comply with the requirements of CRS 25-3.5-704(c), as amended. 


      22.     The terms of members' appointments to the WRETAC board shall be for four (4) 
      year terms, commencing with the date of the appointment, except that in order to 
      stagger the terms of the members of the WRETAC, for the first term of the County 
      appointments under this amended and restated IGA one of each  of the counties' 
      appointee shall be for a two (2) year term and one appointee shall be for a four (4) 
      year term.  Upon the expiration of this first two year term for these initial county 
      appointments, all future appointments by the Counties for both of each County's 
      appointments shall be for the full four (4) year terms.  Any member appointed to the 
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      WRETAC board may be  removed by the appointing authority of that member for 
      cause.  


     23.       A Job Description, which includes terms, as well as evaluation methods for       
      attendance, voting and committee work, is attached to this Amended and Restated 
      IGA as an example and for guidance for the membership appointing authorities. 


     24.       The old IGA is hereby amended and restated by this Amended and Restated IGA 
      and all terms, conditions, and agreements specified in the old IGA are hereby    
      terminated and replaced by those stated in this Amended and Restated IGA. 


ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE COUNTY OF DELTA 


 BY: 


CLERK AND RECORDER CHAIRMAN 


  


ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE COUNTY OF GUNNISON 


 BY:  


CLERK AND RECORDER CHAIRMAN 


  


ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE COUNTY OF HINSDALE 


 BY:  


CLERK AND RECORDER CHAIRMAN 


  


ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE COUNTY OF MONTROSE 


 BY: 


CLERK AND RECORDER CHAIRMAN 
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ATTEST:  BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE COUNTY OF OURAY 


 BY: 


CLERK AND RECORDER CHAIRMAN 


  


ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL 


 BY: 


CLERK AND RECORDER CHAIRMAN 
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		Agenda Item - WRETAC IGA Completed Form

		Agenda wording

		BoD_Description of Duties_2-2013cc

		By-Laws Adopted 07 16 2013

		County IGA Approved by Board










Term Begins: Term Ends: Grant Contract #:


Submitter's Email Address:


Finance Review: Not Required


County Attorney Review: Required Not Required


Regular Agenda Time Allotted:


Action Requested:


Parties to the Agreement:


AgendaTitle: 


Summary:


Fiscal Impact:


Submitted by:


Certificate of Insurance Required


Reviewed by: Discharge Date:


Yes           No
Reviewed by: Discharge Date:


County Manager Review:


Discharge Date:


Required


Comments:


Consent Agenda 


AGENDA ITEM or FINAL CONTRACT REVIEW SUBMITTAL FORM 


 Revised April 2013


Comments:


Reviewed by:


Comments:


Worksession


Follow Up Agenda Date:Agenda Date:


MBirnie 8/14/2013


Motion


$100,000 (Six Points)


See attached letter that was signed and released on 8/13/13.


Ratification of Correspondence; Letter of Support; El Pomar Foundation Grant Application; Six Points Evaluation and Training, Inc.; $100,000


khaase@gunnisoncounty.org


N/A8/20/2013


Katherine Haase









		Agenda Item - Ratification of Correspondence; El Pomar Completed Form

		20130813 - El Pomar Foundation, Six Points Grant










Term Begins: Term Ends: Grant Contract #:


Submitter's Email Address:


Finance Review: Not Required


County Attorney Review: Required Not Required


Regular Agenda Time Allotted:


Action Requested:


Parties to the Agreement:


AgendaTitle: 


Summary:


Fiscal Impact:


Submitted by:


Certificate of Insurance Required


Reviewed by: Discharge Date:


Yes           No
Reviewed by: Discharge Date:


County Manager Review:


Discharge Date:


Required


Comments:


Consent Agenda 


AGENDA ITEM or FINAL CONTRACT REVIEW SUBMITTAL FORM 


 Revised April 2013


Comments:


Reviewed by:


Comments:


Worksession


Follow Up Agenda Date:Agenda Date:


The request is for two people, not three.


Included in the 2013 adopted budget


KHaase 8/16/2013


Other approval of out of state travel


$3,200 ~


The airport signed a 5 year agreement with CAOA to attend the annual NBAA conference as a way to promote airports in Colorado on an
international level. This will be the 4th year of that agreement,. The airport typically sends 2-3 reps to this event. As of today (airfare cost may
change) the cost to sent 3 people to Las Vegas will be approx. $3,200, which covers lodging, airfare, food and a rental car. This was approved in the
2013 budget.


smick@gunnisoncounty.org


Lnienhueser 8/6/2013


N/A8/20/2013


B. Lucero for S. Mick

















		Agenda Item - Out of State Travel; NBAA Conference Completed Form

		2444_001










Term Begins: Term Ends: Grant Contract #:


Submitter's Email Address:


Finance Review: Not Required


County Attorney Review: Required Not Required


Regular Agenda Time Allotted:


Action Requested:


Parties to the Agreement:


AgendaTitle: 


Summary:


Fiscal Impact:


Submitted by:


Certificate of Insurance Required


Reviewed by: Discharge Date:


Yes           No
Reviewed by: Discharge Date:


County Manager Review:


Discharge Date:


Required


Comments:


Consent Agenda 


AGENDA ITEM or FINAL CONTRACT REVIEW SUBMITTAL FORM 


 Revised April 2013


Comments:


Reviewed by:


Comments:


Worksession


Follow Up Agenda Date:Agenda Date:


DBaumgarten


Current balance in Water Resource Protection is $86,467


KHaase 8/16/2013


Board of County Commissioners' Signature


1500 for 2013; 3500 for 2014


A Resolution Authorizing Expenditure of Funds from the Water Resources Protection Fund for Water Resource Protection Purposes; Executive Order
D2013-005 State Water Plan


None


A Resolution Authorizing Expenditure of Funds from the Water Resources Protection Fund for Water Resource Protection Purposes; Executive Order
D2013-005 State Water Plan


8/14/2013


bwiseman@gunnisoncounty.org


Lnienhueser


12/31/2014


8/15/2013


BOCC


N/A8/20/2013


Brenda Wiseman for County Attorney



























BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF THE COUNTY OF GUNNISON, COLORADO 


RESOLUTION NO. 2013 - ___              
 


A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS FROM THE WATER 
RESOURCES PROTECTION FUND FOR WATER RESOURCE  


PROTECTION PURPOSES 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Gunnison County, Colorado, has 


adopted Resolution No. 90-2, A Resolution Creating A Water Resources Protection Fund; 
and 
 


WHEREAS, such Resolution No. 90-2 states that funds from the Water Resources 
Protection Fund may be used for water resources upon majority vote of the Board of County 
Commissioners; and 
 


WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has determined that certain 
expenditures are necessary for the participation of Gunnison County in joint use of water 
rights. 
 


NOW THEREFORE, it is resolved by the Board of County Commissioners that the 
Board authorizes expenditure of funds from the Water Resources Protection Fund for: 
 


1. Costs and expenses associated with inside counsel’s participation in meetings 
regarding Executive Order D2013-005 directing the Colorado Water Conservation 
Board to commence work on the Colorado Water Plan.  


 
2. Costs and expense shall not to exceed $1,500 for county fiscal year 2013; and 


$3,500 for county fiscal year 2014 unless further authorization is received by the 
Board of County Commissioners. 
 


INTRODUCED by Commissioner __________________, seconded by Commissioner 
___________________, and adopted this ____ day of _____________, 2013. 


 
     BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
     OF THE COUNTY OF GUNNISON, COLORADO 
 
     By ________________________________ 
      Paula Swenson, Chairperson 
 
     By ________________________________ 
      Phil Chamberland, Vice Chairperson 
 
     By ________________________________ 
      Jonathan Houck, Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Deputy County Clerk 





		Agenda Item - Resolution Water Resources Fund; State Water Plan Completed Form

		Resolution 1990-02

		Executive Order D2013-005

		waterfund.CO State Water Plan 2013 and 2014

		1. Costs and expenses associated with inside counsel’s participation in meetings regarding Executive Order D2013-005 directing the Colorado Water Conservation Board to commence work on the Colorado Water Plan.












Gunnison County Board of Commissioner


Upcoming Meetings Schedule
Two or more County Commissioners will attend the following meetings:


Day Date Time Type Meeting Location


Tue 8/20 9:35 am RM Gunnison County Board of County Commissioners Regular 


Meeting


BOCC


Tue 8/20 10:30 am MTG Gunnison/Hinsdale Board of Human Services BOCC


Tue 8/27 1:00 pm WS Gunnison County Board of County Commissioners Work 


Session


BOCC


Wed 8/28 8:00 am - 


Noon


MTG Oil and Gas Collaboration Meeting Montrose


Wed 8/28 5:30 pm PM Public Meeting; Gunnison County Courthouse Project FF


Thr - Fri 8/29 - 


8/30


tbd MTG Colorado Association of Ski Towns (CAST) Meeting Crested 


Butte


Day Date Time Type Meeting Location


Tue 9/3 8:30 am RM Gunnison County Board of County Commissioners Regular 


Meeting


BOCC


Thr 9/5 12:00 pm MTG Mayors & Managers Meeting; Hosted by the Library District tbd


Fri 9/6 8:00 am JPH Joint Public Hearing between the Gunnison County Board of 


County Commissioners and the Gunnison County Planning 


Commission; Scarps Ridge


PC


Fri 9/6 1:00 pm JPH Joint Public Hearing between the Gunnison County Board of 


County Commissioners and the Gunnison County Planning 


Commission; Tomichi Pit


PC


Tue 9/10 1:30 pm WS Gunnison County Board of County Commissioners Work 


Session


BOCC


Fri 9/13 8:00 - 


11:00 am


MTG Gunnison Valley Rural Transportation Authority BOCC


Tue 9/17 8:30 am RM Gunnison County Board of County Commissioners Regular 


Meeting


BOCC


Tue 9/17 10:30 am MTG Gunnison/Hinsdale Board of Human Services BOCC


Wed 9/18 10:00 am - 


2:00 pm


MTG Gunnison Sage-grouse Strategic Committee Meeting BOCC


Tue 9/24 1:00 pm SM Gunnison County Board of County Commissioners Special 


Meeting


BOCC


Tue 9/24 1:20 pm WS Gunnison County Board of County Commissioners Work 


Session


BOCC


Types:


Locations:


9/2/2013 - Labor Day - County Offices Closed


August 2013


September 2013


9/12/13 - 9/16/13 - Commissioner Chamberland Out of Office


RM = Regular Meeting; SM = Special Meeting; WS = Work Session; PH = Public Hearing; JPH = Joint Public Hearing; 


PM = Public Meeting; MTG = Other Meeting; EVT = EventBOCC = BOCC Boardroom; CBTH = CB Town Hall; PC = Planning Commission; AW = Aspinall-Wilson; FG = 


Fairgrounds, FSC = Family Services Center


8/21/13 - 8/26/13 - Commissioner Chamberland Out of Office


Last Updated 8/16/2013, 4:57 PM


This schedule is subject to change at any time.  For more information please contact County Administration at (970) 641-0248.








Term Begins: Term Ends: Grant Contract #:


Submitter's Email Address:


Finance Review: Not Required


County Attorney Review: Required Not Required


Regular Agenda Time Allotted:


Action Requested:


Parties to the Agreement:


AgendaTitle: 


Summary:


Fiscal Impact:


Submitted by:


Certificate of Insurance Required


Reviewed by: Discharge Date:


Yes           No
Reviewed by: Discharge Date:


County Manager Review:


Discharge Date:


Required


Comments:


Consent Agenda 


AGENDA ITEM or FINAL CONTRACT REVIEW SUBMITTAL FORM 


 Revised April 2013


Comments:


Reviewed by:


Comments:


Worksession


Follow Up Agenda Date:Agenda Date:


KHaase 8/16/2013


Board of County Commissioners' Signature


n/a


Treasurer's Report; July 2013


Treasurer's Report


Mmarks@gunnisoncounty.org


N/A8/20/2013


B. Lucero for M. Marks







CASH AND CHECKING GL# BALANCE RATE TYPE MATURITY/LENGTH


Cash on Hand 1100 191,086.83                0.00% Cash N/A


Bank of the West 1101 1,317,693.05             0.10% Chkg N/A


Bank of the West CC 1103 160,958.08                0.00% Chkg N/A


Wells Fargo Warrant Clearing 1145 171,234.81                0.00% Chkg N/A


Wells Fargo Revenue Clearing 1147 147,079.72                0.10% Chkg N/A


US Bank Antelope Construction 1110 99.81                         0.00% Chkg N/A


Colotrust Plus 1118 6,343,202.51             0.12% Pool Mo


C-Safe 1121 2,518,817.73             0.13% Pool Mo


CSIP Investment Program 1441 5,753,070.17             0.12% MMA Mo


Gunnison Bank and Trust 1102 38,070.06                  0.00% MMA Mo


Solera Savings 1161 988,053.23                0.40% MMA Quarterly


Cobiz Hospital Reserve 1439 751,417.92                0.35% MMA Mo


INVESTMENT CLEARING 1199 294.11                       0.01% Clrg Mo


TOTAL CASH AND CHECKING 18,381,078.03           67.17%


INVESTMENTS


Gunnison Savings and Loan 1106 500,000.00                2.07% CD M/Mat 01/17/17 - 5 yrs


Liberty Bank CD 8402 1143 304,643.20                1.24% CD M/Mat 10/28/14 - 3 yrs


Mutual of Omaha 3960 1116 250,000.00                1.50% CD M/Mat 11-13-2013 - 3 yrs


Mutual of Omaha 6121 1172 500,000.00                0.85% CD M/Mat 9/23/13 - 2 yrs


Legacy Bank  1402 207,355.04                0.65% CD M/Mat 11/13/15 - 2.5 yrs


Alpine Bank 31549 1197 228,997.40                0.66% CD Matured


First Bank Lakewood 2964 1433 255,815.43                1.30% CD Q/Mat 6/22/17 - 5 yrs


First Bank Lakewood 2433 1427 511,032.95                1.60% CD Q/Mat 2-15-17 - 5 yrs


CityWide Bank 5134 1127 300,000.00                1.30% CD M/Mat 3-14-14 - 3 yrs


United Western FIRST CITIZENS 2208 1148 118,973.05                4.35% CD M/Mat 11/14/13 - 5 yrs


Flatirons Bank 2066 1150 240,000.00                1.01% CD M/Mat 12/4/13 - 2 yrs


Valley Bank 1672 1162 250,000.00                1.02% CD M/Mat 1/14/2016 - 3 yrs


American Bank Comm 1418 250,000.00                1.20% CD M/Mat 8/15/14 - 3 yrs


Cobiz CD 8816 1196 249,000.00                0.50% CD At Mat/Mat 9/9/13 -1 yrs


Redstone Bank 0120 1195 245,000.00                1.80% CD M/Mat 11/4/13 - 3 yrs


CO State Bank & Trust 5546 1412 249,000.00                0.75% CD M/Mat 1/9/14 - 17 mos


Colorado Nat'l Bank 6311 1432 245,000.00                1.51% CD Q/Mat 6/11/17 - 5 yrs


Kirkpatrick Bank 0224 1423 500,000.00                1.30% CD A/Mat 10-20-2014 - 3 yrs


Front Range Bank 3424 1443 249,000.00                0.65% CD M/Mat 10-26-2016 - 2.5 yrs


Centennial Bank JAB9 1401 101,635.00                1.25% CD M/Mat  12/2/14 - 4 yrs


Centennial Bank JAC7 1400 153,694.50                1.55% CD M/Mat 12/2/15 - 5 yrs


JP Morgan Chase JHF8 1434 246,937.95                0.75% CD M/Mat 8-17-17 - 5 yrs Step & Call


Goldman Sachs AQ32 1436 245,423.85                0.95% CD SA/Mat 4/30/15 - 3 yrs 


GE Capital Bank JMB1 1435 244,985.30                1.05% CD SA/Mat 11/2/15 - 3 yrs 


Everbank DQN3 1438 245,438.55                0.65% CD SA/Mat 12/26/14- 2 yrs


Ally QT94 1437 245,676.20                0.90% CD SA/Mat 12/7/15 - 3 yrs


Amex DMJ4 1442 243,929.35                0.55% CD SA/Mat 2/28/16 - 3 yrs


Discover 1KB5 1440 244,657.00                0.75% CD SA/Mat 2/6/15 - 2 yrs


FNMA RX57 1419 500,840.00                1.25% AG SA/Mat 9/20/16 - 5 yr 1TC


FHLB 3TJ9 1428 301,866.00                1.35% AG SA/Mat 3/28/17 5 yr 1TC


FHLB 3HH7 1444 556,136.00                0.70% AG SA Mat 12/27/16 -1TC 3.5 yrs


TOTAL INVESTMENTS 8,985,036.77             32.83%


Cash per Treasurer's Ledger 27,366,114.80           100.00%


Plus Distributions Held 35,076.48                  


Total Due to All Funds 27,401,191.28           


Calculated average yield on investments 1.16%


Benchmark: (1 year Constant Maturity Treasury Rate): 0.12%


Benchmark: (2 year Constant Maturity Treasury Rate): 0.34%


Benchmark: (5 year Constant Maturity Treasury Rate): 1.40%


Gunnison County Treasurer


Investment Report 


As of July 31st, 2013







FUND# FUNDS
BEGINNING 


BALANCE
 RECEIPTS  DISBURSEMENTS 


 ENDING   


BALANCE   


COUNTY FUNDS $  $  $  $ 


001 Due From Tre-County General 7,679,565.46           408,170.34              (803,641.99)             7,284,093.81           


002 Due from Tre-Road & Bridge 4,962,298.72           28,671.78                (608,628.87)             4,382,341.63           
003 Due from Tre-Human Services 712,084.23              39,608.80                (444.29)                    751,248.74              
004 Due from Tre-Public Health Agency 21,241.70                34,448.70                (45,883.07)               9,807.33                  


007 Due from Tre-Conservation Trust 108,147.40              1,117.00                  (50.00)                     109,214.40              


008 Due from Tre-Bond Fund 9,748.23                  9,748.23                  


010 Due from Tre-Airport 626,105.48              60,398.41                (192,679.85)             493,824.04              


012 Due from Tre-Sales Tax 850,391.40              1,211.45                  (92,206.30)               759,396.55              


013 Due from Tre-Land Preservation 146,320.54              31,028.92                -                          177,349.46              


030 Due from Tre-Mosquito 18,959.21                3,670.81                  (13,137.89)               9,492.13                  


032 Due from Tre-Sage Grouse 109,934.35              -                          (621.81)                    109,312.54              


034 Due from Tre-Risk Management 502,225.23              771.92                     (1,074.17)                 501,922.98              


041 Due from Tre-Airport Construction 19,221.61                5,002.59                  -                          24,224.20                


043 Due from Tre-Capital Projects 409,566.09              193.64                     (2,500.00)                 407,259.73              


050 Due from Tre-Sewer 927,658.91              120,353.77              (87,211.52)               960,801.16              


051 Due from Tre-Water 220,262.30              30,783.37                (50.42)                     250,995.25              


052 Due From Tre-Solid Waste 172,123.01              45,846.50                (85,061.81)               132,907.70              


070 Due From Tre-Housing Authority 121,269.54              8,477.99                  (2,078.44)                 127,669.09              


071 Due From Tre-Gunn Sr Housing 46,163.26                8,517.55                  -                          54,680.81                


072 Due from Tre-Assisted Living 3,050.55                  3,040.65                  (3,040.65)                 3,050.55                  


080 Due from Tre-Internal Service I 796,684.17              317,494.75              (56.00)                     1,114,122.92           


082 Due from Tre-Internal Service II 581,577.27              23,407.66                (59.41)                     604,925.52              


090 Due From Tre-Insurance Trust 1,124,496.08           2,184.56                  (122,277.45)             1,004,403.19           


091 Due from Tre-Local Marketing District 209,086.65              244.99                     (82,206.88)               127,124.76              


092 Due from Tre-Rural Trans Auth 463,773.98              15,082.27                (7.15)                       478,849.10              


093 Due from Tre-Public Trustee Agency 6,175.67                  -                          (6,092.19)                 83.48                       


101 Due From Tre-Building Construction 1,442,958.28           33.88                       -                          1,442,992.16           


102 Due From Tre-Terminal Construction 202,271.08              32.52                       -                          202,303.60              


103 Due From Tre-Courthouse Renovation 891,495.31              108,347.27              -                          999,842.58              


105 Due from Tre-Assessor Fees -                          5,164.65                  (5,164.65)                 -                          


107 Due From Tre-Sheriff Fees -                          19,390.89                (19,390.89)               -                          


108 Due From Tre-Treas Fees -                          564,353.76              (564,353.76)             -                          


115 Due From Tre-Health Claims 28,993.12                270,376.29              (137,555.86)             161,813.55              


125 Due from Tre-Landfill Closure 937,731.69              3,057.45                  -                          940,789.14              


126 Due From Tre-Landfill Cons Resv 1,329,283.39           10,877.25                -                          1,340,160.64           


130 Due From Tre-Payroll Clearing 41,407.57                529,595.84              (527,306.07)             43,697.34                


135 Due From Tre-Sewer Reserve 79,213.00                79,213.00                


140 Due From Tre-Sr Housing Deposits 9,875.05                  256.09                     -                          10,131.14                


145 Due From Tre-Accounts Payable Clearing 185,541.21              1,096,368.63           (1,209,943.10)          71,966.74                


147 Due From Tre-Finance Revenue Clearing -                          620,696.49              (620,696.49)             -                          


150 Due From Tre-Water Resource 86,466.75                32.35                       -                          86,499.10                


155 Due From Tre-Workforce Impact Fees 593,778.61              4,342.20                  (5,356.94)                 592,763.87              


199 Due From Tre-Living Community 101,609.61              19,494.19                (102,516.87)             18,586.93                


COUNTY FUNDS TOTAL 26,778,755.71 4,442,148.17           (5,341,294.79)          25,879,609.09         


CITIES AND TOWNS $  $  $  $ 


226 Due From Tre-Crested Butte General 42,362.97                12,229.72                (42,535.21)               12,057.48                


227 Due From Tre-Crested Butte Street/Alley 123,349.11              26,633.99                (124,148.10)             25,835.00                


229 Due From Tre-Gunnison City General 45,267.56                23,125.59                (46,140.90)               22,252.25                


231 Due From Tre-Marble General 4,152.08                  1,189.95                  (4,173.16)                 1,168.87                  


232 Due From Tre-Mt Crested Butte General 110,541.64              32,198.68                (119,333.27)             23,407.05                


234 Due From Tre-Pitkin General 2,261.75                  1,352.85                  (2,286.01)                 1,328.59                  


CITIES AND TOWNS TOTAL 327,935.11 96,730.78                (338,616.65)             86,049.24                


SCHOOLS $  $  $  $ 


311 Due From Tre-Gunn RE1J Gen 103,209.16              473,080.18              (126,038.95)             450,250.39              


313 Due From Tre-Gunn RE1J Bond 21,477.15                188,147.12              (29,270.01)               180,354.26              


316 Due From Tre-Delta 50J General 11,445.95                12,965.64                (11,450.09)               12,961.50                


318 Due From Tre-Delta 50J Bond 318.33                     345.78                     (318.33)                    345.78                     


321 Due From Tre-Montrose RE1J General 1,232.32                  6,832.11                  (1,247.88)                 6,816.55                  


TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT FOR JULY 2013


8/15/2013  O:\Treasurer Office Share\BOCC reports\2013 BOCC







323 Due From Tre-Montrose RE1J Bond 46.99                       421.51                     (46.99)                     421.51                     


SCHOOLS TOTAL 137,729.90 681,792.34              (168,372.25)             651,149.99              


IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS $  $  $  $ 


406 Due from Tre-Library Dist 124,522.28              24,640.53                (126,401.22)             22,761.59                


409 Due From Tre-CO River Water CD 29,554.26                6,350.03                  (29,964.91)               5,939.38                  


428 Due From Tre-Reserve MD2 6,401.13                  37,523.76                (6,437.90)                 37,486.99                


433 Due From Tre-Mt Crested Butte DDA 39,012.52                11,036.19                (39,343.34)               10,705.37                


435 Due From Tre-Bostwick Park Water CD 234.73                     137.89                     (238.62)                    134.00                     


436 Due From Tre-Crawford Water CD -                          -                          


437 Due From Tre-Crested Butte South MD 61,036.45                12,897.42                (61,385.95)               12,547.92                


438 Due From Tre-Mt CB Water/San 110,984.03              29,764.87                (117,293.20)             23,455.70                


439 Due From Tre-East River Regional SD 19,636.36                6,104.93                  (19,921.89)               5,819.40                  


441 Due From Tre-Cemetery 19,590.20                9,379.58                  (20,029.68)               8,940.10                  


442 Due From Tre-Gunn Co Metro Rec Dist 33,261.54                11,136.62                (33,974.43)               10,423.73                


444 Due From Tre-N Fork Water CD 25,528.05                261.32                     (25,529.23)               260.14                     


445 Due From Tre-Skyland MD 92,551.17                25,643.91                (93,245.02)               24,950.06                


446 Due From Tre-Upper Gunn Water CD 110,296.22              36,706.91                (113,156.98)             33,846.15                


447 Due From Tre-Crested Butte Fire PD 170,617.78              41,587.55                (174,846.85)             37,358.48                


448 Due From Tre-Gunn Co Fire PD 74,028.14                35,903.76                (75,779.46)               34,152.44                


449 Due From Tre-Carbondale & Rural Fire PD 20,276.84                9,009.25                  (21,418.32)               7,867.77                  


451 Due From Tre-Ragged Mt Fire PD 94,091.11                814.91                     (94,091.46)               814.56                     


452 Due From Tre-Arrowhead Fire PD 8,773.97                  2,274.98                  (8,833.91)                 2,215.04                  


454 Due From Tre-Reserve MD2 Bond 113,397.56              26,005.22                (137,661.49)             1,741.29                  


IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS TOTAL 1,153,794.34 327,179.63              (1,199,553.86)          281,420.11              


MISC CONTROL $  $  $  $ 


500 Due From Tre-Clerk & Recorder 330,533.82              398,148.65              (351,301.89)             377,380.58              


501 Due From Tre-Clerk Sales Tax -                          45,817.96                (45,774.63)               43.33                       


502 Due From Tre-SOT -                          133,374.33              (133,374.33)             -                          


503 Due From Tre-State Auto -                          150,814.84              (150,814.84)             -                          


504 Due From Tre-Clerk ST Domestic Abuse -                          620.00                     (620.00)                    -                          


505 Due From Tre-Clerk State Registrar -                          93.00                       (93.00)                     -                          


506 Due From Tre-Clerk State Specific -                          1,228.40                  (1,228.40)                 -                          


510 Due From Tre-Range Improvement Dist 3 -                          -                          


520 Due From Tre-Sheriff Commissary 7,427.04                  918.10                     (9.18)                       8,335.96                  


522 Due From Tre-Inmate Trust 19,621.57                15,385.52                (18,192.48)               16,814.61                


533 Due From Tre-Investment Interest -                          6,987.13                  (6,987.13)                 -                          


535 Due From Tre-Treas Deed -                          -                          


537 Due From Tre-Unused Remittances 4,674.93                  1,465.96                  (4,911.62)                 1,229.27                  


540 Due from Tre-Elected Official Fees Clrg 6,551.31                  39,229.19                (39,109.45)               6,671.05                  


550 Due from Tre-GV Regional Housing Authority 106,655.46              1,403.45                  (15,570.86)               92,488.05                


MISC CONTROL TOTAL 475,464.13 795,486.53              (767,987.81)             502,962.85              


GRAND TOTALS 28,873,679.19$    6,343,337.45$      (7,815,825.36)$     27,401,191.28$    


TO THE HONORABLE PAULA SWENSON, CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF


THE COUNTY OF GUNNISON, IN THE STATE OF COLORADO:


The preceding is a full and accurate account of all moneys, received and disbursed, and all payments received


in account thereof of every name and descriptions whatsoever in the office of the County Treasurer,


within and for the aforesaid county for the month of JULY 2013.


Melody Marks


Gunnison County Treasurer


DATE:


Paula Swenson


Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners Date Accepted:
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Katherine Haase


From: Cathie Pagano
Sent: Tuesday, August 06, 2013 4:58 PM
To: Katherine Haase
Subject: Agenda item for BOCC
Attachments: Memo to BOCC request for extension.pdf; Vista Business Park Draft Sketch Plan 


Recommendation.docx


Hi Katherine,  
 
I have an agenda item for the next available BOCC meeting. The item is a request from Hal Hearne, proponent for Vista 
Business Park, for an extension to submit preliminary plan. It should take 10‐15 minutes and I’ve attached a memo for 
the BOCC.  
 
The subject parcel is located approximately two miles east of the City of Gunnison within the City’s Three Mile Plan area.
The parcel is legally described as 28.07 acres in the NW1/4SW1/4 and SW1/4NW1/4, Section 3, Township 49 North, Range 
1 East, N.M.P.M., also known as 43950 Highway 50. Thanks.  
 
 
Cathie Pagano, AICP CEP  │ Planner 
Gunnison County Community Development 
221 N. Wisconsin St. Suite D 
Gunnison, CO 81230 
cpagano@gunnisoncounty.org   │  Ph. 970‐641‐0360 
www.gunnisoncounty.org 
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Gunnison County, CO 


Community Development Department 


221 N. Wisconsin St. Ste. D, Gunnison, CO 81230 
Phone: (970) 641-0360      FAX: (970) 641-8585 


Website: www.gunnisoncounty.org/planning.html 
Email: planning@gunnisoncounty.org 


 


To: BOCC 


From: Cathie Pagano, Planner 


Date: August 6, 2013 


Re: Vista Business Park   


Hal Hearne, as the representative for Vista Business Park, has requested an extension from the BOCC to 
submit the Major Impact Preliminary Plan application. The BOCC approved the Sketch Plan application for 
Vista Business Park on September 18, 2012. Section 7-202: P. Expiration of the Gunnison County Land Use 
Resolution (LUR) requires that the Preliminary Plan be submitted within 12 months after the date of approval 
of the Sketch Plan.  
 
Hearne’s letter of request for extension is attached for your review. I have also attached the Sketch Plan 
approval for your reference. To approve the extension the Board must find that “there has been no substantial 
change in circumstances of adjacent land uses, to the capability or willingness to serve of proposed service 
providers, or to the site of the proposed land use change since Sketch Plan approval.” 
 
As you know, one of the adjacent parcels, Gunnison Valley Development, LLC is currently pursuing a Land 
Use Change permit for a gravel pit, that permit is still in process at this time. There has been no change in the 
capability or willingness to serve or proposed service providers and there has been no change to the 
proposed Vista Business Park site since Sketch Plan approval.  
 


Section 7-202: Sketch Plan Review Process for Major Impact Projects: 


O. SIGNIFICANCE OF SKETCH PLAN APPROVAL. Approval of the Sketch Plan application shall constitute a final 
decision of approval for the general development concept only, but shall not constitute approval of any detailed 
design or engineering submittals or proposed solutions to specific problems revealed during the Sketch Plan 
review or later in the review process. Sketch Plan approval by the Board shall not constitute approval of the 
Major Impact project, or permission to proceed with construction of any aspect of the proposed land use 
change. Approval at this stage only authorizes the applicant to submit a Preliminary Plan application. If, during 
the Preliminary and Final Plan reviews, the applicant is unable to fulfill all of the requirements of this Resolution, 
then the application shall be denied at the Preliminary or Final Plan review stage.  


P. EXPIRATION. The applicant shall be required to submit the Preliminary Plan application within 12 months after 
the date of approval of the Sketch Plan. Failure to submit a complete Preliminary Plan application within this 
time period shall render the Sketch Plan approval null and void, and require the applicant to begin the Sketch 
Plan review process again.  


Q. EXTENSION OF SUBMITTAL DEADLINE. The Board may extend the deadline to submit a Preliminary Plan 
application for good cause shown, provided the applicant requests the extension in writing no less than 30 days 
before the deadline, and provided the Board makes a finding that there has been no substantial change in 
circumstances of adjacent land uses, to the capability or willingness to serve of proposed service providers, or 
to the site of the proposed land use change since Sketch Plan approval. Should   the Board determine that such 
findings are not supportable, the review process shall be required to being anew with the submittal of a Sketch 
Plan.  



http://www.gunnisoncounty.org/planning.html

mailto:planning@gunnisoncounty.org
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 1. Referral to Planning Commission for Recommendation. The Board may request a recommendation from 
the Planning Commission on the request for extension before taking action.  


 2. Maximum Period of Extension. In no case shall the deadline for submittal of a Preliminary Plan application 
be extended for more than 12 months beyond the date of the 12-month expiration, and only one extension may 
be granted.  


 3. Fee For Request For Extension. In order to compensate the County for the cost of reviewing and 
processing the requested extension, each applicant shall pay the required fee, as shown in a schedule of fees 
issued by the Community Development Department that is adopted and amended from time to time by the 
Board. The fee schedule is designed to make the amount of the fee proportional to the amount of expense likely 
to be incurred by the County in reviewing and processing the application.  
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Vista Business Park Draft Sketch Plan Recommendation 1 


TO:   Planning Commission 
 
SUBJECT:  Draft Planning Commission Sketch Plan Recommendation 


Vista Business Park 
LUC-11-00035 


 
DATE:   , 2012 
 
PREPARED BY:  Cathie Pagano, Planner 
    
APPLICANT:   Hal Hearne  
 


 


SKETCH PLAN IS EXPLORATORY. Sketch Plan review provides an opportunity 
for the County, the applicant, and the public to engage in an exploratory discussion 
of a proposed land use change, to examine alternative approaches to development 
of the property, to participate in a process of joint planning and negotiation between 
the County and the applicant to promote development and land use change which 
is consistent with the intent and purposes of this Resolution.  
 
SKETCH PLAN EXPECTED TO EVOLVE. Requirements of Sketch Plan direct 
the applicant to review specific sections of this Resolution and submit a plan that 
has addressed issues important to the County. It is expected that the proposal will 
evolve during Sketch Plan review.  
 
ENGINEERED DESIGNS AND DETAILED PLANS NOT REQUIRED NOR 
ACCEPTED AT SKETCH PLAN. To encourage the consideration of alternatives 
and to allow the Sketch Plan to evolve, detailed engineering plans and other overly 
detailed information shall not be required nor accepted by the County. 


 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
Hal Hearn, the applicant, has submitted a Major Impact Sketch Plan application to subdivide a 
vacant 28.07-acre parcel into 12 lots, ranging in size from 1.25 to 2.15 acres. The subdivision is 
intended to be used for industrial and commercial use with an allowance for residential use in 
association with an industrial or commercial operation. Residences are limited by the Protective 
Covenants to no larger than 2,500 square feet and will be served by an individual sewage disposal 
system. Each lot will be served by a central well or wells and an individual sewage disposal system 
that meets the standards for the proposed use on each lot.  
 
There will be a common open space area, approximately 2.2 acres in size, along the northeastern 
portion of the parcel. Two augmentation ponds are proposed as part of the applicant’s water supply 
plan and the locations are identified on the development layout plan. Lot 12 (Outlot) will remain as 
is with the existing house, barn, shop, and out-buildings. The applicant proposes to clean up Lot 
12 and restore the 98-year old Vader barn. The applicant proposes mitigation of the view shed from 
Highway 50 via landscaping, berming, screening and building material selection.  
 
Access to the proposed subdivision will be provided via two access points on the east and west 
side of the parcel. There are existing access roads from Highway 50 at each of those points but 
new access permits from the Colorado Department of Transportation will be required. A new road 
within the subdivision will provide access to the individual lots.  
 
The parcel is located approximately two miles east of the City of Gunnison within the City’s Three 
Mile Plan area. The parcel is legally described as 28.07 acres in the NW1/4SW1/4 and 
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SW1/4NW1/4, Section 3, Township 49 North, Range 1 East, N.M.P.M., also known as 43950 
Highway 50.  
 
PLANS/REPORTS/SUBMITTALS: 
Plans, reports, letters and other submittal documents informing this decision include, but are not 
limited to: 


 Exhibit G, Development Layout Plan, prepared by NCW & Associates, Inc. dated March 
10, 2012 


 Exhibit G2, Landscaping Plan, prepared by NCW & Associates, Inc. dated February 3, 
2012 


 Wetlands delineation, prepared by Colorado Land & Water Specialists, LLC, dated April 
16, 2011 


 Easement agreement between R.I. Vaders & Sons, Inc, Letha Vader (Grantors) and 
William K. Edwards and Link, LLC (Grantees) dated February, 2012 
 


IMPACT CLASSIFICATION:   
The project, by definition, is a Major Impact pursuant to Section 7-101:A.  
 
MEETING DATES: 
The Planning Commission held work sessions and public hearings to discuss the Vista Business 
Park application on the following dates: 


 June 1, 2012  Work Session 


 June 22, 2012  Work Session 


 June 22, 2012  Site Visit 


 July 20, 2012  Work Session 


 August 3, 2012  Joint Public Hearing 
 
SITE VISIT: 
The Planning Commission conducted a site visit on June 22, 2012. The Commission noted the 
topography, adjacent uses, and natural features of the parcel.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
The Planning Commission and the Board of County Commissioners conducted a joint public 
hearing on August 3, 2012. The following comments were received: 


 An email from Bob Benell, dated June 18, 2012, opposing the provision of joint industrial 
and residential use 


 An email from Aaron McLennan, dated August 2, 2012, expressing concerns related to 
traffic safety, noise, air and light pollution, and visual impacts 


 A letter from Ralph E. Clark, III, dated June 11, 2012, related to flooding and hazardous 
materials 


 Aaron McLennan, regarding traffic and water supply 


 Joe Puchek, stating that the combination of residential and industrial uses is incentive for 
people to start businesses. He also said that the proposed berming and landscaping will 
enhance the area. 


 Sally Hayes, expressed concerns about noise, air and light pollution. She would like to see 
more assurances about air quality. 


 Bob Gyedesen, stated that the residential component of the development is beneficial 
because people need to live onsite to make businesses feasible. 


 Jeff Wilkinson, said this is the best parcel in the County for the proposed use. 


 Jeff Dykes, said that he is in favor of the mixed use aspect of the development. 


 Bill Edward, property owner, expressed general support for the project. 


 Debby Heffner, said that workers need areas like the proposal. 
 


REVIEW AGENCY REFERRAL COMMENTS:  







Vista Business Park Draft Sketch Plan Recommendation 3 


A copy of the complete application was sent, by certified mail and hand delivery to review agencies 
for comments.  A referral was sent to the Gunnison County Public Works, Gunnison County 
Environmental Health, Gunnison County Wildlife Coordinator, Gunnison County Emergency 
Services, Gunnison County Trails Commission, City of Gunnison, Colorado Department of 
Transportation, Colorado Division of Water Resources, Colorado Division of Parks and Wildlife, 
Gunnison Fire Protection District. 
 
City of Gunnison: The subject property is located within three miles of the City of Gunnison. The 
City, in a letter dated April 25, 2012, comments noted that, “it seems that this application is 
compatible with some of the adjacent uses….The Planning and Zoning Commission absolutely 
opposes any proposed uses in this subdivision that would permit retail sales. The City Planning 
and Zoning Commission supports the application’s intent to develop a highway landscape buffer to 
mitigate visual impacts…Please note that the Gunnison Rising Annexation has very detailed 
landscape and buffer standards and it would be appropriate to require very specific performance 
buffer and landscape standards associated with this proposed subdivision.  
 
Gunnison County Environmental Health: Richard Stenson, in a memorandum dated April 25, 
2012 noted, “An ISDS can be feasible for each lot for residential use….It is important to note that 
prior to Gunnison County approval for ISDS permits on lots considering the following proposed 
uses, review and approval by the U.S. EPA Class V Underground Injection Control Program (EPA 
UIC) will be required: auto service repair, machinery and transportation equipment service, mixing 
plants, commercial laundries, wood and mineral processing/milling.  
 
Additionally, the applicant stated the use of ‘An oil and sand separator will be required for all floor 
drains.’ Floor drains that could drain into the septic systems or soils will also require review and 
approval under the EPA UIC Program for each of the above listed uses. 
 
Gunnison County Wildlife Coordinator: Jim Cochran, in a letter dated April 10, 2012 noted, “the 
highly developed industrial and residential setting makes this property a logical candidate for this 
type of development and is much preferable to development of a ‘new’ area with Gunnison Sage-
grouse habitat….this proposal, if approved, will not impact Gunnison Sage-grouse or their habitats 
beyond that which has already occurred.” 
 
Gunnison County Fire Protection District: In an email dated May 22, 2012 from Hugo Ferchau, 
Assistant Fire Marshal, the District noted they had no concerns related to access and requested 
that a dry hydrant be installed adjacent to the augmentation pond. 
 
Colorado Division of Water Resources: Comments from Karlyn Adams, Water Resource 
Engineer, dated April 26, 2012, noted that a “court decreed plan for augmentation is required to 
offset depletions caused by the pumping of any wells within the subdivision.”  
 
Colorado Division of Parks and Wildlife: Comments from Jeff Oulton, Acting Area Wildlife 
Manager, dated April 10, 2012, notes that the “proposed project to subdivide the parcel should not 
create any major impacts to wildlife beyond those that already exist at the site with one exception. 
Gunnison’s prairie dogs are present on the property and are a candidate for listing under the 
Federal Endangered Species Act…Should it be deemed necessary to have the prairie dogs 
removed from this sit, CPW requests prior notification and opportunity to relocate, conduct 
research, or use these animals for other conservation needs. If the above actions are not feasible, 
it is understood that it may be necessary for the applicant to conduct lethal control to remove the 
Gunnison prairie dogs from the site. 
 
CPW also agrees with recommendations made by Gunnison County Wildlife Coordinator 
concerning the control of pets, specifically dogs and cats, and requests compliance to help 
minimize any negative impacts to wildlife due to increased interaction.” 
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Colorado Department of Transportation: In an email from Dan Roussin dated April 24, 2012, 
noted that “The applicant will need to provide a traffic study that shows that the development will 
not increase the traffic volume by 20%.  If the development does increase the traffic volume on 
either road then a new access permit will be required with this development.  Looking at the two 
access points (Industrial Park Road and Vader Road), I have concerns with the possible sight 
distance issues because of the curvature of the road.” 
 
COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THE GUNNISON COUNTY LAND USE 
RESOLUTION:  
 
Section 9-100: Uses Secondary to a Primary Residence. 
Not applicable. No secondary uses are proposed as part of this application.  
 
Section 9-200: Special Residential Uses. 
Not applicable. No special residential uses are proposed as part of this application. 
 
Section 9-300: Commercial and Industrial Uses. 
Applicable, the applicant has identified permitted commercial and industrial uses that will be 
allowed in the development. All commercial and industrial uses shall comply with the standards of 
this Section.  
 
Section 9-400: Exploration, Extraction and Processing of Minerals and Construction 
Materials. 
Not applicable. No exploration, extraction or processing of materials is proposed.   
 
Section 9-500: Miscellaneous Uses and Activities. 
Not applicable. No miscellaneous uses or activities are proposed. 
 
Section 10-102: Locational Standards for Residential Development.   
Not applicable, the residential development proposed as part of the subdivision is accessory to the 
primary use of commercial or industrial for each lot. The proposed development is within the City 
of Gunnison Three Mile Plan area.  
 
Section 10-103: Residential Density. 
Not applicable, the residential development proposed as part of the subdivision is accessory to the 
primary use of commercial or industrial for each lot. The proposed development is within the City 
of Gunnison Three Mile Plan area.  
 
Section 10-104: Locational Standards for Commercial, Industrial, and other Non-Residential 
Uses. 
Applicable, the proposed development is within the City of Gunnison Three Mile Plan area and the 
City of Gunnison has commented on the proposal, stating, “Based on the existing Three-Mile map, the 
property is designated as Rural Residential (1 unit per 5-35 or more acres) and is located outside of 
the Urban Growth Boundary….While the proposed industrial use is not contemplated by the Three-
Mile Plan because it is not immediately adjacent to existing city Industrial zones, the adjacent area is 
the Signal Peak Industrial Park. It seems that the application is compatible with some of the adjacent 
uses.” 
 
Section 11-103: Development In Areas Subject to Flood Hazards. 
Applicable, portions of the subject parcel are within the 100-year floodplain. The location of the 
floodplain is delineated on Exhibit G, Development Layout Plan, prepared by NCW & Associates, 
Inc. dated March 10, 2012. Preliminary Plan review requires the applicant to formulate detailed, 
designed/engineered solutions to the issues and concerns identified during Sketch Plan review, 
and to address those issues, in a site-specific manner. 
 
Section 11-104: Development in Areas Subject to Geologic Hazards.   
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Not applicable, the subject parcel is not in an area of geologic hazards. 
 
Section 11-105: Development In Areas Subject to Wildfire Hazards. 
Applicable, the subject parcel is in an area of low wildfire hazard. A copy of the application was 
referred to Gunnison Fire Protection District (District) for review and comment. The District did not 
identify any concerns related to wildfire on the subject parcel. 
 
Section 11-106:  Protection of Wildlife Habitat Areas. 
The application was referred to the Division of Parks and Wildlife (DPW). Comments from DPW 
noted, “the proposed project to subdivide the parcel should not create any major impacts to wildlife 
beyond those that already exist at the site with one exception. Gunnison’s prairie dogs are present 
on the property and are a candidate for listing under the Federal Endangered Species Act. The 
applicant has been in contact with CPW biologists and is aware of this status.” Gunnison County 
Wildlife Coordinator, Jim Cochran, also commented on the proposed use and stated: “the highly 
developed industrial and residential setting makes this property a logical candidate for this type of 
development and is much preferable to development of a ‘new’ area with Gunnison Sage-grouse 
habitat….this proposal, if approved, will not impact Gunnison Sage-grouse or their habitats beyond 
that which has already occurred.” 
 
The Planning Commission requested that Nick Gallowich, District Area Wildlife Manager for 
Gunnison East, attend a work session to provide additional information. The Planning Commission 
requested information about accidents between cars and deer. Commissioner Reed expressed 
specific concern that the proposed use may increase the incidences of the car/deer accidents along 
Highway 50. Gallowich responded that the location of the proposed Vista Business Park between 
existing industrial and commercial uses makes it unattractive to deer and does not increase the 
likelihood of additional accidents. The Commission also inquired about the status of Gunnison’s 
prairie dog. Gallowich indicated that at this time the DPW is not relocating the animals and if the 
property owner wishes to relocate or exterminate them they will not object.  
 
Section 11-107: Protection of Water Quality.  
Applicable, the proposed development is within 125 feet of a water body. A wetlands delineation 
has been prepared by Colorado Land & Water Specialists, LLC and the location of the wetlands 
and the floodplain are identified on Exhibit G, Development Layout Plan. The applicant has 
proposed building envelopes in compliance with this Section that meet the inner restrictive buffer 
requirements. A water quality protection plan, in compliance with this Section, shall be required at 
Preliminary Plan. 
 
Section 11-108: Standards For Development On Ridgelines.  
 Not applicable. The site is not located on a ridgeline. 
 
Section 11-109: Development That Affects Agricultural Lands. 
Not applicable, the subject parcel will not directly affect agricultural lands. 
 
Section 11-110: Development Of Land Beyond Snowplowed Access. 
Not applicable, the site is not located beyond snowplowed access.  
 
Section 11-111: Development On Inholdings In The National Wilderness. 
Not applicable, the site is not located on a National Wilderness inholding. 
 
Section 11-112: Development On Property Above Timberline. 
Not applicable, the site is not located above timberline. 
 
Section 12-103:  Road System. 
Applicable, a copy of the application was referred to Gunnison County Public Works and the 
Colorado Department of Transportation. The applicant has identified the general locations of roads 
and access in compliance with Sketch Plan requirements. Engineered road plans and traffic studies 
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are not required or accepted at Sketch Plan. A copy of the application has been referred to Gunnison 
County Public Works and CDOT.  
 
Allen Moores noted, “The standards to which the proposed road will be constructed, will be addressed 
at the required meeting our office and the applicant. It would appear that an easement is required for 
the proposed east access point.” 
 
Dan Roussin of CDOT noted, “The applicant will need to provide a traffic study that shows that the 
development will not increase the traffic volume by 20%.  If the development does increase the 
traffic volume on either road then a new access permit will be required with this 
development.  Looking at the two access points (Industrial Park Road and Vader Road), I have 
concerns with the possible sight distance issues because of the curvature of the road.” 
 
Section 12-104:  Public Trails. 
There is no public trail existing or proposed on this site.  
 
Section 12-105: Water Supply.  
The applicant proposes 4-6 shared wells for the development. Attorney Kendall Burgemeister 
submitted a letter of feasibility (Tab P of the application) for the proposed development. A copy of the 
application was referred to the CO Division of Water Resources. Comments from the Division include: 
“This area of Tomichi Creek is over-appropriated; therefore, a court decreed plan for augmentation 
plan is required to offset depletions caused by the pumping of any wells within the subdivision. The 
applicant indicates that they intend on developing a plan for augmentation, however a plan has not yet 
been submitted to the Water Court. Until a plan is approved by the water court, this subdivision will not 
have a legal water supply.” 
 
Section 12-106: Sewage Disposal/Wastewater Treatment.   
Applicable, Individual sewage disposal systems are proposed for each lot. A copy of the application 
was referred to the Environmental Health Official. Stenson commented that, “An ISDS (Individual 
Sewage Disposal System) can be feasible for each lot for residential use.  A Gunnison County 
ISDS application and permit would be required. It is important to note that, prior to Gunnison County 
approval for ISDS permits on lots considering the following proposed uses, review and approval by 
the United States Environmental Protection Agency Class V Underground Injection Control 
Program (EPA UIC) will be required. Additionally, the applicant stated the use of ‘An oil and sand 
separator will be required for all floor drains.’ (Section IV and elsewhere)  Floor drains that could 
drain into the septic system or soils will also require review and approval under the EPA UIC 
Program for each of the above listed uses. 
 
I have met with Mr. Hearne during discussions with the EPA and he has expressed the willingness 
to comply with the EPA UIC Program.  I recommend UIC Program considerations during the 
Gunnison County Planning Commission review for this application.” 
 
Section 12-107: Fire Protection.  
The proposed development is located within the Gunnison Fire Protection District. The application 
was referred to the Gunnison Fire Protection District and the District commented that everything 
“including access” looks fine. The District requested that the applicant install a dry hydrant on the 
subject parcel.  
  
Section 13-103: General Site Plan Standards And Lot Measurements. 
The site plan for this proposed development must meet the site plan criteria of this section, including 
proposed and existing roads, driveways, lot lines, building sites, and natural features of the site.  
The site plan prepared by NCW & Associates, titled, “Exhibit G, Development Layout Plan” dated 
March 10, 2012 meets these criteria.  
 
Section 13-104: Setbacks from Property Lines and Road Rights-of-Way. 
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This section applies; the proposed improvements meet the commercial and industrial setback 
requirements. The proposed development complies with all setback requirements adjacent to other 
parcels. The setbacks between the proposed lots comply with the 15-foot setback required between 
adjacent commercial and industrial uses. 
 
Section 13-105: Residential Building Sizes and Lot Coverages. 
Applicable, the submitted protective covenants restrict the maximum residential building size to 
2,500 square feet.  
 
Section 13-106: Energy and Resource Conservation. 
Applicable, this section will be applied at the time of building permit application. 
 
Section 13-107: Installation of Solid Fuel-Burning Devices 
This section applies and any solid fuel-burning devices proposed shall comply with this section. 
 
Section 13-108: Open Space And Recreation Areas  
Applicable, the proposed development is within the City of Gunnison Three-Mile Plan, however there 
are no adopted standards in the Intergovernmental Agreement for open space, therefore the county 
standards apply.  
 
The application is required to comply with Section 13-108: F.1 through the inclusion of landscaping 
elements and property line setbacks. The applicant has identified 2.2 acres (or 7.7% of the total 
acreage) of defined open space on the Development Layout Plan. Landscaping elements and 
setbacks are also identified on the Development Layout Plan and on the Landscaping Plan (Exhibit 
G2). Twelve spruce trees, 37 cottonwood trees, and 21 new shrubs are proposed in the landscaping 
plan.  
 
Section 13-109: Signs. 
There are no signs proposed as part of the Sketch Plan application. Staff has discussed this 
Section with the applicant and recommended that a sign proposal be submitted with the 
Preliminary Plan.  
 
Section 13-110: Off-Road Parking And Loading. 
Applicable, individual parcels and uses are required to comply with this Section.   
 
Section 13-111: Landscaping And Buffering.  
A landscaping plan is required and has been submitted as Exhibit G2, Landscaping Plan. The 
applicant is proposing twelve spruce trees, 37 cottonwood trees, and 21 new shrubs. Additional 
landscaping requirements are identified on Page 4 of the narrative of the Sketch Plan application and 
include specific requirements for individual lots that are included in the protective covenants.  
 
Section 13-112: Snow storage. 
Applicable, the applicant is required to include language in the covenants identifying the HOA as 
responsible for snow removal and become familiar with the requirements of this Section. 
 
Section 13-113: Fencing  
Applicable, this section applies and any fencing proposed shall comply with this section. 
 
Section 13-114: Exterior Lighting.   
Applicable, this section applies and any exterior lighting proposed shall comply with this section. 
Additionally, commercial and industrial uses are required to comply with the exterior lighting 
requirements of Section 9-301: D.6. Exterior Lighting. The protective covenants address exterior 
lighting requirements in Section 5.7.  
 
Section 13-115:  Reclamation And Noxious Weed Control. 
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Applicable, the applicant has acknowledged that a reclamation plan, prepared in compliance with 
this Section, shall be required at Preliminary Plan. A reclamation permit is required for road cutting 
and/or construction, homesite clearing and berm construction.  
 
Section 13-116: Grading And Erosion Control. 
Applicable, the Sketch Plan shall be guided by the requirements of this Section, however specific 
details are not required at Sketch Plan. Grading activities are required to secure a Reclamation 
Permit from the Public Works Department, pursuant to Section 13-115: Reclamation and Noxious 
Weed Control. 
 
Section 13-117: Drainage, Construction And Post-Construction Stormwater Runoff. 
Applicable, the Sketch Plan shall be guided by the requirements of this Section, however specific 
details are not required at Sketch Plan. 
 
Section 13-118: Water Impoundments. 
Not applicable, this project does not propose a water impoundment that is greater than 99-acre 
feet. 
 
Section 13-119: Standards to Ensure Compatible Uses. 
The proposed development has been designed in a manner that will not adversely affect the 
character and tranquility of nearby residential or public use areas.  
 
Article 15: Right-to-Ranch Policy.   
This section is not applicable; there are no agricultural lands that will be affected by the uses on 
the subject parcel.    
 
FINDINGS: 
The Gunnison County Planning Commission finds that: 
 
1. This application, by definition, is classified as a Major Impact. 
2. The proposed development is not located adjacent to a municipality but is within the City of 


Gunnison Three Mile Plan area.  
3. Gunnison County and the City of Gunnison have an Intergovernmental Agreement for the 


Three Mile Plan area.  
4. The Planning Commission has expressed concern that compatible uses and siting within the 


development be considered. It has been noted that some heavy industrial uses may not be 
appropriate adjacent to other “lighter” commercial uses (e.g. a smelter next to landscaping 
nursery) and any associated residences. 


5. Gunnison County will determine, based upon test results required to be submitted as part of 
the Preliminary Plan application, whether, pursuant to Section 12-105: G.8., additional well 
testing will be required during January or February to ensure that a year-round, consistent 
supply of water will be available to this development. 


6. There are no signs proposed as part of this Sketch Plan application. Sign elements as allowed 
by Section 13-109: Signs may be proposed as part of the Preliminary Plan. 


7. Draft protective covenants or deed restrictions are to be submitted within the Preliminary Plan 
are required, along with language on the final plat regarding confinement of domestic animals, 
fence-out requirements, and irrigation ditch maintenance. 


8. Integration of the standards of Section 13-119: Standards to Ensure Compatible Uses, as well 
as other measures to mitigate issues raised during this Sketch Plan review is required within 
the Preliminary Plan submittal. 


9. Pursuant to Section 7-102:Standards of Approval for Major Impact Projects: 


a. This Sketch Plan application is generally consistent with the standards and requirements of the 
Resolution, pursuant to Section 7-103,  i.e., compliance of the proposed land use change with 
the standards of the Resolution are required to be determined broadly and conceptually during 
Sketch Plan review. This application has broadly addressed, and the Commission has broadly 
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evaluated this submittal for its integration of the standards of the Resolution within its conceptual 
presentation of the proposed development.  It is expected that, pursuant to Section 7-103: C., in 
the submittal of Preliminary Plan,  the applicant shall formulate detailed, designed/engineered 
solutions to the issues and concerns identified during this Sketch Plan review, and shall address, 
in a site-specific manner, all other issues that are relevant to the Preliminary Plan. The burden 
in the Preliminary Plan review is on the applicant to provide detailed information and mitigation 
proposals for evaluation.  


b. The proposed land use change is required to be compatible with, or to enhance the character of 
existing land uses in the area surrounding the subject property, and shall not adversely impact 
the future development of the area surrounding the subject property.  


c. No phasing has been proposed by the applicant within this Sketch Plan submittal, and none is 
being recommended by the Planning Commission at this time. 


d. All uses have been identified on lots within this proposed subdivision. 


10. Approval of this Sketch Plan application constitutes a final decision of approval for the general 
development concept only, but shall not constitute approval of any detailed design or 
engineering submittals or proposed solutions to specific problems revealed during the Sketch 
Plan review or later in the review process. Sketch Plan approval by the Board shall not 
constitute approval of the Major Impact project, or permission to proceed with construction of 
any aspect of the proposed land use change. Approval at this stage only authorizes the 
applicant to submit a Preliminary Plan application. If, during the Preliminary and Final Plan 
reviews, the applicants are unable to fulfill all of the requirements of this Resolution, then the 
application shall be denied at the Preliminary or Final Plan review stage. 


11. The applicant shall be required to submit and actively pursue the completion of the Preliminary 
Plan application within 12 months after the date of approval of the Sketch Plan. Failure to 
submit a complete Preliminary Plan application within this time period shall render the Sketch 
Plan approval null and void, and required the applicant to begin the Sketch Plan review process 
again. 


12. This review and decision incorporates, but is not limited to, all the documentation submitted to 
the County and included within the Planning Office file relative to this application; including all 
exhibits, references and documents as included therein. 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The Gunnison County Planning Commission, having considered the submitted plan, site 
observations and public testimony, has reached the above findings and recommends that LUC-11-
00035 be classified as a Major Impact Sketch Plan, and that the Sketch Plan be approved with the 
following conditions: 
  
1. A traffic study in compliance with Section 12-106: E. is required to be submitted as part of the 


Preliminary Plan application. 
2. A detailed analysis of what type of uses will or will not be allowed and what level of county 


review will be required for varying uses is required to be submitted as part of the Preliminary 
Plan application. 


3. A detailed analysis of what type of uses will or will not be allowed adjacent to other uses is 
required to be submitted as part of the Preliminary Plan application. 


4. Gunnison County will determine, based upon test results required to be submitted as part of 
the Preliminary Plan application, whether, pursuant to Section 12-105: G.8., additional well 
testing will be required during January or February to ensure that a year-round, consistent 
supply of water will be available to this development.  


5. Integration of the standards of Section 13-119: Standards to Ensure Compatible Uses, as well 
as other measures to mitigate issues raised during this Sketch Plan review is required within 
the Preliminary Plan submittal. 


6. This permit is limited to activities described within the “Project Description” of this application, 
and as depicted on the Plan submitted as part of this application.  Expansion or change of this 
use will require either an application for amendment of this permit, or submittal of an application 
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for a new permit, in compliance with applicable requirements of the Gunnison County Land 
Use Resolution.   


7. This approval is founded on each individual requirement.  Should the applicant successfully 
challenge any such finding or requirement, this approval is null and void. 


8. This permit may be revoked or suspended if Gunnison County determines that any material 
fact set forth herein or represented by the applicant was false or misleading, or that the 
applicant failed to disclose facts necessary to make any such fact not misleading. 


9. The removal or material alteration of any physical feature of the property (geological, 
topographical or vegetative) relied on herein to mitigate a possible conflict shall require a new 
or amended land use change permit. 


 
10. Approval of this use is based upon the facts presented and implies no approval of similar use 


in the same or different location and/or with different impacts on the environment and 
community.  Any such future application shall be reviewed and evaluated, subject to its 
compliance with current regulations, and its impact to the County. 





		Agenda Item - Extension to Submit Preliminary Plan; Hearne Completed Form

		Email from C. Pagano

		Memo to BOCC request for extension

		Vista Business Park Draft Sketch Plan Recommendation










 


 
 
 
 
 
August 20, 2013 
 
 
 
Great Outdoors Colorado 
Attn:  Planning Program 
303 E. 17th Avenue, Suite 1060 
Denver, CO 80203 
 
RE:   City of Gunnison’s Grant Application 
 
Dear GOCO Grant Committee Members, 
 
The Gunnison County Board of County Commissioners supports the City of Gunnison’s grant application 
to update the City’s 1996 Parks and Recreation Master Plan.  
 
Updating the Master Plan will enable the City to evaluate current services and facilities, engage and 
survey the citizens to determine current and future needs, develop a list of prioritized projects, and 
identify potential funding sources. 
 
The City’s Parks and Recreation Department has done a wonderful job of providing opportunities for 
our citizens to remain active by creating and maintaining fantastic facilities and programming.  We urge 
you to give the City of Gunnison’s application your full consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
__________________________ ___________________________ __________________________ 
Paula Swenson, Chairperson Phil Chamberland, Commissioner Jonathan Houck, Commissioner 








GUNNISON/HINSDALE BOARD OF HUMAN SERVICES 


Meeting Agenda for August 20, 2013 
Commissioners Meeting Room at Courthouse 


 
 


 Call to Order at 10:30 am 


 


 Agenda Review; Minutes Approval 


 
 Approve Monthly Financial Reports 


 


 Health Insurance Expansion Update 


 
 State Strategic Planning Session 


 


 Next Meeting:  September 17, 2013 


 
 Adjourn at 11:00 am 


 


 


Please Note: Packet materials for the above discussions will be available on the Gunnison County website 
at http://www.gunnisoncounty.org/177/Agendas-Minutes-Portfolios no later than 6:00 pm 


on the Friday prior to the meeting. 



http://www.gunnisoncounty.org/177/Agendas-Minutes-Portfolios
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GUNNISON/HINSDALE BOARD OF HUMAN SERVICES 


MEETING MINUTES 
June 18, 2013 


 
The June 18, 2013 meeting of the Gunnison/Hinsdale Board of Human Services was held in the 


Commissioners’ boardroom in the Courthouse located at 200 E. Virginia, Gunnison, Colorado.  Present were: 


 
Phil Chamberland, Chairperson Renee Brown, Health and Human Services Director   


Susan Thompson, Vice-Chairperson (via phone) Matthew Birnie, County Manager   
Jonathan Houck, Commissioner Katherine Haase, Clerk to the Board 


Paula Swenson, Commissioner Other Persons Present as Listed in Text 
 


 


CALL TO ORDER:  Chairperson Chamberland called the meeting to order at 9:46 am.  Commissioner 
Thompson called into the meeting at 9:51 am, which was during the financial report, and remained on the 


phone for the remainder of the meeting. 
 


AGENDA REVIEW:  There were no changes to the agenda. 


 
MINUTES APPROVAL:  Moved by Chairperson Chamberland, seconded by Commissioner Houck to 


approve the May 21, 2013 meeting minutes.  Motion carried unanimously.   
 


APPROVE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS:  Staff Accountant Maureen Eden presented the financial 
report dated April 30, 2013 for discussion and approval.  Moved by Commissioner Swenson, seconded by 


Commissioner Houck to approve the financials.  Motion carried unanimously.  


 
CONNECT FOR HEALTH COLORADO AND HILLTOP UPDATE:  HHS Director Brown informed the Board 


that the Medicaid caseload will likely double with the upcoming changes.  A total of 1,491 people may 
access the system since they aren’t expected to have health insurance.  Funding is lower than expected, 


and the scope has been expanded.  The original proposal was for $3,400,000 in funding, and only $750,000 


was awarded.  Hilltop accepted the proposed changes, and have committed to serving via assistance sites 
in Delta, Gunnison and Mesa Counties.  Hilltop will also serve as the regional hub for the 12-county region, 


and will partner with some of the services within the counties.  To manage this additional anticipated 
workload, HHS Director Brown will analyze personnel and fiscal resources, and determine how much time 


will be necessary for the processing the new applications.  Open enrollment for private insurance begins in 


October, and Medicaid eligibility occurs in January.  Senior Resources Program Manager Karin Stewart will 
supervise all of the work.   


 
CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES PROGRAM UPDATE:  HHS Director Brown informed the Board that 


she is very pleased with this program’s performance.  Over the next year, she will implement the Colorado 
practice model to continue working on performance management.  She also stated her desire to work 


closely with the Juvenile Services Department toward better outcomes for children in the system. 


 
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT (CSBG) BOARD:  HHS Director Brown explained that an 


elected official needs to serve on this board that meets a few times per year.  Commissioner Chamberland 
volunteered to serve in this capacity.   


 


NEXT MEETING:  The next meeting was scheduled for July 16, 2013.   
 


ADJOURN:  Moved by Commissioner Swenson, seconded by Commissioner Houck to adjourn the meeting.  
Motion carried unanimously.  The meeting was adjourned at 10:14 am.   


 
Minutes Prepared By: 


 


 
 


 
_______________________________________ 


Katherine Haase, Clerk to the Board 


 
 


Minutes Approved (insert date): 
 


 


 
 


_______________________________________ 
Phil Chamberland, Chairperson 
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Gunnison/Hinsdale DHS Financial Report 
for the Period Ending


June 30, 2013


Jun-13 Jun-13 YTD Expense YTD Expense Estimate of


Expense Gunnison Hinsdale Total Gunnison Hinsdale Total Gunnison County Only $$
155 HB 1451 8,645.98        N/A 8,645.98        40,205.83      -                     40,205.83          -                             
340 Colorado Works (TANF) 19,863.47      5,475.68      25,339.15      93,853.55      11,971.75           105,825.30        18,770.71                  
350 Child Care 10,565.22      1,378.48      11,943.70      60,655.12      8,099.68             68,754.80          12,131.02                  
350 County Admin 26,867.39      126.52         26,993.91      155,812.38    750.58                156,562.96        31,162.48                  
360 Child Welfare 73,497.36      2,230.34      75,727.70      408,410.60    18,160.53           426,571.13        81,682.12                  
360 Core Services 9,420.06        747.99         10,168.05      52,132.20      4,706.45             56,838.65          10,426.44                  
365 Child Support Enforcement 7,746.88        -               7,746.88        44,623.67      65.64                  44,689.31          15,172.05                  
380 LEAP 357.59           (18.75)          338.84           65,182.94      1,927.89             67,110.83          -                             
380 Aid to Needy Disabled 2,277.48        -               2,277.48        15,123.38      -                     15,123.38          3,024.68                    
380 Old Age Pension 9,413.47        541.00         9,954.47        41,075.46      1,226.27             42,301.73          8,215.09                    
380 Medical Transportation 1,270.84        276.48         1,547.32        10,266.42      3,716.00             13,982.42          2,053.28                    
380 Food Assistance 148,342.00    2,842.00      151,184.00    854,369.01    15,623.00           869,992.01        -                             
380 Grants 5,823.74        -               5,823.74        30,761.61      -                     30,761.61          -                             


324,091.48    13,599.74    337,691.22    1,872,472.17 66,247.79           1,938,719.96     182,637.87                


May-13 May-13


Expense Gunnison Hinsdale Total Gunnison Hinsdale Total 
155 HB 1451 6,506.25        N/A 6,506.25        2,139.73        2,139.73            
340 Colorado Works (TANF) 15,135.54      294.14         15,429.68      4,727.93        5,181.54             9,909.47            
350 Child Care 10,968.71      1,940.98      12,909.69      (403.49)          (562.50)              (965.99)              
350 County Admin 26,285.20      104.00         26,389.20      582.19           22.52                  604.71               
360 Child Welfare 70,192.98      3,527.05      73,720.03      3,304.38        (1,296.71)           2,007.67            
360 Core Services 8,694.32        747.99         9,442.31        725.74           -                     725.74               
365 Child Support Enforcement 7,655.60        -               7,655.60        91.28             -                     91.28                 
380 LEAP 6,748.66        200.00         6,948.66        (6,391.07)       (218.75)              (6,609.82)           
380 Aid to Needy Disabled 2,259.98        -               2,259.98        17.50             -                     17.50                 
380 Old Age Pension 5,822.97        685.27         6,508.24        3,590.50        (144.27)              3,446.23            
380 Medical Transportation 1,853.72        328.00         2,181.72        (582.88)          (51.52)                (634.40)              
380 Food Assistance 147,851.01    2,983.00      150,834.01    490.99           (141.00)              349.99               
380 Grants 4,997.14        -               4,997.14        826.60           -                     826.60               


-                 -                     -                     
314,972.08    10,810.43    325,782.51    9,119.40        2,789.31             11,908.71          


Signatures


_______________________________________________
Director, Gunnison/Hinsdale DHS


_______________________________________________
Chair, Gunnison/Hinsdale Board Human Services


Difference Between Current/Previous Month's Activity







Gunnison/Hinsdale DHS Financial 
Report for the Period Ending


June 30, 2013 Gunnison Gunnison Hinsdale Gunnison Hinsdale Gunnison Hinsdale Gunnison Hinsdale Gunnison Hinsdale Gunnison Hinsdale Gunnison Hinsdale Gunnison Hinsdale Gunnison Hinsdale Gunnison Hinsdale Gunnison Hinsdale Gunnison Gunnison Hinsdale Grand
 155-00-300 340-1 340-6 350-1 350-6 350-2 350-7 360-1 360-6 360-2 360-7 365-1 365-6 380-1 380-6 380-21 380-71 380-22 380-72 380-23 380-73 380-3 380-8 380-00-XXX


Expense HB 1451 CO Works CO Works Child Care Child Care Cty Admin Cty Admin Child Welfr Child Welfr Core Svcs Core Svcs Chld Supp Enf Chld Supp Enf LEAP LEAP AND AND OAP OAP Med Trans Med Trans Food Assist Food Assist Grants Totals Totals Totals
5110 SALARIES-DEPT HEAD/SUPERVISOR 408.66         8,338.15          1,167.60        9,914.41          -               9,914.41          
5111 SALARIES-FULL TIME 3,414.60     5,418.14     365.40       1,058.40     396.90       15,454.40        20,059.70        1,975.05    4,414.96        602.04      5,246.00          183.75       55,249.95        3,339.39      58,589.34        
5112 SALARIES-PART TIME 21.10           656.67         2,801.66          3,479.43          -               3,479.43          
5210 PAYROLL TAX-FICA 259.83         424.53         25.33         82.22           30.84         2,000.59          1,395.58          141.30       409.85           45.29         392.85             14.34         4,979.79          242.76         5,222.55          
5220 HEALTH INSURANCE 503.06         960.42         64.67         0.49             0.19           1,907.74          3,435.52          255.90       641.94           58.98         522.22             7,971.39          379.74         8,351.13          
5230 RETIREMENT 190.77         228.25         15.24         52.92           19.85         1,089.92          950.29             85.58         279.12           30.12         262.30             9.20           3,062.77          150.79         3,213.56          
5240 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 11.46           18.23           1.10           3.17             1.20           79.74                60.17               5.93           16.75             1.81           15.74               0.56           205.82             10.04           215.86             
5250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANC 14.13           83.93           3.30           3.20             1.20           87.47                240.20             16.30         79.00             9.00           16.00               0.55           524.48             29.80           554.28             
5260 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PREMIUM 5.91             9.15             0.64           2.50             0.94           34.19                30.00               2.81           6.75                0.75           6.25                 0.32           95.07               5.14             100.21             
6110 OFFICE SUPPLIES 836.76             276.11             1,112.87          -               1,112.87          
6120 OPERATING SUPPLIES 149.99         79.98                229.97             -               229.97             
6170 POSTAGE 2.04             15.99                18.03               -               18.03               
6180 PHOTOCOPY 5.96             (0.60)                5.36                 -               5.36                 
6610 EQUIP & FURN UNDER $4000 -                  -               -                  
6611 COMPUTER EQUP UNDER $1000 -                  -               -                  
6620 SOFTWARE UNDER $1000 -                  -               -                  
7020 TELEPHONE SERVICE 26.00           598.00             624.00             -               624.00             
7021 TELEPHONE-LONG DISTANCE 35.00           35.00               -               35.00               
7022 CELL PHONE 405.00             405.00             -               405.00             
7030 COMPUTER SERVICE 705.00             705.00             -               705.00             
7210 REPAIR & MAINT - BLDG -                  -               -                  
7220 REPAIRS & MAINT-EQUIPMENT -                  -               -                  
7245 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 290.00             290.00             -               290.00             
7310 TRAVEL - TRANSPORTATION 1.25             74.44                48.49        206.71             93.30               1,270.84    276.48       1,646.54          324.97         1,971.51          
7311 TRAVEL - MOTOR POOL 474.32         325.92         262.64             650.16             1,713.04          -               1,713.04          
7312 TRAVEL - MEALS 86.19           18.84           154.57             28.17               287.77             -               287.77             
7313 TRAVEL - LODGING 253.24         451.76             705.00             -               705.00             
7322 LEGAL SERVICES -                  -               -                  
7326 ACCOUNTING -                  -               -                  
7329 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2,100.25     5,000.00    1,527.15          78.04        3,024.42          28.50               874.25         5,615.02    13,169.59        5,078.04      18,247.63        
7330 MEETINGS - SUPPLIES -                  -               -                  
7331 MEETINGS - MEALS 87.92               87.92               -               87.92               
7332 MEETINGS - REGISTRATIONS 160.00             310.00             470.00             -               470.00             
7333 RENTAL - EQUIPMENT 250.00         250.00             -               250.00             
7334 RENTAL - BUILDINGS & LAND -                  -               -                  
7341 BUILDING RENT 6,593.00          6,593.00          -               6,593.00          
7352 DISPATCH FEES -                  -               -                  
7361 BOOKS & SUBSCRIPTIONS 35.00                35.00               -               35.00               
7363 SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTIONS -                  -               -                  
7410 ADVERTISING & LEGAL NOTICES 110.50         119.55             230.05             -               230.05             
7412 E-FILE & SERVE
7420 PRINTING & PUBLISHING -                  -               -                  
7430 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS -                  -               -                  
7440 SCHOOLS & TRAINING 95.00           95.00               -               95.00               
7460 AUDITING 4,734.85          4,734.85          -               4,734.85          
7470 INSURANCE & BONDS 3.60                  3.60                 -               3.60                 
7490 MAPPING SERVICES 21.98                21.98               -               21.98               
7491 COMPUTER SERVICE FEES 337.22         195.83             533.05             -               533.05             
7492 EQUIPMENT USAGE 536.67             536.67             -               536.67             
7502 ELECTRONIC BENEFITS TRANSFERS 4,954.00     7,538.81     939.80       16,657.53        (264.98)     2,404.09        (516.66)       (18.75)        2,277.48    8,522.01     541.00       148,342.00     2,842.00    190,179.26      4,039.07      194,218.33      
7801 TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND 3,813.62          8,941.65          1,135.55          13,890.82        -               13,890.82        
8420 EQUIPMENT -                  -               -                  
9012 RMS EXPENSE 6,999.65     1,478.75     (12.44)        (25,934.93)       (0.01)         16,565.07        12.45         891.46        0.00                 -               0.00                 


-                  -               -                  
-                  -               -                  


Totals 8,645.98     19,863.47   5,475.68    10,565.22   1,378.48    26,867.39        126.52      73,497.36        2,230.34    9,420.06        747.99      7,746.88          -                   357.59         (18.75)        2,277.48    -             9,413.47     541.00       1,270.84    276.48       148,342.00     2,842.00    5,823.74    324,091.48      13,599.74    337,691.22      


2013 YTD Actual 40,205.83   93,853.55   11,971.75 60,655.12   8,099.68    155,812.38      750.58      408,410.60      18,160.53 52,132.20      4,706.45   44,623.67        65.64               65,182.94   1,927.89    15,123.38 -             41,075.46  1,226.27    10,266.42 3,716.00    854,369.01     15,623.00 30,761.61 1,872,472.17   66,247.79    1,938,719.96   
2013 Year to Date Budget 103,470.00 186,475.00 42,007.00 133,272.00 8,941.00    336,336.00      2,505.00   791,234.00      30,743.00 97,894.00      25,225.00 98,975.00        -                   160,000.00 5,000.00    22,000.00 -             44,590.00  -             30,000.00 -             1,560,000.00  30,000.00 52,224.00 3,760,891.00     
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FAST Self Suff Pgm Supp Child&Fam Svc Child Supp Enf Pub Asst Totals
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT


To the Board of County Commissioners
Gunnison County, Colorado


Report on the Financial Statements


We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of Gunnison County, Colorado (the “County”), as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2012, and the related noted to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  


Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.


Auditor’s Responsibility


Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.


An audit includes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the County’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 


We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions.







To the Board of County Commissioners
Gunnison County, Colorado
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Opinions


In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Gunnison County, Colorado as of December 31, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position 
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.


Other Matters


Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis in Section B be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.


The budgetary comparison information in section E is not a required part of the basic financial statements 
but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  The budgetary comparison information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statement or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, 
the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.


Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the County’s financial statements taken as a whole.  The combining fund financial statements,
individual fund budgetary information, the Local Highway Finance Report, and the statistical section listed 
in the accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the County’s financial statements. The combining fund financial statements, the
individual fund budgetary information, and the Local Highway Finance Report are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In 
our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as 
a whole.  The statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.







To the Board of County Commissioners
Gunnison County, Colorado
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Additionally, the Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges Collected and Expended in section F, and the 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards included in the Single Audit section are presented for the 
purpose of additional analysis, as required by the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public 
Agencies, issued by the Federal Aviation Administration, and U.S. Office of Management and Budget 
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and are not a 
required part of the County’s financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the financial statement or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In 
our opinion, the Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges Collected and Expended and the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. 


Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards


In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 31, 2013
on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance.


McMahan and Associates, L.L.C.
Avon, Colorado
July 31, 2013
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Gunnison County, Colorado 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 


December 31, 2012


As management of the Gunnison County (the “County”), we offer readers of the County’s financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2012.


Financial Highlights


 On a short term view, the County’s governmental funds decreased $1,267,089.  This was 
primarily due to decreases in the Airport Construction Fund related to capital outlays on the 
runway.


 On a long term view the County’s governmental activities increased net position by $87,754.  This
occurred because a portion of the County’s fund expenditures were invested in capital assets that 
had a useful life of longer than one year.


 On a short term view the County’s business type funds available resources decreased                 


$ (259,636).  This is mainly due to decreases in the Airport Operations Fund.


 On a long-term view the County’s business type activities decreased net position by $ (783,781).  
This decrease is primarily due to decreases in the Airport Operations Fund and Landfill 
Operations Fund.


Overview of the Financial Statements


This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financial 
statements.  The County’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements; 2) fund financial statements; and 3) notes to the financial statements.  This 
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements 
themselves.   The County has three component units: 1) The Gunnison Valley Hospital and Health Care 
Center, 2) the Gunnison County Housing Authority (“Authority”) and 3) the Gunnison River Valley Local 
Marketing District.  The latter two entities are treated as a blended component unit, meaning they are 
treated as funds of the County, because their Boards are the same as the Board of County 
Commissioners.  The Hospital is treated as a discretely presented component unit.  Refer to the Hospitals 
separately issued financial statements.


Government-wide Financial Statements:  The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector 
business. 


The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the County’s assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or 
deteriorating. 


The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues 
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and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future 
fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes). 


Overview of the Financial Statements (continued)


Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that 
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges, (business-
type activities).  The governmental activities of the County include general government, judicial, public 
safety, health and welfare, auxiliary services, culture and recreation and public works.  The business-type 
activities of the County include those relating to the airport, water systems, sewer systems, landfill and 
housing operations. 


The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages C1 and C2 of this report. 


Fund Financial Statements:  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control 
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The County, like other 
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the County can be divided into three categories: 
governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. 


Governmental Funds:  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows 
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end 
of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing 
requirements.  The County’s major governmental funds include the General Fund, Road and Bridge 
Fund, Human Services Fund, Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund, Airport Construction, and Capital 
Expenditures Fund.  The County also reports a number of minor governmental funds. 


Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing 
decisions.  The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and 
governmental activities. 


The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for all its Funds.  A budgetary comparison statement 
has been provided for all funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 


The basic major governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages C3 through C6.


Proprietary Funds:  The County maintains proprietary funds commonly known as enterprise funds.  
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements.  The County uses enterprise funds to account for its airport, water, 
sewer, landfill and housing authority operations.


Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only 
in more detail.  The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for each of the 
business-type services provided by the County, each of which is considered to be a major fund of the 
County. 


The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages C7 through C9 of this report. 
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2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011


Assets:


  Current and other assets 31,529,183      32,447,845 5,383,822  5,541,220   36,913,005  37,989,065  


  Capital assets, net 37,115,859      37,431,688 45,723,103 45,603,290 82,838,962  83,034,978  


     Total Assets 68,645,042      69,879,533 51,106,925 51,144,510 119,751,967 121,024,043


Deferred Outflow of Resources:


  Deferred Outflow  of Resources 111,097           115,064      291,829     305,726      402,926       420,790       


     Total Outflow of Resources 111,097           115,064      291,829     305,726      402,926       420,790       


Liabilities:


  Other liabilities 5,115,576        5,648,800   316,771     229,010      5,432,347    5,877,810    


  Long-term liabilities 19,140,238      20,609,695 5,466,785  4,822,247   24,607,023  25,431,942  


     Total Liabilities 24,255,814      26,258,495 5,783,556  5,051,257   30,039,370  31,309,752  


Deferred Inflow of Resources:


  Deferred Inflow  of Resources 6,164,441        6,271,753   -             -             6,164,441    6,271,753    


     Total Inflow of Resources 6,164,441        6,271,753   -             -             6,164,441    6,271,753    


Net Position:


Net investment in capital assets 18,166,877      16,355,869 41,388,256 41,967,023 59,555,133  58,322,892  


  Restricted 2,200,937        2,492,683   1,263,534  29,163        3,464,471    2,521,846    


  Unrestricted 17,968,070      18,615,797 2,963,408  4,402,793   20,931,478  23,018,590  


     Total Net Position 38,335,884      37,464,349 45,615,198 46,398,979 83,951,082  83,863,328  


Total


Governmental Business-type


Activities Activities


Overview of the Financial Statements (continued)


Fiduciary Funds:  Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties 
outside the government.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements 
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s own programs.  The 
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.  The fiduciary funds used 
by the County account for the County Treasurer and the Public Trustee, both of which collect and hold 
assets on behalf of other individuals and governments.


The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on page C10 of this report. 


Notes to the Financial Statements:  The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The Notes to 
the Financial Statements can be found in Section D of this report. 


Government-wide Financial Analysis


Traditionally, the largest portion of any County’s investments is in its capital assets.  Land, buildings, 
equipment, machinery, and specialized tools are necessary in order to deliver and/or provide services to 
the County’s residents and visitors.  


At the end of the 2012 fiscal year, the County is able to report positive balances in all three categories of 
net position, first for the government as a whole, and then as separate governmental and business-type 
activities.
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2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011


Revenues:


  Program revenues:


Charges for services 2,815,781        3,673,658   2,900,241  3,043,143   5,716,022    6,716,801    


Grants and contributions 12,296,792      13,319,416 70,510       249,557      12,367,302  13,568,973  


  General revenues:


Sales taxes 1,726,268        1,686,927   35,683       26,875        1,761,951    1,713,802    


Property taxes 7,278,102        7,883,886   -         -         7,278,102    7,883,886    


Other taxes 1,506,691        1,402,126   -             -             1,506,691    1,402,126    


Interest and other revenue 192,290           260,141      47,940       53,379        240,230       313,520       


       Total Revenues 25,815,924      28,226,154 3,054,374  3,372,954   28,870,298  31,599,108  


Expenses:


General government 8,082,650        7,624,020   -             -             8,082,650    7,624,020    


Judicial 252,849           252,849      -             -             252,849       252,849       


Public safety 2,686,129        2,715,499   -             -             2,686,129    2,715,499    


Health and w elfare 4,993,542        4,867,706   -             -             4,993,542    4,867,706    


Auxiliary services 254,582           274,322      -             -             254,582       274,322       


Culture and recreation 1,236,329        309,426      -             -             1,236,329    309,426       


Public w orks 5,177,367        6,174,063   -             -             5,177,367    6,174,063    


Interest on long-term debt 1,040,570        918,259      -             -             1,040,570    918,259       


Airport operations -                   -              2,646,560  2,727,211   2,646,560    2,727,211    


Sew er -                   -              545,648     586,233      545,648       586,233       


Water -                   -              521,288     507,134      521,288       507,134       


Landfill -                   -              684,346     583,091      684,346       583,091       


Housing -                   -              313,538     335,403      313,538       335,403       


       Total Expenses 23,724,018      23,136,144 4,711,380  4,739,072   28,435,398  27,875,216  


Change in Net Position


 before Transfers 2,091,906        5,090,010   (1,657,006) (1,366,118) 434,900       3,723,892    


Transfers (868,869)          (2,282,345)  868,869     2,282,345   -               -               


Loss on disposals (351,502)          (527)            4,356         (430)           (347,146)      (957)             


(1,220,371)       (2,282,872)  873,225     2,281,915   (347,146)      (957)             


Change in Net Position 871,535           2,807,138   (783,781)    915,797      87,754         3,722,935    


Net Position - Beginning 37,464,349      34,657,211 46,398,979 45,381,115 83,863,328  80,038,326  


Prior Period Adjustment -                   -              102,067      -               102,067       


Net Position - Beginning 37,464,349      34,657,211 46,398,979 45,483,182 83,863,328  80,140,393  


Net Position - Ending 38,335,884      37,464,349 45,615,198 46,398,979 83,951,082  83,863,328  


Total


Governmental Business-type


Activities Activities


Government-wide Financial Analysis (continued)


Governmental Activities:  Governmental activities increased $817,535 while Business-type activities 
decreased $783,781.  Key elements of this increase were as follows: 


Significant events impacting 2012 were:  


 Net position as a result of governmental activities increased $871,535 because total 
governmental revenues exceeded total governmental expenses.  


 Net position as a result of business type activities decreased $783,781 because total business 
type expenditures exceeded total business type revenues. 
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Beginning Ending % of


Available Increase Available 2012 EAV to


Resources (Decrease) Resources Expenditures Expenditures


(Restated)


Governmental Major Funds:


General Fund 7,638,099        (189,172)     7,448,927  13,045,170 57%


Road & Bridge 5,188,944        (473,383)     4,715,561  5,873,397   80%


Human Services Fund 467,740           24,821        492,561     3,590,031   14%


Sales Tax Fund 1,015,345        846,073      1,861,419  848,447      219%


Airport Construction Fund 659,889           (961,236)     (301,348)    2,385,004   -13%


Capital Expenditures Fund 2,701,837        (370,660)     2,331,177  437,339      533%


Non-Major Funds 1,751,809        (143,531)     1,608,278  3,727,706   43%


Business Type Funds:


Airport Operations Fund 1,033,328        (266,666)     766,662     1,423,782   54%


Sew er Fund 824,096           64,294        888,390     498,263      178%


Water Fund 288,138           925             289,063     1,050,245   28%


Solid Waste Fund 2,831,561        (45,061)       2,786,500  908,847      307%


Assisted Living Fund 3,050               -              3,050         36,821        8%


Mountain View  Fund 180,366           (13,128)       167,238     237,820      70%


Internal Service Funds:


ISF I Fund 1,366,724        180,075      1,546,799  2,835,241   55%


ISF II Fund 563,969           19,383        583,352     740,872      79%


ISF III Fund 985,477           126,071      1,111,548  2,199,132   51%


27,500,372      (1,201,195)  26,299,177 39,838,117 66%


Government-wide Financial Analysis (continued)


Financial Analysis of the County's Funds 


As mentioned earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements.  All County funds had a nominal change in available resources:


The County’s available resources for 2012 is charted below:


Governmental 
Funds:  The 
focus of the 
County’s 
governmental 
funds is to 
provide 
information on 
near-term 
inflows, 
outflows, and 
balances of 
spendable 
resources.  
Such 
information is 
useful in 
assessing the 
County's 
financing 
requirements.  
In particular, 
unreserved fund 
balances may 
serve as a 
useful measure 
of a 
government's 
net resources 
available for 


spending at the end of the fiscal year. 


As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds decreased $1,267,088.  This 
was primarily due to a decrease in the Airport Construction Fund related to capital outlays on the runway.  
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Government-wide Financial Analysis (continued)


Financial Analysis of the County's Funds 


The following chart represents the County’s fund balances for the past several years.


0


5,000,000


10,000,000


15,000,000


20,000,000


25,000,000


30,000,000


35,000,000


40,000,000


2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012


Proprietary Funds:  The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the 
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.


The County’s proprietary funds decreased net position by $783,781.  


Budget Variances in the General Fund:  The General Fund budget was amended during the year by    


$1,412,976.  Actual Expenditures were $992,976 less than the amended budget.


Capital Assets:  The County’s capitalization policy pertains to assets with a purchase value of $4,000 or 
greater.  Assets of lesser value are treated as operational expenditures.  Additional information as well as 
a detailed classification of the County’s net capital assets can be found in the Notes to the Financial 
Statement in Section D of this report.


Long-term Debt:  As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County’s long-term liabilities totaled 
$25,788,843.  Additional information as well as a detailed classification of the County’s total long-term 
liabilities can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements in section D of this report.


Next Year's Budget and Rates: The County’s General Fund balance at the end of fiscal year 2012
totaled $7,448,926.  The 2013 budget anticipates decreasing this balance by $283,349. 


Request for Information 


This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s finances for all those with 
an interest.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional 
financial information should be addressed to Gunnison County, County Finance Director, 200 E. Virginia 
Avenue, Gunnison, CO  81230 







GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS







Component
Primary Government Unit


Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Hospital


Assets:
  Cash and investments 21,958,944       5,006,778       26,965,722   11,751,000   


Gunnison County
Statement of Net Position


December 31, 2012


  Cash and investments 21,958,944       5,006,778       26,965,722   11,751,000   
  Due from other governments 8,063                -                  8,063            -               
  Accounts, taxes, and other receivables 8,707,283         414,267          9,121,550     4,424,949     
  Prepaid expenses 78,155              20,154            98,309          414,560        
  Inventory 719,361            -                  719,361        1,488,718     
  Internal balances 57,377              (57,377)           -               -               


Capital Assets:
  Capital assets, not depreciated 2,069,499         12,353,100     14,422,599   -               
  Capital assets, net 35,046,360       33,370,003     68,416,363   19,643,131   


Total Assets 68,645,042       51,106,925     119,751,967 37,722,358   


Deferred Outflows of Resources:
  Deferred outflow from interest rate swap -                    -                  -               563,874        
  Deferred financing costs 111,097 291,829          402,926        223,081        


Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 111,097            291,829          402,926        786,955        


Liabilities:Liabilities:
  Accounts payable 1,660,182         254,378          1,914,560     669,564        
  Accrued expenses 725,866            62,393            788,259        1,290,284     
  Deposits 655,412            -                  655,412        -               
  Accrued interest -                    52,609            52,609          -               
  Unearned grant revenue 839,687 -                  839,687        
Non-current Liabilities:
 Due within one year:


Accrued compensated absences 570,274            45,415            615,689        -               
Leases 156,562            -                  156,562        464,355        
Bonds -                    25,029            25,029          740,000        Bonds -                    25,029            25,029          740,000        
Certificates of participation 405,000            -                  405,000        -               
Loans 102,593            856,329          958,922        -               


 Due in more than one year:
Accrued compensated absences 855,411            68,124            923,535        -               
Leases 968,958            -                  968,958        1,140,587     
Bonds -                    1,643,725       1,643,725     11,988,491   
Certificates of participation 16,865,000       -                  16,865,000   -               
Landfill closure and postclosure costs -                    965,789          965,789        -               
Loans 450,869            1,809,765       2,260,634     -               Loans 450,869            1,809,765       2,260,634     -               


Total Liabilities 24,255,814       5,783,556       30,039,370   16,293,281   


Deferred Inflows of Resources:
  Deferred inflow from interest rate swap -                    -                  -               563,874        
  Unavailable property tax revenue 6,164,441 -                  6,164,441     -               


Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 6,164,441         -                  6,164,441     563,874        


Net Position:


Net investment in capital assets 18,166,877       41,388,255     59,555,132   7,131,592     
Restricted for:
  Emergencies 780,000            -                  780,000        -               
  Debt service 1,342,782 -                  1,342,782     -               
  Other purposes 78,155              1,263,534       1,341,689     1,402,594     
Unrestricted 17,968,070       2,963,409       20,931,479   13,117,972   


Total Net Position 38,335,884       45,615,198     83,951,082   21,652,158   


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
C1







Net (Expense) Revenue and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Position Component


Operating Capital Primary Governments Unit


Gunnison County, Colorado
Statement of Activities


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


Operating Capital Primary Governments Unit
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type


Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Hospital
Functions/Programs:
 Primary Government:
  Governmental Activities:


General government 8,082,650                         2,041,053     672,736            -                    (5,368,861)        (5,368,861)       
Judicial 252,849                            -                -                    -                    (252,849)           (252,849)          
Public safety 2,686,129                         249,856        190,481            -                    (2,245,792)        (2,245,792)       Public safety 2,686,129                         249,856        190,481            -                    (2,245,792)        (2,245,792)       
Health and welfare 4,993,542                         216,949        4,322,020         -                    (454,573)           (454,573)          
Auxiliary services 254,582                            38,516          -                    -                    (216,066)           (216,066)          
Culture and recreation 1,236,329                         15,798          55,399              -                    (1,165,132)        (1,165,132)       
Public works 5,177,367                         253,609        3,923,000         6,383                (994,375)           (994,375)          
Interest on long-term debt 1,040,570                         -                -                    -                    (1,040,570)        (1,040,570)       


     Total Governmental Activities 23,724,018                       2,815,781     9,163,636         6,383                (11,738,218)      (11,738,218)     
  Business-type Activities:


Airport 2,646,560                         1,101,187     250                   -                    (1,545,123)         (1,545,123)       Airport 2,646,560                         1,101,187     250                   -                    (1,545,123)         (1,545,123)       
Sewer 545,648                            485,197        -                    69,840              9,389                 9,389               
Water 521,288                            216,847        -                    -                    (304,441)            (304,441)          
Landfill 684,346                            835,916        420                   -                    151,990             151,990           
Housing 313,538                            261,094        -                    -                    (52,444)              (52,444)            


    Total Business-type Activities 4,711,380                         2,900,241     670                   69,840              (1,740,629)         (1,740,629)       
       Total Primary Government 28,435,398                       5,716,022     9,164,306         76,223              (11,738,218)      (1,740,629)         (13,478,847)     


 Component Unit: Component Unit:
Hospital 28,345,828                       27,791,988   -                    -                    (553,840)          


General Revenues and Transfers:
Taxes:


Property taxes 7,278,102          -                         7,278,102        568,512           
Specific ownership taxes 372,570             -                         372,570           -                   
Sales taxes 1,726,268          35,683               1,761,951        -                   Sales taxes 1,726,268          35,683               1,761,951        -                   
Marketing and promotion taxes 1,093,649          -                         1,093,649        -                   
Other taxes 40,472               -                         40,472             -                   


Investment earnings 192,290             47,940               240,230           170,581           
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 3,126,773          -                         3,126,773        623,345           
Transfers (868,869)           868,869             -                       -                   
Loss on asset disposals (351,502)           4,356                 (347,146)          24,000             
    Total General Revenues and Transfers 12,609,753       956,848             13,566,601      1,386,438        
Change in Net Position 871,535             (783,781)            87,754             832,598           Change in Net Position 871,535             (783,781)            87,754             832,598           


Net Position - Beginning of Year 37,464,349       46,398,979        83,863,328      20,819,560      
Net Position - End of Year 38,335,884       45,615,198        83,951,082      21,652,158      


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Sales Tax
Road and Human Capital Airport Capital Non-major Total


December 31, 2012
Balance Sheet


Governmental Funds
Gunnison County, Colorado


Road and Human Capital Airport Capital Non-major Total
General Bridge Services Improvement Construction Expenditures Governmental Governmental


Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds


Assets:
Cash and investments - Unrestricted 4,784,957        4,655,720       606,265          798,008          68,810             463,416           1,500,185         12,877,361       
Cash and investments - Restricted 4,013,490        -                      -                      327,984 -                      1,924,415        -                        6,265,889         
Accounts receivable 6,395,942        892,539          385,584          360,055          236,211           -                       290,796            8,561,127         Accounts receivable 6,395,942        892,539          385,584          360,055          236,211           -                       290,796            8,561,127         
Prepaid expenses -                       -                      -                      -                      -                      -                       20,000              20,000              
Due from other governments 8,063               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                       -                        8,063                
Due from other funds -                       -                      -                      687,098          5,004               -                       24,581              716,683            


       Total Assets 15,202,452      5,548,259       991,849          2,173,145       310,025           2,387,831        1,835,562         28,449,123       


Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of Resources, 
  and Fund Balances:
  Liabilities:


Accounts payable 508,650           71,370            1,849              147,760          371,180           44,751             38,479              1,184,039         
Accrued liabilities 302,198           13,517            -                      -                      240,192           -                       -                        555,907            
Deposits 89,364             566,048          -                      -                      -                      -                       -                        655,412            
Unearned grant revenue 163,806 -                      469,370          163,967          -                      -                       51,284              848,427            
Due to other funds 525,067           181,763          28,069            -                      -                      11,903             137,521            884,323            


       Total Liabilities 1,589,085        832,698          499,288          311,727          611,372           56,654             227,284            4,128,108         


Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Unavailable property tax revenue 6,164,441 -                      -                      -                      -                      -                       -                        6,164,441         


       Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 6,164,441        -                      -                      -                      -                      -                       -                        6,164,441         


  Fund Balances:
Non-spendable -                       -                      -                      -                      -                      -                       20,000              20,000              
Spendable:


Restricted 1,530,000        4,715,561       492,561          1,861,418       -                      1,924,415        856,022            11,379,977       
Committed 3,263,490        -                      -                      -                      -                      -                       194,342            3,457,832         
Assigned -                       -                      -                      -                      -                      406,762           537,914            944,676            
Unassigned 2,655,436        -                      -                      -                      (301,347)         -                       -                        2,354,089         Unassigned 2,655,436        -                      -                      -                      (301,347)         -                       -                        2,354,089         


       Total Fund Balances 7,448,926        4,715,561       492,561          1,861,418       (301,347)         2,331,177        1,608,278         18,156,574       


       Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of
          Resources, and Fund Balances 15,202,452      5,548,259       991,849          2,173,145       310,025           2,387,831        1,835,562         28,449,123       


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Total Governmental Fund Balances 18,156,574   


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the


Statement of Net Position are different because:


Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources


and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.  However, in the 


Statement of Net Position, the cost of those assets are capitalized and


expensed over their estimated lives through annual depreciation expense.


Cost of capital assets 64,360,833  


Less accumulated depreciation (27,244,974) 37,115,859   


Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of the


motor pool, equipment costs and health insurance to individual funds.  The


assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental


activities in the Statement of Net Position.  This represents the net equity of the


internal service funds less the fixed assets and long-term liabilities which are 3,327,021     


included in this reconciliation.


Debt issuance costs are not financial resources and therefore not reported in the


funds.  However, in the Statement of Net Position the cost of these items are


capitalized and expensed over their estimated lives through amortization:


Bond issuance costs, net 111,097        


Long-term liabilities, including leases payable, bonds payable, compensated 


absences, and interest payable are not due and payable in the current period


and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.  The following liabilities are 


are reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Position. 


Accrued compensated absences (1,425,685)   


COPS (17,270,000)


Leases (1,125,520)   


Loans (553,462)      (20,374,667)  


Net Position of Governmental Activities 38,335,884   


Gunnison County, Colorado


Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Balances to


Statement of Net Position


December 31, 2012


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Sales Tax
Road and Human Capital Airport Capital Non-major Total


Gunnison County, Colorado
Governmental Funds


Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
December 31, 2012


Road and Human Capital Airport Capital Non-major Total
General Bridge Services Improvement Construction Expenditure Governmental Governmental


Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:


Taxes 7,217,775      130,400      271,131     1,416,908        -                   -                 1,474,530         10,510,744       
Licenses and permits 300,777         -              -             -                  -                   -                 -                    300,777            
Intergovernmental 1,851,822      4,846,153   3,337,734  -                  1,310,979        53,975           704,737            12,105,400       
Charges for services 1,463,533      63,168        -             -                  112,421           -                 89,654              1,728,776         Charges for services 1,463,533      63,168        -             -                  112,421           -                 89,654              1,728,776         
Investment income 114,298         52,534        -             5,869               367                  5,603             13,621              192,292            
Contributions 120,498         -              3,222         -                  -                   7,102             130,488            261,310            
Miscellaneous 388,456         90,883        2,765         -                  -                   -                 93,635              575,739            


       Total Revenues 11,457,159    5,183,138   3,614,852  1,422,777        1,423,767        66,680           2,506,665         25,675,038       


Expenditures:Expenditures:
General government 6,542,919      -              -             44,240             -                   202,403         1,323,420         8,112,982         
Judicial 251,665         -              -             -                  -                   114,486         -                    366,151            
Public safety 2,785,521      -              -             -                  -                   220,309         -                    3,005,830         
Health and welfare 823,151         -              3,474,906  -                  -                   -                 574,094            4,872,151         
Auxiliary services 257,857         -              -             -                  -                   -                 -                    257,857            
Culture and recreation 279,413         -              -             -                  -                   -                 290,461            569,874            
Public works 137,559         4,976,388   -             -                  1,383,560        85,201           -                    6,582,708         Public works 137,559         4,976,388   -             -                  1,383,560        85,201           -                    6,582,708         
Debt service 205,559         -              -             162,167           1,111,443        -                 1,539,731         3,018,900         


       Total Expenditures 11,283,644    4,976,388   3,474,906  206,407           2,495,003        622,399         3,727,706         26,786,453       


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
 Over Expenditures 173,515         206,750      139,946     1,216,370        (1,071,236)       (555,719)        (1,221,041)        (1,111,415)        


Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 1,297,613      216,876      -             271,743           -                   329,859         1,299,226         3,415,317         
Transfers (out) (1,761,528)     (897,009)     (115,125)    (642,040)         110,000           (144,800)        (221,716)           (3,672,218)        
Sale of capital assets 101,227         -              -             -                  -                   -                 -                    101,227            


       Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (362,688)        (680,133)     (115,125)    (370,297)         110,000           185,059         1,077,510         (155,674)           


Net Change in Fund Balances (189,173)        (473,383)     24,821       846,073           (961,236)          (370,660)        (143,531)           (1,267,089)        Net Change in Fund Balances (189,173)        (473,383)     24,821       846,073           (961,236)          (370,660)        (143,531)           (1,267,089)        


Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 7,638,099 5,188,944 467,740 1,015,345 659,889 2,701,837 1,751,809         19,423,663       


Fund Balances - End of Year 7,448,926      4,715,561   492,561     1,861,418        (301,347)          2,331,177      1,608,278         18,156,574       


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Net Changes In Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (1,267,089)  


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
Statement of Activities are different because:


Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However,
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.  This is
the amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation expense
in the current period for all governmental activities excluding internal
service funds which is shown separately below:


Depreciation expense (1,132,870)  
Gain (Loss) on disposals, net (351,502)     
Capital outlay 1,176,475   (307,897)     


The internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of 
the motor pool, equipment costs and health insurance to individuals 
funds. The net revenue of these funds is reported with governmental
activities in the Statement of Activities. 475,677       


Capitalization and amortization of bond issuance costs is an expenditure in the 
governmental funds but is charged over time in the Statement of Net Position:


Amortization expense (3,968)         


Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of 
Net Position. 1,968,757    


Compensated absences reported in the Statement of Activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are 
not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.  This represents
the change in compensated balances during the past year for 
governmental funds.


Liability @ December 31, 2012 1,340,361   
Liability @ December 31, 2011 1,346,416   6,055           


Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 871,535       


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


Gunnison County
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 


Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Gunnison Gunnison Gunnison Activities -


Airport Gunnison County Landfill County County Internal
Operations County Water Operations Housing Auth. Housing Auth. Service  


Gunnison County, Colorado
Proprietary Funds


Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2012


Operations County Water Operations Housing Auth. Housing Auth. Service  
Fund Sewer Fund Fund Fund Assisted Lvg. Mtn. View Totals Funds


Assets:
Current Assets:


Cash - Unrestricted 821,016        876,128        285,085        588,311        3,051            52,588          2,626,179     2,815,694     
Cash - Restricted -                -                -                2,206,149     -                174,450        2,380,599     -                
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for 
 uncollectible accounts where applicable 131,392        106,709        111,601        64,365          -                200               414,267        146,156        
Prepaid expenses 18,588          -                262               1,044            -                260               20,154          58,155          Prepaid expenses 18,588          -                262               1,044            -                260               20,154          58,155          
Due from other funds -                -                -                -                -                317               317               227,381        
Inventory, at cost -                -                -                -                -                -                -                719,360        


Total Current Assets 970,996        982,837        396,948        2,859,869     3,051            227,815        5,441,516     3,966,746     


Non-current Assets:
Construction-in-progress -                102,666        946,585        -                -                -                1,049,251     -                
Land, property and equipment 60,819,391   7,092,899     8,824,474     333,090        2,037,513     1,735,974     80,843,341   19,508,683   
Less accumulated depreciation (26,433,962)  (2,713,742)    (5,290,949)    (160,315)       (428,206)       (1,142,313)    (36,169,487)  (9,475,557)    Less accumulated depreciation (26,433,962)  (2,713,742)    (5,290,949)    (160,315)       (428,206)       (1,142,313)    (36,169,487)  (9,475,557)    


Total Non-current Assets 34,385,429   4,481,823     4,480,110     172,775        1,609,307     593,661        45,723,105   10,033,126   


Total Assets 35,356,425   5,464,660     4,877,058     3,032,644     1,612,358     821,476        51,164,621   13,999,872   


Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred financing costs -                -                -                -                -                291,829        291,829        -                


Total Deferred Outflows of Resources -                -                -                -                -                291,829        291,829        -                


Liabilities:
  Current Liabilities:


Accounts payable 109,275        73,004          43,679          23,983          -                4,438            254,379        476,142        
Accrued liabilities 6,835            11,916          39,089          1,023            -                56,139          115,002        161,219        
Due to other funds 15,378          9,526            10,910          21,880          -                -                57,694          2,364            
Debt obligations, due within one year -                38,609          812,931        -                18,324          11,494          881,358        -                


Total Current Liabilities 131,488        133,055        906,609        46,886          18,324          72,071          1,308,433     639,725        


  Non-current Liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences 72,847          -                14,209          26,483          -                -                113,539        85,324          
Loans -                96,985          60,022          -                430,602        1,222,157     1,809,766     -                
Revenues bonds -                1,643,725     -                -                -                -                1,643,725     -                
Landfill closure and postclosure costs -                -                -                965,789        -                -                965,789        -                


Total Non-current Liabilities 72,847          1,740,710     74,231          992,272        430,602        1,222,157     4,532,819     85,324          


Total Liabilities 204,335        1,873,765     980,840        1,039,158     448,926        1,294,228     5,841,252     725,049        


Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 34,385,429   2,702,504     3,607,157     172,775        1,160,381     (639,990)       41,388,256   10,033,126   
Restricted 18,588          -                262               1,244,424     -                260               1,263,534     58,155          
Unrestricted 748,073        888,391        288,799        576,287        3,051            458,807        2,963,408     3,183,542     


Total Net Position 35,152,090   3,590,895     3,896,218     1,993,486     1,163,432     (180,923)       45,615,198   13,274,823   


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental


Gunnison Gunnison Gunnison Activities -


Gunnison County, Colorado


Proprietary Funds


Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


Gunnison Gunnison Gunnison Activities -


Airport Gunnison County Landfill County County Internal


Operations County Water Operations Housing Auth. Housing Auth. Service  


Fund Sewer Fund Fund Fund Assisted Lvg. Mtn. View Totals Funds


Operating Revenues:


Rent, net 796,730        -                -                -                36,488          220,208        1,053,426     1,783,330     


Other 13,239          5,930            3,661            6,555            -                4,398            33,783          246,530        


Charges and fees 287,104        479,267        213,186        829,781        -                -                1,809,338     3,090,987     Charges and fees 287,104        479,267        213,186        829,781        -                -                1,809,338     3,090,987     


       Total Operating Revenues 1,097,073     485,197        216,847        836,336        36,488          224,606        2,896,547     5,120,847     


Operating Expenses:


Operations and maintenance 800,909        238,976        125,674        669,721        -                153,331        1,988,611     4,205,637     


Administration 196,689        -                43,408          -                -                -                240,097        197,165        


Depreciation and amortization 1,648,963     229,151        348,810        14,625          38,063          68,793          2,348,405     943,351        


       Total Operating Expenses 2,646,561     468,127        517,892        684,346        38,063          222,124        4,577,113     5,346,153            Total Operating Expenses 2,646,561     468,127        517,892        684,346        38,063          222,124        4,577,113     5,346,153     


Operating Income (Loss) (1,549,488)    17,070          (301,045)       151,990        (1,575)           2,482            (1,680,566)    (225,306)       


Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):


Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 6,736            -                -                -                -                (2,380)           4,356            -                
Grant revenue 4,364            69,840          -                -                -                -                74,204          -                


Sales tax 35,683          -                -                -                -                -                35,683          -                Sales tax 35,683          -                -                -                -                -                35,683          -                


Investment revenue 9,731            7,973            2,854            27,296          -                86                 47,940          10,483          


Interest expense -                (77,520)         (3,396)           -                (19,289)         (34,063)         (134,268)       (2,978)           


       Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 56,514          293               (542)              27,296          (19,289)         (36,357)         27,915          7,505            


Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers (1,492,974)    17,363          (301,587)       179,286        (20,864)         (33,875)         (1,652,651)    (217,801)       


Capital Contributions 1,220,245     -                -                -                -                -                1,220,245     85,201          Capital Contributions 1,220,245     -                -                -                -                -                1,220,245     85,201          


Transfers In -                -                23,321          -                -                -                23,321          807,525        


Transfers (Out) (192,164)       (73,205)         (24,836)         (84,492)         -                -                (374,697)       (199,248)       


Change in Net Position (464,893)       (55,842)         (303,102)       94,794          (20,864)         (33,875)         (783,782)       475,677        


Total Net Position - Beginning of Year 35,616,983   3,646,737     4,199,320     1,898,692     1,184,296     (147,048)       46,398,980   12,799,146   


Total Net Position - End of Year 35,152,090   3,590,895     3,896,218     1,993,486     1,163,432     (180,923)       45,615,198   13,274,823   Total Net Position - End of Year 35,152,090   3,590,895     3,896,218     1,993,486     1,163,432     (180,923)       45,615,198   13,274,823   


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Governmental


Gunnison Gunnison Gunnison Activities -
Airport Gunnison County Landfill County County Internal


Operations County Water Operations Housing Auth. Housing Auth. Service  
Fund Sewer Fund Fund Fund Assisted Lvg. Mtn. View Totals Funds


Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from charges for services 1,088,375     527,014        231,315        814,615        36,488          220,894        2,918,701     4,838,914     
Cash received from other sources 13,239          5,930            3,661            6,555            -                    4,398            33,783          246,530        
Cash payments to vendors for goods and services (435,299)       (286,333)       (26,844)         (723,456)       -                    (118,490)       (1,590,422)    (3,357,203)    
Cash payments to employees for services (465,367)       (41,867)         (64,443)         6,200            -                    (29,815)         (595,292)       (678,954)       
       Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
        Activities 200,948        204,744        143,689        103,914        36,488          76,987          766,770        1,049,287     


Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities:
Taxes 35,683          -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    35,683          -                    
Transfers from (to) other funds, net (194,082)       (87,610)         9,885            (73,362)         -                    (7,000)           (352,169)       557,668        
       Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital
        Financing Activities (158,399)       (87,610)         9,885            (73,362)         -                    (7,000)           (316,486)       557,668        


Cash Flows from Capital and 
Related Financing Activities:


   Capital grants 4,364            69,840          -                    -                    -                    -                    74,204          -                    
Capital contributions -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    85,201          
Interest paid on debt -                    (77,520)         (3,396)           -                    (19,289)         (34,063)         (134,268)       (2,978)           
Principal paid on loans and leases -                    (37,384)         (4,556)           -                    (17,199)         (50,426)         (109,565)       (158,082)       
Proceeds from debt -                    -                    808,147        -                    -                    -                    808,147        -                    
Purchase of capital assets (233,856)       (71,631)         (848,376)       (85,958)         -                    (1)                  (1,239,822)    (1,012,134)    
Cash from sale of assets 10,100          -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    10,100          76,717          
       Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and
        Related Financing Activities (219,392)       (116,695)       (48,181)         (85,958)         (36,488)         (84,490)         (591,204)       (1,011,276)    


Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Cash from investment income 9,731            7,973            2,854            27,296          -                    86                 47,940          10,483          
       Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing
        Activities 9,731            7,973            2,854            27,296          -                    86                 47,940          10,483          


Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (167,112)       8,412            108,247        (28,110)         -                    (14,417)         (92,980)         606,162        
Cash - Beginning of Year 988,128        867,716        176,838        2,822,570     3,051            241,455        5,099,758     2,209,532     
Cash - End of Year 821,016        876,128        285,085        2,794,460     3,051            227,038        5,006,778     2,815,694     


 Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
  Cash Provided (used) by Operating Activities:


Operating income (loss) (1,549,488)    17,070          (301,045)       151,990        (1,575)           2,482            (1,680,566)    (225,306)       
   Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
    to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:


Depreciation and amortization 1,648,963     229,151        348,810        14,625          38,063          68,793          2,348,405     943,351        
Changes in assets and liabilities:


(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 4,541            47,747          18,129          (15,166)         -                    686               55,937          (35,403)         
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 7,156            -                    -                    2,113            -                    (260)              9,009            (21,238)         
(Increase) decrease in inventory -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    174,606        
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 77,663          (84,756)         39,772          11,650          -                    (4,177)           40,152          200,256        
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 6,835            (4,468)           37,942          (67,498)         -                    9,463            (17,726)         12,202          
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 5,278            -                    81                 6,200            -                    -                    11,559          819               


       Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating 
        Activities 200,948        204,744        143,689        103,914        36,488          76,987          766,770        1,049,287     


Non-Cash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:
   Contribution of fixed assets 1,220,245     -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    1,220,245     -                    


Gunnison County, Colorado
Proprietary Funds


Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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County Public
Treasurer Trustee


Agency Fund Agency Fund


Assets:


Cash 25,486,545      92,995
Less: cash held for County funds (24,469,870)    -                   


       Total Assets 1,016,675        92,995             


Liabilities:


Due to other governments and agencies 1,016,675 -                   
Due to governmental funds -                   25,733
Held by Trustee -                   67,262


       Total Liabilities 1,016,675        92,995             


Gunnison County, Colorado
Agency Funds


Statement of Assets and Liabilities
December 31, 2012


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Gunnison County, Colorado
Notes to the Financial Statements


December 31, 2012


D1


I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies


Gunnison County (the “County”) is a statutory county located in central Colorado.  An elected 
Board of Commissioners is responsible for setting policy, appointing administrative personnel and 
the adoption of an annual budget in accordance with state statutes.  The County’s operations 
include sheriff protection, health and human services, culture and recreation, road maintenance,
an airport, water and sewer services, a housing administration, and a landfill. 


The County’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles (“GAAP”).  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is 
responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements 
(Statements and Interpretations).  The more significant accounting policies established by GAAP 
used by the County are discussed below.


A. Reporting Entity


The reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government; i.e., the County, and (b) 
organizations for which the County is financially accountable.  The County is considered 
financially accountable for legally separate organizations if it is able to appoint a voting 
majority of an organization's governing body and is either able to impose its will on that 
organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial 
benefits to, or to impose specific financial burdens on, the County.  Consideration is also 
given to other organizations which are fiscally dependent; i.e., unable to adopt a budget, 
levy taxes, or issue debt without approval by the County.  Organizations for which the 
nature and significance of their relationship with the County are such that exclusion would 
cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete are also 
included in the reporting entity.


The financial statements of component units have been included in the financial reporting 
entity either as blended or discretely presented component units.


1. Blended Component Units


The Gunnison County Housing Authority (“Authority”) - Gunnison Senior
Housing Project, an entity legally separate from the County, is governed by the 
Gunnison County Board of County Commissioners.  For financial reporting 
purposes, the Authority is reported as if it was part of the County's operations 
because its purpose is to finance and provide low income senior housing to the 
citizens of the County.


In 2003, the County’s electorate approved the creation of the Gunnison River 
Valley Local Marketing District (“District”).  The District was created for the
organization, promotion, marketing, and management of public events; activities 
in support of business recruitment, management and development; and 
coordinating tourism promotion activities within the District’s boundaries.  The 
County’s Board of County Commissioners sits as ex officio as the District’s 
Board.  For financial reporting purposes, the District is reported as a blended 
component unit and resembles the reporting for other special revenue funds.
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)


A. Reporting Entity (continued)


2. Discretely Presented Component Unit


The component unit columns in the combined financial statements include the 
financial data of the County's discretely presented component unit.  This unit is 
reported in a separate column to emphasize that it is legally separate from the 
County.


The Gunnison Valley Hospital and Health Care Center - The Gunnison Valley 
Hospital and Health Care Center Board is appointed by the County, is fiscally 
dependent on the County because they cannot issue debt without the approval of 
the County, and its operational and capital budgets and its annual property tax 
mill levy are approved by the County.  The completed financial statements of the 
Hospital and Health Care Center can be obtained directly from their 
administrative office at:


Administrative Office
Gunnison Valley Hospital
214 East Denver Avenue
Gunnison, CO  81230


3. Intergovernmental Agreements


The County has entered into various governmental agreements that do not meet 
the criteria for inclusion in these financial statements as component units or as 
joint ventures.  


The County receives funding from local, state, and federal government sources 
and must comply with all requirements of these funding sources.  However, the 
County is not included in any other governmental reporting entity.


B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements


The County’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (financial 
activities of the overall County, except for fiduciary activities) and fund financial 
statements (reporting the County’s individual funds).  Both the government-wide and fund 
financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-
type.  Governmental activities are generally financed through taxes, intergovernmental 
revenues, and other non-exchange transactions.  Business-type activities are financed in 
whole or part by fees charged to external parties.


1. Government-wide Financial Statements


In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and 
business-type activities columns are (a) presented on a consolidated basis by 
column, and (b) reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which 
recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and 
obligations.  The primary government is reported separately from certain legally 
separate component units for which the primary government is financially 
accountable.  The County’s net position is reported in three parts – net 
investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position.
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)


B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued)


1. Government-wide Financial Statements (continued)


The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost 
of each of the County’s non-fiduciary functions (e.g., public safety, culture and 
recreation, etc.) and business-type activities (e.g., water, sewer, landfill, etc.).  
The functions are also supported by general government revenues (property and 
sales taxes, intergovernmental revenue, etc.).  The Statement of Activities 
reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, 
operating and capital grants.  Program revenues must be directly associated with 
the function or business-type activity.  Operating grants include operating-specific 
and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants 
column reflects capital-specific grants.  


The government-wide focus is on the sustainability of the County as an entity and 
the change in the County’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities.


2. Fund Financial Statements


The financial transactions of the County are reported in individual funds in the 
fund financial statements.  Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate 
set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund 
equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses.  The fund focus is on current 
available resources and budget compliance.


The County reports the following major governmental funds:


The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all 
financial resources of the County, except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund.


The Road and Bridge Fund accounts for the County’s share of state revenues 
that are legally restricted for the maintenance of highways and roads within the 
County’s boundaries and also accounts for other revenues restricted for highway 
and road purposes.


The Human Services Fund administers the County’s state and federal revenues 
that are restricted for the provision of social services to the residents of the 
County.


The Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund accounts for the collection of sales tax 
restricted for capital expenditures.


The Airport Construction Fund accounts for grants and construction expenditures 
relating to the County’s airport.  The constructed assets are contributed to the 
Airport Operations Fund.


The Capital Expenditures Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for 
future capital expenditures.
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)


B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued)


2. Fund Financial Statements (continued)


The County reports the following major proprietary funds:


The Airport Operations Fund accounts for the operations of the Gunnison County 
Airport.


The Gunnison County Sewer Fund is used to account for the operations of sewer 
facilities operated by the County in unincorporated areas of the County.


The Gunnison County Water Fund is used to account for the operations of water 
system operated by the County in unincorporated areas of the County.


The Landfill Operations Fund accounts for the operations of the County’s landfill 
and recycling program.


The Gunnison County Housing Authority is used to account for the activities of 
the Authority, a blended component unit of the County.  Two funds are included 
which account for operations of an assisted living center and an elderly housing 
complex.


Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:


Internal services funds account for the rental of motor vehicles and heavy 
equipment, the usage of gravel and other construction materials, the rental of 
computer equipment, and to account for health insurance and unemployment 
claims.  These services are provided to other County funds and departments on 
a cost reimbursement basis.   


Agency funds are used to account for the collection and distribution of property 
and other taxes between the County’s funds and other governments and 
agencies.  Agency funds are also used to account for the activities of the County 
Trustee and segregate these activities into a separate fund as required by State 
of Colorado statutes.


C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation


Measurement focus refers to whether financial statements measure changes in current 
resources only (current financial focus) or changes in both current and long-term 
resources (long-term economic focus).  Basis of accounting refers to the point at which 
revenues, expenditures, or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the 
financial statements. Financial statement presentation refers to classification of revenues 
by source and expenses by function.
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)


C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
(continued)


1. Long-term Economic Focus and Accrual Basis


Both the governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements and the proprietary and fiduciary financial statements use 
the long-term economic focus and are presented on the accrual basis of 
accounting.  Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are 
recognized when incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.  On 
the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the year for which 
taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the year in 
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.


2. Current Financial Focus and Modified Accrual Basis


The governmental fund financial statements use the current financial focus and 
are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under the modified 
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; 
i.e., both measurable and available.  The County considered all revenues 
reported in the governmental funds to be available if they are collected within 
sixty days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund 
liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general ling-term debt, 
claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as 
expenditures to the extent they have matured.  General capital asset acquisitions 
are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.  Proceeds of long-term 
liabilities and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing 
sources.


3. Financial Statement Presentation


Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or 
applicants for goods, services or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and 
contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special 
assessments.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues
rather than as program revenues.  Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.


Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items.  Operating revenues and expenses generally result from 
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues 
of the County’s enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales.  Operating 
expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenue and 
expense notes meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues 
and expenses.


When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
County’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as 
they are needed.
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)


D. Financial Statement Accounts


1. Cash and Cash Equivalents


Cash and cash equivalents are defined as deposits that can be withdrawn at any 
time without notice or penalty and investments with maturities of three months or 
less.


Restricted cash and cash equivalents represent amounts restricted by bond 
indentures and other binding commitments.


2. Investments


Investments are stated at fair value.


3. Receivables


Receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts, 
whenever applicable.


4. Property Taxes


Property taxes are assessed in one year as a lien on the property, but not 
collected by the governmental unit until the subsequent year.  In accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, the assessed but uncollected property 
taxes have been recorded as a receivable and as deferred revenue on the fund 
financial statements.


5. Interfund Receivables and Payables


Balances at year-end between funds are reported as “due to / from other funds” 
in the fund financial statements.  Any residual balances not eliminated between 
the governmental and business-type activities are reported as “internal balances” 
in the government-wide financial statements.


6. Inventories


Inventories are carried at cost.  The Internal Service Fund I inventory includes 
gravel held for County use.  The cost value of such inventory is recorded as an 
expenditure at the time of use.


7. Prepaid Expenses


Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond 
December 31, 2012 are recorded as prepaid expenses.
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)


D. Financial Statement Accounts (continued)


8. Capital Assets


Capital assets, which include land, buildings, building improvements, equipment, 
and vehicles, are reported in the applicable governmental columns in the 
government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by the County
as assets with an initial cost of $4,000 or more and an estimated useful life in 
excess of two years for all assets other than equipment.  Such assets are 
recorded at historical cost.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair 
value at the date of donation.


The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 
asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.  Improvements are 
capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related fixed 
assets, as applicable.


Capital outlay for projects is capitalized as projects are constructed.  Interest 
incurred during the construction phase is capitalized as part of the value of the 
assets constructed in the business-type activities.


Infrastructure, buildings, and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line 
method over the following estimated useful lives:


Assets Years
Infrastructure 15-30
Buildings and improvements 15-40


Machinery and equipment 3-10
Vehicles 10


The book value of property and equipment transferred to the City of Gunnison for 
additional capacity at their wastewater treatment facility are being amortized on 
the straight-line method over a period of twenty-five (25) years.  The term of the 
agreement is indefinite and does not include treatment costs.


9. Deferred Property Taxes


Property taxes in the State of Colorado are assessed in one year as a lien on the 
property, but not collected by the governmental units until the subsequent year.  
In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the assessed but 
uncollected property taxes have been recorded in the accompanying financial 
statements as a receivable and as deferred inflow of resources.
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)


D. Financial Statement Accounts (continued)


10. Compensated Absences


Vested or accumulated vacation leave that is expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources is reported as expenditure and a fund 
liability of the governmental fund that will pay it.  Amounts of vested or 
accumulated vacation leave that are not expected to be liquidated with 
expendable available financial resources are reported in the governmental 
activities column in the government-wide financial statements.  Vested or 
accumulated vacation leave of the proprietary fund type is recorded as an 
expense and liability of that fund as the benefits accrue to employees.  In 
accordance with the provisions of GASB No. 16, Accounting for Compensated 
Absences, no liability is recorded for non-vesting accumulating rights to receive 
sick pay benefits.


11. Recognition of Grant Revenue


Where the expenditure of funds is the prime factor for determining eligibility for 
grant funds, revenue is recognized at the time the expenditure is incurred.


12. Bond Premiums, Discounts and Issuance Costs


On the government-wide Statement of Net Position and the proprietary fund type 
Statement of Net Position, bond premiums and discounts are netted with bond 
issuance costs and reported as issuance costs. On the government-wide and 
proprietary fund type Statement of Activities, bond premiums and discounts and 
bond issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using 
the effective interest method. At the governmental fund reporting level, bond 
premiums and discounts are reported as other financing sources and uses, 
separately from the face amount of the bonds issued. Bond issuance costs are 
reported as expenditures.


13. Fund Equity


Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as 
“fund balance.” Fund equity for all other reporting is classified as “net position.”


Fund Balance – Generally, fund balance represents the difference between the 
current assets and current liabilities. Governmental accounting standards 
establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based 
primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints 
imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds. Fund 
balance classifications, include Non-spendable, Restricted, Committed, 
Assigned, and Unassigned. These classifications reflect not only the nature of 
funds, but also provide clarity to the level of restriction placed upon fund balance. 
Fund Balance can have different levels of restraint, such as external versus 
internal compliance requirements. Unassigned fund balance is a residual 
classification within the general fund. The general fund should be the only fund 
that reports a positive unassigned balance. In all other funds, unassigned is 
limited to negative residual fund balance. For further details of the various fund 
balance classifications refer to Note IV.O.
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)


D. Financial Statement Accounts (continued)


13. Fund Equity (continued)


Net Position - Net position represent the difference between assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. Net 
investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. This net position
amount also is adjusted by any bond issuance deferred amounts. Net position is
reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either 
through the enabling legislation adopted by the County or through external 
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other 
governments. All other net position is reported as unrestricted.


The County applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for 
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.


14. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources


In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial 
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of 
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an 
outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The County has one item 
that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the deferred financing costs
reported in the Statement of Net Position. A deferred financing costs results from 
debt and mortgage issuance costs.  These amounts are deferred and amortized 
over the life of the debt. 


In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial 
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of 
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The County has only one item that 
qualifies for reporting in this category.  Accordingly, unavailable property tax 
revenue, is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that 
the amounts become available and earned.


15. Interfund Transactions


Quasi-external (i.e., internal service fund) transactions are accounted for as 
revenues, expenditures or expenses.  Transactions that constitute 
reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that 
are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses 
in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund 
that is reimbursed.


All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and 
reimbursements, are reported as transfers.  
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)


E. Significant Accounting Policies


1. Use of Estimates


The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual 
results could differ from those estimates.


2. Legal Provisions and Authorization of Deposits


The County is governed by state statutes as to the type of institutions and 
investments with which it may deposit funds and transact business.


Cash and investments include amounts in demand deposits as well as 
investments.  The funds of the County are invested by the County Treasurer.  
The County Treasurer accounts for the transactions of each individual fund of the 
County and maintains a separate ledger for each County fund and all other 
governments and agencies within the County for which the County Treasurer 
collects and disburses funds.


The cash and investments of the County's component units are invested by each 
entity within the guidelines set forth by their respective Boards of Trustees.


II. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements


A. Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet 
and the Government-wide Statement of Net Position


The governmental fund Balance Sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance –
total governmental funds and net position of governmental activities as reported in the 
government-wide Statement of Net Position.  One element of that reconciliation explains 
that “Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of the motor 
pool, equipment costs and health insurance to individual funds.  The assets and liabilities 
of the internal service funds are included in the governmental activities in the Statement 
of Net Position.  This represents the net equity of the internal service funds less the fixed 
assets.”


III. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability


A. Legal Compliance - Budgets


Property taxes become a lien on the property as of January 1 of the year assessed. 
Taxes levied in one year are collected in the succeeding year.  Thus taxes certified in 
2011 were collected in 2012 and taxes certified in 2012 will be collected in 2013.  Taxes 
are due on January 1st in the year of collection; however, they may be paid in either one 
installment (no later than April 30th) or two equal installments (not later than February 28 
and June 15th) without interest or penalty.  Taxes which are not paid within the 
prescribed time bear interest at the rate of one percent (1%) per month until paid.  Unpaid 
amounts and the accrued interest thereon become delinquent on June 15th.  
Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level.  During 
the year, supplementary appropriations were necessary.  Appropriations lapse at the end 
of each calendar year.
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Original Budget Final


Budget Amendments Budget


General Fund 12,744,275$  1,412,976        14,157,251        


Road & Bridge 6,432,603      127,945           6,560,548          


Human Services 3,450,652      279,928           3,730,580          


Sales Tax 1,920,713      (13,521)            1,907,192          


Airport Construct ion 2,579,484      56,667             2,636,151          


Capital Expenditures -                 226,704           226,704             


Conservat ion Trust 20,485           300                  20,785               


Public Health 398,245         45,321             443,566             


Mosquito Control 81,026           1,510               82,536               


Sage Grouse 26,358           60,000             86,358               


Housing Authority Administration 339,739         (19,291)            320,448             


Gunnison Valley Local Marketing District 980,255         245,799           1,226,054          


Airport Operat ions 1,386,178      110,000           1,496,178          


Solid Waste 1,260,481      200,000           1,460,481          


Mountain View 241,838         21,575             263,413             


ISF-I 2,696,667      604,376           3,301,043          


41,994,965$  3,360,289        45,355,254        


III. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability (continued)


B. Budgetary Information


As required by Colorado statutes, the County follows these procedures in establishing the 
budgetary data reflected in the financial statements.


(1) For the 2012 budget, prior to August 25, 2011, the County Assessor sent to the 
County Finance Director a certified assessed valuation of all taxable property 
within the County.


(2) Based on this assessed valuation, the County Finance Director computed a rate 
of levy which when levied would raise the amounts, along with other revenues, 
necessary to fund the County operating requirements.  The levy rate and 
proposed budget was submitted to the County Commissioners before December 
22.


(3) Notice was published within ten (10) days which contained: availability of 
proposed budget for public inspection, date and time of budget adoption meeting, 
and that any County taxpayer may file objection prior to adoption of the budget.


(4) The final budget and appropriating resolution was adopted prior to December 31.


(5) After adoption of the budget resolution, the County may make by resolution the 
following changes:  (i) supplemental appropriations to the extent of revenues in 
excess of the estimated in the budget; (ii) emergency appropriations; and (iii) 
reduction of appropriations for which originally estimated revenues are insufficient. 
At any time during the year, the County may, by resolution, transfer part of all of 
any unexpended funds from one department or fund to another.


B. Budget Amendments


The following amendments were made to the original budget for each fund.
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III. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability (continued)


D. TABOR Amendment – Revenue and Spending Limitation Amendment


In November 1992, Colorado voters amended Article X of the Colorado Constitution by 
adding Section 20; commonly known as the Taxpayer's Bill of Rights (“TABOR”).  TABOR 
contains revenue, spending, tax and debt limitations which apply to the State of Colorado 
and local governments.  TABOR requires, with certain exceptions, advance voter 
approval for any new tax, tax rate increase, mill levy above that for the prior year, 
extension of any expiring tax, or tax policy change directly causing a net tax revenue gain 
to any local government.


Except for refinancing bonded debt at a lower interest rate or adding new employees to 
existing pension plans, TABOR requires advance voter approval for the creation of any 
multiple fiscal year debt or other financial obligation unless adequate present cash 
reserves are pledged irrevocably and held for payments in all future fiscal years.


TABOR also requires local governments to establish emergency reserves to be used for 
declared emergencies only.  Emergencies, as defined by TABOR, exclude economic 
conditions, revenue shortfalls, or salary or fringe benefit increases.  These reserves are 
required to be 3% or more of fiscal year spending (excluding bonded debt service).  The 
County has reserved year-end fund balance in the General Fund for emergencies as 
required under Tabor in the amount of $780,000.


The initial base for local government spending and revenue limits is December 31, 1992.  
Future spending and revenue limits are determined based on the prior year's fiscal year 
spending adjusted for inflation in the prior calendar year plus annual local growth.  Fiscal 
year spending is generally defined as expenditures and reserve increases with certain 
exceptions.  Revenue, if any, in excess of the fiscal year spending limit must be refunded 
in the next fiscal year unless voters approve retention of such revenue.


On November 5, 1996, the County’s electorate approved the following ballot question:


“May Gunnison County, without any increase in County rates and without 
exceeding the property tax revenue limit, keep and spend for County services 
and capital expenditures, in 1996 and each year thereafter, any excess revenues 
from grants, fees, interest, sales tax, and all other revenue sources without being 
limited by the restrictions of Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution 
(commonly known as Amendment 1 and/or the  “Tabor Amendment”)”.


On November 7, 2000 the County’s electorate approved the following ballot question:


“May Gunnison County be authorized to collect, keep, and expend all revenues it 
receives from its property tax levy in 2001 and each year thereafter as a revenue 
change pursuant to Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution provided 
that nothing in this question authorizes the County to increase its permanent rate 
of levy without prior voter approval”.


The County's management believes it is in compliance with the financial provisions of 
TABOR.  However, TABOR is complex and subject to interpretation.  Many of its 
provisions, including the interpretation of how to calculate fiscal year spending limits, will 
require judicial interpretation
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III. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability (continued)


E. Deficit Net Position


The Airport Construction Fund had a deficit of net position at December 31, 2012 of 
$301,347.  The Gunnison County Housing Authority Mountain View Fund had a deficit of 
net position at December 31, 2012 of $180,923.


IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds


A. Deposits and Investments


The County’ deposits are entirely covered by federal depository insurance (“FDIC”) or by 
collateral held under Colorado’s Public Deposit Protection Act (“PDPA”).  The FDIC 
insures the first $250,000 of the County’s deposits at each financial institution.  Deposit 
balances over $250,000 are collateralized as required by PDPA.  The County had the 
following investments and maturities:


Standard


& Poors Carrying Less than Less than


Rating Amounts one year five years


Deposits:


Cash on hand Not Rated 234,537           234,537         -              


Checking Not Rated 1,006,735        1,006,735      -              


Savings Not Rated 1,912,970        1,912,970      -              


CDS Not Rated 7,425,820        2,835,445      4,590,375    


Investments:


Pools AAAm 13,368,392      13,368,392    -              


Agencies - FHLB AAA 1,810,012        -                 1,810,012    


Deposits held by Trustee Not Rated 2,316,926        2,316,926      -              


      Total 28,075,392$    21,675,005        6,400,387        


Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:


Cash and cash equivalents 26,965,722      


Fiduciary Funds 1,109,670        


      Total 28,075,392$    


The Investment Pool represents investments in COLOTRUST and CSAFE which is a 
2a7-like pool.  The fair value of the pool is determined by the pool’s share price.  The 
County has no regulatory oversight for the pool. 


Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to interest rate risk, the County 
diversifies its investments by security type and institution, and limits holdings in any one 
type of investment with any one issuer.  The County coordinates its investment maturities 
to closely match cash flow needs and restricts the maximum investment term to less than 
five years from the purchase date.  As a result of the limited length of maturities the 
County has limited its interest rate risk.  
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)


A. Deposits and Investments (continued)


Credit Risk. State law and County policy limit investments to those authorized by State 
statutes including U.S. Agencies and 2a7-like pools. The County’s general investment 
policy is to apply the prudent-person rule: Investments are made as a prudent person 
would be expected to act, with discretion and intelligence, to seek reasonable income, 
preserve capital, and, in general, avoid speculative investments.


Concentration of Credit Risk. The County diversifies its investments by security type and 
institution.  Investments may only be made in those financial institutions which are 
insured or issued by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal Home 
Mortgage Association, the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation, 
Congressionally authorized mortgage lenders and investments that are federally 
guaranteed.  Financial institutions holding County funds must provide the County a copy 
of the certificate from the Banking Authority that states that the institution is an eligible 
public depository.  Investments in the federally guaranteed Federal Home Loan Bank and 
Federal National Mortgage Association securities represent $5,010,694 of the County’s 
total investments.


Restricted Cash and Investments.  The County has restricted $1,343,708 for debt service 
which exceeds the requirements of the 2010 Certificates of Participation.  The County 
has restricted $580,707 of unspent proceeds from the 2010 Certificates of Participation 
for capital projects.  The County has restricted $86,670 for water resource protection, 
$544,329 related to workforce impact fees, and $2,308,205 for building construction.


B. Component Unit - Gunnison Valley Hospital and Gunnison Health Care Center


1. As of December 31, 2012, the carrying value of Gunnison Valley Hospital and 
Gunnison Health Care Center’s bank balances of $3,569,899 were exposed to 
custodial risk and was collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial 
institution in other than the entity’s name.  


1. As of December 31, 2012, the amount of the Gunnison Valley Hospital and 
Gunnison Health Care Center’s carrying amount of investments was 
$11,751,000.  The investments consisted of mutual funds, money markets, and 
real estate.
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)


C. Receivables


Receivables as of year-end for the County’s funds are as follows:


Sales Tax


Road & Human Capital Airport Capital Non-major


General Bridge Services Improvement Construction Expenditures Governmental Total


Receivables:


  Accounts 6,395,942   892,539         385,584        360,055      236,211             -                290,796         8,561,127    


  Intergovernmental 8,063          -                -                -             -                     -                -                 8,063           


    Total receivables 6,404,005   892,539         385,584        360,055      236,211             -                290,796         8,569,190    


Airport Landfill Assisted Mountain Internal


Operations Sewer Water Operations Living View Service Funds Total


Receivables:


  Accounts 131,392      97,695           46,795          64,365        -                     200                146,156         486,603       


  Other -             9,014             64,806          -             -                     -                -                 73,820         


    Total receivables 131,392      106,709         111,601        64,365        -                     200                146,156         560,423       


Governmental funds report unavailable property tax revenue in connection with 
receivables for revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of 
the current period.  Deferred inflows of resources include property taxes levied in 2012
but not available until 2013.  Governments also defer revenue recognition in connection 
with funds that have been received, but not yet earned.
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)


D. Capital Assets


Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2012 was as follows:


Beginning Ending


Balance Increases Decreases Balance


Governmental activities:


Capital assets, not being depreciated:


Land 1,685,334$    -                      (351,502)           1,333,832        


Construction in progress 12,099,699    443,444           (11,807,476)       735,667          


Total capital assets, not being depreciated 13,785,033    443,444           (12,158,978)       2,069,499        


Capital assets, being depreciated:


Infrastructure 13,042,674    1,242,711        -                        14,285,385      


Improvements 1,133,287      11,214             -                        1,144,501        


Buildings 21,546,241    11,361,685      -                        32,907,926      


Equipment 13,631,761    937,032           (615,271)           13,953,522      


Total capital assets being depreciated 49,353,963    13,552,642      (615,271)           62,291,334      


Less accumulated depreciation for:


Infrastructure (9,755,664)     (521,628)          -                    (10,277,292)    


Improvements (342,248)        (70,679)            -                    (412,927)         


Buildings (5,907,908)     (551,542)          -                    (6,459,450)      


Equipment (9,701,487)     (932,371)          538,553             (10,095,305)    


Total accumulated depreciation (25,707,307)   (2,076,220)       538,553             (27,244,974)    


Total capital assets being depreciated, net 23,646,656    11,476,422      (76,718)             35,046,360      


Governmental activities capital assets, net 37,431,689$  11,919,866      (12,235,696)       37,115,859      


Business-type activities:


Capital assets, not being depreciated:


Land 11,303,849$  -                      -                        11,303,849      


Construction in progress 2,762,299      820,037           (2,533,085)        1,049,251        


Total capital assets not being depreciated 14,066,148    820,037           (2,533,085)        12,353,100      


Capital assets, being depreciated:


Improvements 36,943,752    3,069,929        -                        40,013,681      


Buildings 10,114,284    170,963           (23,395)             10,261,852      


Utility treatment transmission systems 15,240,594    94,069             -                        15,334,663      


Equipment 3,119,840      838,153           (28,698)             3,929,295        


Total capital assets being depreciated 65,418,470    4,173,114        (52,093)             69,539,491      


Less accumulated depreciation for:


Improvements (20,423,516)   (1,346,285)       -                        (21,769,801)    


Buildings (3,884,407)     (290,502)          21,015               (4,153,894)      


Utility treatment transmission systems (7,174,037)     (553,247)          -                        (7,727,284)      


Equipment (2,399,370)     (144,473)          25,334               (2,518,509)      


Total accumulated depreciation (33,881,330)   (2,334,507)       46,349               (36,169,488)    


Total capital assets being depreciated, net 31,537,140    1,838,607        (5,744)               33,370,003      


Business-type activities capital assets, net 45,603,288$  2,658,644        (2,538,829)        45,723,103      
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Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance


Land and improvements 892,540$      18,654          911,194        
Building leasehold improvements 23,287,683   20,831          23,308,514   
Equipment 11,641,558   261,720        (95,382)         11,807,896   


Construction in progress 2,618            27,066          (2,618)           27,066          
Total property and equipment 35,824,399   328,271        (98,000)         36,054,670   


Less: accumulated depreciation (14,819,168)  (1,690,371)    98,000          (16,411,539)  
Capital assets, net 21,005,231$ (1,362,100)    -                    19,643,131   


IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)


D. Capital Assets (continued)


The County had the following depreciation expense for the following functions:


  Governmental Activities:


General government 509,651$       


Judicial 1,184


Public safety 195,618


Health and welfare 717,120


Auxiliary services 15,102


Culture and recreation 79,326


Public works 558,219


     Total Governmental Activities 2,076,220$    


  Business-type Activities:


Airport 1,648,963$    


Sewer 229,151


Water 348,810


Landfill 14,625


Housing 92,957


     Total Business-type Activities 2,334,506$    


E. Component Unit - Gunnison Valley Hospital and Health Care Center - Capital 
Assets


Capital assets consist of the following at December 31, 2012:


Capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 
each asset.  Assets under capital lease obligations are depreciated over the shorter of 
the lease term or their respective estimated useful lives.   
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)


F. Interfund Transfers, Receivables, and Payables (continued)


Interfund balances at December 31, 2012, consisted of the following amounts and 
represent charges for services or reimbursable expenses.  These remaining balances 
resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods or services are 
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the 
accounting period, and (3) payments between funds are made.  The County expects to 
repay all interfund balances within one year.


Transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to 
collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, 2) move
unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs 
accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, and, 3) provide 
additional resources for current operations or debt service.


The following represents interfund balances and transfers at December 31, 2012.  All 
amounts presented below are owed to / received from or transferred through the County 
Treasurer Agency Fund.


Due from Due to Transfer Transfer


County County in (out)


General Fund -             499,334         1,297,613     (1,761,528)  


Road and Bridge Fund -             181,763         216,876        (897,009)    


Human Services Fund -             28,069           -                (115,125)    


Capital improvements Fund 687,098      -                271,743        (642,040)    


Airport Construction 5,004          -                -                110,000      


Capital Expenditures -             11,903           329,859        (144,800)    


Non-major Governmental Funds 24,581        137,521         1,299,226     (221,716)    


Airport Operations -             15,378           -                (192,164)    


Sewer Fund -             9,526             -                (73,205)      


Water Fund -             10,910           23,321          (24,836)      


Landfill operations -             21,880           -                (84,492)      


Mountain View 317            -                -                -             


Internal Service Funds 227,381      2,364             807,525        (199,248)    


Public Trustee Agency Fund -             25,733           -                -             


944,381      944,381         4,246,163     (4,246,163)  


G. Operating Leases


The government is committed under various leases for buildings, office space and data 
processing equipment.  These leases are considered, for accounting purposes, to be 
operating leases. 
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)


H. Long-term Liabilities – Governmental Activities


1. Heavy Equipment Lease


On April 1, 2008, the County signed a lease purchase agreement with Wells 
Fargo Brokerage Services for the purchase of heavy equipment.  The debt was 
recorded on the County’s Internal Service Fund I.  The terms require annual
payments of $163,615 through July 15, 2012 at a stated interest rate of 3.5% per 
annum.  The lease purchase agreement was paid off in July 2012.


2. Open Space Sales Tax Revenue Bonds


The County issued $1,294,000 of Gunnison County Open Space Sales Tax 
Revenue Bonds, series 2002, on May 22, 2002, bearing interest at a fixed rate of 
4.71%, payable on January 1 annually and maturing in 2012.  The bond was paid 
off in January 2012.


The principal and interest on these bonds are to be paid from the Gunnison 
County sales tax of 1%.  One-half (1/2) of the sales tax collected within any 
incorporated municipality is distributed to such municipality.  All other sales tax 
collected is distributed to Gunnison County and used solely for capital outlay, 
capital expenditures, land preservation or retirement of debt thereon.  However, 
as approved in a 1997 County resolution, an annual total of $230,000 is to be 
deposited into a fund for repayment of the Open Space Sales Tax Revenue Bond 
debt and interest.  Of this $230,000, $80,000 is to be collected from the County 
and $150,000 will be collected from municipalities within the County.  


3. Colorado SIB Loans - 2004


In 2004, the County signed two promissory notes totaling $572,064 with the 
Colorado State Investment Bank for use in transportation projects.  Principal and 
interest for the first note in the amount of $60,995 is due annually through 
January 12, 2014, while the second note was repaid during 2009.  Both notes 
have a stated interest rate of 4%.  


4. Rock Creek Lease


On August 10, 2001, the County signed an agreement for the purchase of 
property known as Rock Creek.  The agreement financed $494,900, and requires 
annual payments of $38,392, and provides for interest at 4.7%.  The agreement 
maturity date is July 1, 2021.


During the year ended December 31, 2003, the County refinanced this 
agreement, replacing the property as collateral with three motor graders.  The 
new terms require semi-annual payments of $29,532 on February 25 and August 
25 at an annual interest rate of 4.0%.  Payments began August 25, 2003 with the 
final payment on February 25, 2013.  


5. West Gunnison Property Loan


In 2006 the County signed a loan for West Gunnison Property.  The loan totaled 
$351,502 and required payments each January and July for $22,645.  The loan 
carried an interest rate of 4.85% and matures in 2015.  During 2012, the County 
repaid the entire amount of the loan.
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)


H. Long-term Liabilities – Governmental Activities (continued)


6. Advocacy Center Lease


On December 19, 2005, the County signed an agreement for the purchase of 
property to be used for a Community Advocacy Center.  The agreement financed 
$390,775, and requires annual payments of $48,780, and provides for interest at 
4.250%.  The agreement maturity date is December 19, 2015.  


7. Pitchfork Property Loan


On December 28, 2001 the County signed an agreement with Colorado Housing 
Authority for the purchase of land to be resold to local families to provide 
affordable housing.  The original agreement financed $63,173, with repayment to 
occur by December 31, 2005. On December 1, 2005, there was a modification to 
this agreement which refinanced $30,665. New terms require monthly payments 
of $211, and provides for interest at 4.00%. The agreement maturity date is July 
30, 2023.  


8. Airport Construction Loan


On October 20, 2009 the County signed a loan agreement for a Broom Truck.  
The loan totaled $188,238 and requires annual payments each July of $23,627.  
The loan carries and interest rate of 4.60% and matures on July 15, 2019.


9. 2010 Tax-Exempt Certificates of Participation (Series A)


On September 2, 2010 the County issued $730,000 in Certificates of 
Participation with interest ranging from 2.00% to 3.00%.  The net proceeds of 
$731,508 (after payment of $10,463 in underwriting fees and other issuance 
costs, and a premium of $11,972) were deposited with a Trustee to provide for 
construction of a public safety center and public works facility.  The Certificates of 
Participation are paid through a lease purchase agreement with the County.  The 
lease is subject to annual appropriation.  The issue requires semi-annual 
payment on January 1


st
and July 1


st
from $167,500 to $197,500 until December 


1, 2012.  The Certificate of Participation was repaid during 2012.


10. 2010 Taxable Certificates of Participation (Series B)


On September 2, 2010 the County issued $17,270,000 in Certificates of 
Participation with interest ranging from 2.25% to 6.125%.  The net proceeds of 
$17,022,464 (after payment of $247,536 in underwriting fees and other issuance 
costs) were deposited with a Trustee to provide for construction of a public safety 
center and public works facility.  The Certificates of Participation are paid through 
a lease purchase agreement with the County.  The lease is subject to annual 
appropriation.  The issue requires semi-annual payment on January 1


st
and July 


1
st


from $202,500 to $487,500 until December 1, 2040.
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)


H. Long-term Liabilities – Governmental Activities (continued)


10. 2010 Taxable Certificates of Participation (Series B) (Continued)


These certificates are Qualified Build America Bonds, which indicates the 
certificates are not tax-exempt.  Under the Build America Program, the County 
may apply for interest cost subsidies from the federal government.  Such 
subsidies will be used by the County to pay debt service on these certificates.  
During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, the County recognized revenue 
of $0 related to this subsidy.


These certificates are secured by a Reserve Fund.  In accordance with
certificates indentures, the County has restricted cash and net position equal to 
$1,343,708.


These 2010B certificates are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option 
of the County at par plus accrued interest without a redemption premium.


11. 2010 Energy Improvement Lease


On August 1, 2010, the County entered into lease purchase agreements for the 
purchase and construction of various building improvements throughout the 
County.  The purchased assets included heating, lighting, and air-conditioning 
controls at a cost of $1,168,919.  The lease agreements provide for a reduction 
of payments if certain budgeted energy savings are not realized.  A portion of the 
debt has been recorded on the Airport Operations Fund and the Housing 
Authority Fund with the remaining amount included in the Government-wide 
Statement of Net Position – Governmental Activities column.  The lease 
purchase has a ten year term.  Semi-annual payments are required on February 
1 and August 1 of each year through August 1, 2020.  


12. 1416 Rock Creek Loan


In 2010 the County signed a loan for the 1416 Rock Creek Property.   The loan 
totaled $104,000 and requires monthly payments of $612 and a final estimated 
payment of $92,819.  The loan carries an interest rate of 5.00% and matures on 
October 1, 2015.


13. 1420 Rock Creek Loan 


In 2011 the County signed a loan for the 1420 Rock Creek Property.   The loan 
totaled $85,000 and requires monthly payments of $552 and a final estimated 
payment of $76,843.  The loan carries an interest rate of 5.99% and matures on 
April 15, 2016.


14. Stallion Park Loan


In 2010 the County signed a loan for the Stallion Park Property.   The loan 
totaled $94,400 and requires monthly payments of $607 and a final estimated 
payment of $85,517.  The loan carries an interest rate of 5.90% and matures on 
January 15, 2015.
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)


H. Long-term Liabilities – Governmental Activities (continued)


15. Colorado SIB Loan - 2011


In 2011, the County signed a promissory note totaling $1,000,000 with the 
Colorado State Investment Bank for use in transportation projects.  Principal and 
interest for the note in the amount of $355,231 were due beginning July 25, 2012 
annually through July 25, 2014.  The note had a stated interest rate of 3.25%. 
During 2012, the County repaid the entire amount of the note.


I. Long-term Liabilities – Business-type Activities


1. Impact Assistance Loan Funds - Somerset


During the year ended December 31, 2003, the County received $100,000 from 
the Colorado Department of Local Affairs for the assistance financing the 
installation of a new water treatment system for the community of Somerset, 
Colorado.  The loan is payable in 20 annual installments of $8,024, including 
interest at the rate of 5% per annum, beginning September 1, 2004.


The County levies the necessary charges, fees and assessments to raise 
revenues for repayment of the loan as well as for operational and maintenance 
costs of the wastewater treatment facilities.


2. Antelope Hills Water Line Extension Loan


In 2012, the County received interim financing to cover the costs of the Antelope 
Hills water line extension project.  Funds received during the year totaled 
$808,147 and are due in full when the County receives additional funding for the 
project from the USDA. The loan carries an interest rate of 2.5% and has no set 
maturity. 


3. Mineral Impact Loan


On November 4, 2004 the County took out a mineral impact loan with the 
Colorado Department of Local Affairs for $200,000.  The loan is financed by the 
Sewer Fund and the proceeds were used for the North Gunnison County sewer 
reconstruction project.  The loan requires payments totaling $19,108 annually 
thru 2019 with a 5% interest rate.


4. Sewer Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds


The County issued $1,519,270 of Gunnison County Sewer Fund, North Gunnison 
Sewer Project Refunding Bonds, on October 15, 2005, bearing interest at 4.25%.  
The bonds require semi-annual payments of $39,669 each June 1 and 
December 1.  The bonds are subject to optional redemption without any 
additional premium.  The bonds mature in 2044.


In 2006 the County issued and additional revenue bond totaling $322,000 with an 
interest rate of 4.25%.  The Bonds require payments of $8,408 and mature in 
2046.
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)


I. Long-term Liabilities – Business-type Activities (continued)


5. Gunnison County Housing Authority


Primary Mortgage.  In 2003 the Housing Authority, a blended component unit of 
the County, agreed to a mortgage, which is subject to a first deed of trust 
including a lien on, and pledge of, the gross revenues derived and to be derived 
from operation of the Mountain View housing project, payable to the Colorado 
Housing Finance Authority in the amount of $528,100.  The loan requires $3,082 
per month, including interest at 5.75%, with payment on October 1, 2033.


Surplus Cash.  During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Housing Authority 
received $378,864 from the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, 
Washington D.C. evidenced by a Note Payable and secured by the Mountain 
View Apartments.  The maturity date of the Note is November 1, 2033 with an 
interest rate of 1.0% per annum, to accrue on the original principal balance until 
maturity.  The Authority is required to establish a reserve fund to accumulate 
funds at a rate of $425 per month for the replacement and major maintenance 
costs.  Additionally, there are certain mortgage issuance costs relating to the 
refunding under HUD’s Mark-to-Market (M2M) program being amortized over the 
course of the new mortgage which total $ -   ,net of accumulated amortization, at 
December 31, 2012.


Contingent Payable.   During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Housing 
Authority received $624,011 from the Secretary of Housing and Urban 
Development, Washington D.C., evidenced by a Note Payable and secured by 
the Mountain View Apartments.  The maturity date of the Note is November 1, 
2033 with an interest rate of 1.0% per annum, annually, on the unpaid principal 
balance until paid.


6. $600,000 Revenue Note, Series 2001


In 2001, Gunnison County Housing Authority issued a $710,000 revenue note, 
dated November 6, 2001, pledged with a security interest in the revenues and 
property associated with the Palisades Assisted Living Center (the “Center’).  
The note has a 5.9% annual coupon rate and a maturity date of November 1, 
2020.  The note was later amended to reduce the outstanding balance to 
$600,000.


During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Authority refinanced the 
outstanding balance.  The new terms provide for a lower interest rate of 4.13%, 
fixed until November 1, 2005, after which the rate will be adjusted to 4.14%.  The 
loan is payable in 207 regular monthly payments of $3,041 and one irregular last 
payment estimated at $290,153. 


The Center (which includes the Willows Assisted Living Facility) was then leased 
to the Board of Trustees of the Gunnison Valley Hospital.  The lease term is for a 
period of four years, commencing on February 20, 2008. The lease was 
extended for another two years in a similar agreement on February 21, 2012.  
The lease can be terminated, extended, or modified with the mutual agreement 
of both parties.
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)


I. Long-term Liabilities – Business-type Activities (continued)


7. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Liability


In accordance with EPA requirements the County has conducted a study to 
estimate its liability to close the landfill and monitor it for thirty years thereafter.  
These costs are reflected as the landfill accepts waste.  The County’s landfill has 
used 73% to date of the currently developed cell’s capacity and has five years
left on its currently developed cell.  Additional cells will be opened as needed.  
The landfill liability recorded at year end is $965,789.  The estimated total current 
cost of closure and post-closure care remaining to be recognized is $361,661.  
The estimated total amount of the landfill closure and post-closure cost is based 
on the amount that would be paid if all equipment, facilities, and services 
required to close, monitor, and maintain the landfill were acquired as of 
December 31, 2012.  However, the actual cost of closure and post-closure may 
be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landfill laws and 
regulations.


The County is required by state and federal laws and regulations to provide 
adequate financial resources to pay for all closure and post-closure care.  At 
December 31, 2012, the County had reserved $1,243,380 for these purposes.  
The remaining portion of anticipated future inflation costs and additional costs 
that might arise from changes in post-closure requirements (due to changes in
technology or more rigorous environmental regulations, for example) may need 
to be covered by charges to future landfill users, taxpayers, or both.


J. Long-term Liabilities - Compensated Absences


The County has a policy of allowing the accumulation of paid vacation and sick leave, 
subject to certain maximum limits.  In accordance with GAAP, the County’s approximate 
liability for vacation pay earned by employees at December 31, 2012 has been reflected 
in the proprietary type fund financial statements and in the governmental activities 
column of the government-wide financial statements.  Compensated absences for 
governmental activities are generally liquidated by the General Fund.
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Beginning Ending Due Within


Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year


Governmental Activities:


Internal Service Fund:


  Heavy Equipment Lease 158,082         -                (158,082)    -                     -                


  Compensated Absences 84,505           819               -             85,324 34,130           


Other Governmental Debt:


  Open Space Sales Tax Revenue


      Bonds, Series 2002 133,763         -                (133,763)    -                     -                


  Colorado SIB Loan - 2004 169,267         -                (54,225)      115,042             56,396           


  Rock Creek Lease 85,165           -                (56,213)      28,952               28,952           


  West Gunnison Property Loan 162,621         -                (162,621)    -                     -                


  Advocacy Center 176,029         -                (41,299)      134,730             43,054           


  Pitchfork Loan 23,462           -                (1,621)        21,841               1,683             


  Airport Construction 155,113         -                (16,393)      138,720             17,246           


  Certificates of Participation - 2010 17,665,000    -                (395,000)    17,270,000        405,000         


  Energy Improvement Lease - 2010 1,070,816      -                (101,866)    968,950             105,774         


  Rock Creek Loan 1416 101,497         -                (2,241)        99,256               2,372             


  Rock Creek Loan 1420 83,963           -                (1,636)        82,327               1,670             


  Stallion Park Loan 91,041           -                (1,877)        89,164               2,008             


 Colorado SIB Loan - 2011 1,000,000      -                (1,000,000)  -                     -                


  Compensated Absences 1,346,416      -                (6,055)        1,340,361 536,144         


Total Governmental Activities 


   Long-term Liabilities 22,506,740    819               (2,132,892)  20,374,667        1,234,429      


Business-type Activities:


Impact Assistance Loan Funds - Water 69,363           -                (4,557)        64,806 4,784             


Antelope Hills Water Line Extension Loan -                808,147        -             808,147 808,147         


DOLA Mineral Impact Loan 123,498         -                (12,933)      110,565 13,580           


North Gunnison Sewer Revenue Bond - 2005 1,391,850      -                (20,463)      1,371,387 20,870           


North Gunnison Sewer Revenue Bond - 2006 301,355         -                (3,988)        297,367             4,159             


Gunnison County Housing Authority:


  Mortgage - Primary Mortgage 458,893         -                (10,880)      448,013             11,494           


  Mortgage - Surplus Cash 446,320         -                (39,546)      406,774             -                


  Mortgage - Contingent Payable 378,864         -                -             378,864             -                


  Note Payable - Palisades


    Living Center 466,124         -                (17,199)      448,925 18,324           


Accrued Liability for Landfill Closure Costs 1,034,310      73,285          (141,806)    965,789             -                


Compensated Absences 101,980         11,559          -             113,539 45,415           


Total Business-type Activities 


   Long-term Liabilities 4,772,557      892,991        (251,372)    5,414,176          926,773         


IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)


K. Long-term Liabilities – Summary


Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2012 was as follows:
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Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest


2013 664,155        1,006,120    851,540    83,406      -            -            29,818      43,652      1,545,513    1,133,178    


2014 649,555        987,073       45,386      84,400      -            -            31,268      42,202      726,209       1,113,675    


2015 777,866        961,504       47,471      81,656      -            -            32,790      40,680      858,127       1,083,840    


2016 642,051        935,231       49,652      78,804      -            -            34,344      39,126      726,047       1,053,161    


2017 575,582        915,396       51,935      75,837      -            -            36,066      37,404      663,583       1,028,637    


2018 2022 2,778,211     4,238,021    237,543    333,225    -            -            433,192    141,966    3,448,946    4,713,212    


2023 2027 2,736,562     3,579,382    212,292    273,398    -            -            114,765    70,146      3,063,619    3,922,926    


2028 2032 3,305,000     2,705,089    256,253    224,426    -            -            152,897    32,014      3,714,150    2,961,529    


2033 2037 4,010,000     1,616,694    316,220    164,459    -            -            817,436    7,183        5,143,656    1,788,336    


2038 2042 2,810,000     348,819       390,221    90,458      -            -            -            -            -              -               


2043 2047 -                -               193,759    20,145      -            -            
18,948,982    17,293,328  2,652,272 1,510,214 -            -            1,682,576 454,373    19,889,850  18,798,493  


Housing Authority Total


Dates


Governmental Funds Business-Type Internal Service Funds


IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)


L. Long-term Liabilities – Activity and Debt Service Schedules


Debt service requirements at December 31, 2012 were as follows:


M. Long-term Liabilities – Component Unit


1. Hospital Revenue Bonds - Series 1998 Revenue Bonds, remaining annual 
maturities of $350,000 to $715,000, through July 1, 2023, bearing interest at 
rates ranging from 5.300% to 5.625%, payable semiannually.  


The Series 1998 Bonds are issued pursuant to and are secured by the Bond 
Resolution.  The Bonds are limited obligations payable solely from the net 
revenues derived from operations of the Hospital and Health Care Center.


Series 2010 Revenue Bonds, remaining annual maturities of $300,000 to 
$480,000, through September 1, 2023, bearing interest at 65% of monthly Libor 
plus 1.95%, payable semiannually.


The Series 2010 Bonds are issued pursuant to and are secured by the Bond 
Resolution.  The Bonds are limited obligations payable solely from the net 
revenues derived from operations of the Hospital and Health Care Center.


Series 2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds, remaining annual maturities of $435,000 
to $595,000, through July 1, 2023, bearing interest at 2.7% payable 
semiannually.  The Bonds were issued to advance refund the aforementioned 
Series 1998 Bonds.


The Series 2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds are issued pursuant to and are 
secured by the Bond Resolution.  The Bonds are limited obligations payable 
solely from the net revenues derived from operations of the Hospital and Health 
Care Center.
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)


M. Long-term Liabilities – Component Unit (continued)


The indenture agreements for the Series 2010 and 2012 Revenue Bonds require 
that certain funds be established with the trustee. Accordingly, these funds are 
included as assets held by trustee for debt service in the combined statements of 
net position. The indenture agreement also requires the Organizations to comply 
with certain restrictive covenants including minimum insurance coverage, 
maintaining a debt-service coverage ratio of at least 1.25, have 90 days of cash 
on hand, and restrictions on incurrence of additional debt.


During 2012 the Organizations’ debt-service coverage ratio was below the 
required ratio. A forbearance agreement was entered into on September 28, 
2012, which reduced the required debt-service coverage ratio to 1.10 until May 
31, 2013, at which time the required ratio goes back to 1.25. Management 
believes the Organizations were in compliance with the restrictive covenants at 
December 31, 2012.


Gunnison County was required to guarantee the debt service payments in 
connection with the issuance of the Series 2012 Revenue Refunding Bonds as 
additional security for the Bond.  The County was required to establish a reserve 
account (“County Reserve Fund”) in the amount of $750,000 with CoBiz Bank.  
Should the County Reserve Fund be utilized to pay the debt service the County 
will be require to replenish the fund.  The Hospital pledges to reimburse the 
County, on a subordinate basis to the 2010 and 2012 Bonds.  As a provision of 
the guarantee agreement, the County Reserve Fund can be reduced to $375,000 
and potentially $0 between now and December 31, 2014 if certain financial 
performance measures are met by the Hospital.  As of December 31, 2012 the 
required balance was $750,000.


2. Interest Rate Swap Agreement – In connection with the Series 2010 Revenue 
Bonds, the Hospital entered into a interest rate swap agreement with the 
intention of effectively changing the Hospital’s variable interest rate to a synthetic 
fixed rate of 4.025%.  As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the agreement had a 
fair value of $563,874 and $497,739, respectively. The value is calculated using 
the par-value method.


3. Capital Lease Obligations – The Hospital is obligated under a lease for 
equipment that is account for as a capital lease.  The assets under capital leases 
at December 31, 2012 and 2011, totaled $2,345,081, net of accumulated 
depreciation of $755,787 and $286,771, respectively.  There are two separate 
capital leases entered into that require monthly payments of $4,672 and $37,064, 
at interest rates of 2.90% and 2.59%, respectively. The lease terms are through 
October 2015 and May 2016, respectively.
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)


M. Long-term Liabilities – Component Unit (continued)


The Gunnison Valley Hospital and Health Care Center have the following long-term 
liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2012:


Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year


Hospital revenue bonds 13,875,054$   5,720,000   (6,765,000)   12,830,054   740,000      
Capital lease obligations 2,057,505       -                  (452,563)      1,604,942     464,355      


Total Long-term Liabilities 15,932,559     5,720,000   (7,217,563)   14,434,996   1,204,355   
Deferred Loss on Refinancing -                      (101,563)     -                   (101,563)       -                  


Total Long-term Liabilities 15,932,559$   5,618,437   (7,217,563)   14,333,433   1,204,355   


Debt service requirements at December 31, 2012 were as follows:


Principal Interest Principal Interest


2013 740,000$          358,546            464,354            36,480              


2014 825,000            408,747            476,689            24,145              


2015 840,000            381,702            479,996            11,494              


2016 850,000            354,252            183,903            1,417                


2017 890,000            326,029            -                       -                       


2018-2022 4,970,000         1,162,204         -                       -                       


2023 3,715,054         78,050              -                       -                       


Total Long-term Liabilities 12,830,054$     3,069,530         1,604,942         73,536              


Bonds Capital Lease


O. Fund Balance Disclosures


The County classifies governmental fund balances as follows:


Non-spendable - includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is 
not in spendable form or because of legal or contractual requirements.


Spendable Fund Balance:
Restricted – includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific 
purposes which are externally imposed by providers, such as creditors or 
amounts constrained due to constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.


Committed – includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific 
purposes that are internally imposed by the government through formal action of 
the highest level of decision making authority which is the Board of County 
Commissioners. The County’s original budget legislation begins with combining 
historical data, assessment of needs for the upcoming year and the Board’s 
platform to review, and/or make changes to each department’s budget. Before 
year end, a budgetary committee will meet again with each department for final 
review and approval of preliminary budget. The Budget is then formally 
presented to the Board via an advertised public process for their review, 
revisions and final approval by year end. All subsequent budget requests made 
during the year, after Board approval, must be presented via a public process 
and again approval by the Board.
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)


O. Fund Balance Disclosures (continued)


Assigned – includes spendable fund balance amounts that are intended to be 
used for specific purposes that are neither considered restricted or committed. 
Fund Balance may be assigned by the Board or its management designee.


Unassigned - includes residual positive fund balance within the General Fund 
which has not been classified within the other above mentioned categories. 
Unassigned fund balance may also include negative balances for any 
governmental fund if expenditures exceed amounts restricted, committed, or 
assigned for those specific purposes.


The County uses restricted amounts to be spent first when both restricted and restricted 
fund balance is available unless there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit doing 
this, such as in grant agreements requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the 
County would first use committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts of 
unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are made. 


The County does not have a formal minimum fund balance policy. However, the County’s 
budget includes a calculation of a targeted reserve positions and the Administration 
calculates targets and report them annually to the Board.


As of December 31, 2012, fund balances are composed of the following:


 General Fund 


 Other 


Governmental 


Funds 


 Total 


Governmental 


Funds  Description 
Non-spendable:


Prepaid expenses -$                 20,000$          20,000$          
Restricted:


Emergency reserve 780,000           -                  780,000          Legislative Restriction
Hospital Guarantee 750,000           -                  750,000          Debt Restriction
Road and Bridge -                   4,715,561       4,715,561       Legislative Restriction
Human Services -                   492,561          492,561          Legislative Restriction
Sales Tax Capital Improvement -                   1,861,418       1,861,418       Ballot Restriction
Capital Expenditure -                   1,924,415       1,924,415       Debt Restriction
Conservation Trust -                   85,133            85,133            Legislative Restriction
Land Preservation -                   335,364          335,364          Ballot Restriction
Local Marketing District -                   435,525          435,525          Ballot Restriction


Committed:
Water Resource Protection 86,671             -                  86,671            BOCC Resolution
Workforce Impact Fees 544,329           -                  544,329          BOCC Resolution
Jailhouse Construction 2,308,205        -                  2,308,205       BOCC Resolution
Courthouse Renovation 324,285           -                  324,285          BOCC Resolution
Public Health -                   20,688            20,688            BOCC Resolution
Mosquito Control -                   18,127            18,127            BOCC Resolution
Sage Grouse -                   155,527          155,527          BOCC Resolution


Assigned:
Capital Expenditure -                   406,762          406,762          General Designation
Risk Management -                   435,612          435,612          General Designation
Housing Authority Administration -                   102,302          102,302          General Designation


Unassigned
Unassigned 2,655,436        (301,347)         2,354,089       


Total Fund Balances 7,448,926$      10,707,648$   18,156,574$   
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V. Other Information


A. Pension Plans


The County is a member of the Colorado County Officials and Employees Retirement 
Association (“CCOERA”) which offers a defined contribution pension plan 401(a), and a 
Section 457 deferred compensation plan.  CCOERA was organized in 1966 pursuant to 
state statutes, and includes counties, municipalities and special districts.  The 401(a) plan 
requires mandatory pre-tax contributions, which are established by the employer, up to a 
maximum of 6%.


1. Defined Contribution Pension Plan


Under a defined contribution pension plan, the benefits a participant will receive 
depend upon separation from employment; include the total of all employee 
contributions, the returns earned on investments of those contributions, and the 
vested percentage of the employer match.


Participation is mandatory for all regular employees who work 1040 or more 
hours per year and contributions begin the first day of the month after the date of 
employment.  Eligible employees contribute three percent (3%) of their base pay 
which is matched by the County.  The plan has a five (5) year vesting period and 
is distributed upon the employee’s separation from employment.  Participants 
may also voluntarily contribute up to ten percent (10%) of an employee’s base 
pay as an after-tax contribution in the plan.


During the year, the County's required and actual contributions amounted to 
$278,272 which was three percent (3%) of its current year covered payroll of 
$9,275,719.  The County's total payroll for 2012 was $9,742,513.  The County’s 
employees contributed $278,272.  


No pension provision changes occurred during the year that affected the required 
contributions made by the County or its employees.


2. Deferred Compensation Plan


The County offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in 
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.  The plan provides for 
salary deferral, in which the County will match up to the first two percent (2%) of 
base pay for all employees who work 1040 or more hours per year.  All 
employees can voluntarily contribute tax sheltered or after-tax base pay to the 
457 plan up to the current year maximum amount which is determined annually 
by the IRS.


All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights 
purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, 
property, or rights are to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the plan 
participants and their beneficiaries.  Amounts contributed to the Deferred 
Compensation Plan are not available to employees until separation from 
employment or unforeseeable emergency. CCOERA also now offers loans on 
account balances above $5,000.
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V. Other Information (continued)


A. Pension Plans (continued)


2. Deferred Compensation Plan (continued)


For 2012, the County contributed $146,367 to the Deferred Compensation Plan  
on behalf of participating employees, which represents the required 2% 
contribution based on 2012 covered payroll of $7,318,350.


The County has no liability for losses under the plan but does have the duty of 
due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor.  The County 
does not administer the plan and is not the Trustee of the plan.


B. Other Employee Benefits


1. Post Employment Health Care Benefits


All County employees covered by COBRA insurance may continue their health 
insurance due to a reduction in work hours or termination of employment.  
Employees who elect continued coverage must pay the County for premiums 
from the termination date of coverage and monthly thereafter.  No cost to the 
County is recognized as employees reimburse 102% of their premium cost to the 
County.


2. Cafeteria Plan


The County offers a cafeteria compensation plan organized under IRS Section 
125 that includes the following benefits:  medical disability, accident and/or term 
life insurance, health expense reimbursement and child care benefits.  No cost to 
the County is recognized as the plan is a salary reduction plan.


C. Retirement Plan - Component Unit - Gunnison Valley Hospital and Health Care 
Center


The Organizations participate in the Colorado County Officials and Employees 
Retirement Association's defined contribution plan (the "Plan").  The Hospital contributes 
5% and the Center contributes 3% for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 on 
behalf of the employees who participate in the Plan.  Employees become eligible for the 
Plan after working the lesser of one year or 1,040 hours and are vested in the 
contributions to the Plan over a five-year period.  In May 2012, the Hospital discontinued 
the employer match.  Employer plan contributions for the years ended December 31, 
2012 and 2011 were $219,121 and $357,664 for the Hospital, respectively, and $153,785
and $144,844 for the Center, respectively. Employee contributions range from 5% to 
25%.
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V. Other Information (continued)


D. Risk Management


The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the 
government carries commercial insurance.


The County mitigates risk through the following self-insurance pools and funds:


1. Colorado Counties Casualty and Property Pool


The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to property and casualty 
losses.  The County joined together with other counties in the State of Colorado 
to form the Colorado Counties Casualty and Property Pool (“CAPP”), a public 
entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance 
program for member counties.  The County pays an annual contribution to CAPP 
for its property and casualty insurance coverage.  The intergovernmental 
agreement of formation of CAPP provides that the pool will be financially self-
sustaining through member contributions and additional assessments, if 
necessary, and the pool will purchase excess insurance through commercial 
companies for members' claims in excess of a specified self-insured retention, 
which is determined each policy year.


The County participates in CAPP’s Partially Self-Funded Program whereby the 
County self funds a portion of its anticipated property and casualty claims.


2. Unemployment Insurance


The County has established Internal Service Funds to account for its risk 
associated with unemployment claims.


Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the 
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.  Liabilities include amounts for 
claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNRs).  Claim liabilities are 
calculated considering the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends 
including frequency and amount of pay-outs and other economic and social 
factors.  The County had no liability for anticipated unemployment claims at 
December 31, 2012.


3. Self-Insurance Unemployment Pool


The County is designated as a Reimbursable Employer for unemployment 
claims.  A reserve has been established to reimburse the State for 
unemployment claims as they arise, instead of paying unemployment tax on a 
quarterly basis.


4. Self-Insurance Health Insurance Pool


The County has established an internal service fund to account for partially self-
funded employee health insurance costs.  The County accumulates resources to 
pay health insurance costs, but carries a stop loss policy for individuals of 
$40,000 and an aggregate stop loss minimum exposure of $1,218,520 with IOA 
Re-Insurance Company.
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V. Other Information (continued)


E. Commitments and Contingencies


1. Lawsuits


The County is currently the defendant in several lawsuits.  Based upon the 
opinion of its legal counsel, any material claims would be covered by insurance.


2. Grants


Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and 
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government.  Any 
disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability 
of the applicable funds.  The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be 
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the County 
expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.


3. Guarantee


Gunnison County was required to guarantee the debt service payments in 
connection with the issuance of the Hospital’s aforementioned Series 2012 
Revenue Refunding Bonds as additional security for the Bond.  The County was 
required to establish a reserve account (“County Reserve Fund”) in the amount 
of $750,000 with CoBiz Bank.  Should the County Reserve Fund be utilized to 
pay the debt service the County will be require to replenish the fund.  The 
Hospital pledges to reimburse the County, on a subordinate basis to the 2010 
and 2012 Bonds. As a provision of the guarantee agreement, the County 
Reserve Fund can be reduced to $375,000 and potentially $0 between now and 
December 31, 2014 if certain financial performance measures are met by the 
Hospital.  As of December 31, 2012 the required balance was $750,000.


F. Possible Violations of State Statutes - Budgets


The following funds had expenditures over budget; this may be a violation of Colorado 
state statutes:


Final (Over)


Budget Actual Budget


Debt Service Fund 947,155         1,341,876     (394,721)    


Capital Expenditures 226,704         437,339        (210,635)    


Mosquito Control 82,536           82,656          (120)           


G. Subsequent Events


In 2013, the County anticipates entering into a combined grant and loan agreement with 
the USDA to fund the Antelope Hills water extension rural development project.  The 
County will finance approximately $1,288,000 with the USDA in conjunction with the 
project.  


In March 2013, the County entered into loan agreement with the Colorado State 
Infrastructure Bank (SIB) for $354,200 to fund the 2012 purchase of a rapid response 
emergency vehicle.


Management has evaluated all other subsequent events through July 31, 2013, the date 
these financial statements were available to be issued, and determined that no others
required disclosure.
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Gunnison County, Colorado
General Fund


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Revenues:
Taxes 7,220,768     7,220,768     7,217,775     (2,993)           7,792,287     


2012


Taxes 7,220,768     7,220,768     7,217,775     (2,993)           7,792,287     
Licenses and permits 328,470        313,470        300,777        (12,693)         388,066        
Intergovernmental 1,538,737     1,664,420     1,851,822     187,402        1,686,634     
Charges for services 1,313,908     1,313,908     1,463,533     149,625        1,510,712     
Investment income 102,325        (59,720)         114,298        174,018        172,743        
Contributions 101,046        101,046        120,498        19,452          626,122        
Miscellaneous 344,656        349,256        388,456        39,200          188,664        


      Total Revenues 10,949,910   10,903,148   11,457,159   554,011        12,365,228   


Expenditures:
General government 7,248,581     7,315,327     6,542,919     772,408        7,161,876     
Judicial 251,665        251,665        251,665        -                251,665        
Public Safety 2,827,487     2,895,641     2,785,521     110,120        2,766,106     
Health and welfare 880,848        893,735        823,151        70,584          914,683        
Auxiliary services 274,436        274,436        257,857        16,579          273,621        
Culture and recreation 255,115        296,187        279,413        16,774          243,546        
Public works 150,223        150,223        137,559        12,664          127,869        
Debt service 28,962          199,406        205,559        (6,153)           33,376          Debt service 28,962          199,406        205,559        (6,153)           33,376          


      Total Expenditures 11,917,317   12,276,620   11,283,644   992,976        11,772,742   


 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
    Over Expenditures (967,407)       (1,373,472)    173,515        1,546,987     592,486        


Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 1,011,720     1,043,490     1,297,613     254,123        862,619        
Transfers (out) (826,958)       (1,880,631)    (1,761,528)    119,103        (368,718)       Transfers (out) (826,958)       (1,880,631)    (1,761,528)    119,103        (368,718)       
Sale of capital assets -                100,000        101,227        1,227            -                
Debt proceeds -                -                -                -                85,000          


     Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 184,762        (737,141)       (362,688)       374,453        578,901        


Net Change in Fund Balances (782,645)       (2,110,613)    (189,173)       1,921,440     1,171,387     


Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 7,638,099     6,466,712     


Fund Balances - End of Year 7,448,926     7,638,099     Fund Balances - End of Year 7,448,926     7,638,099     


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Gunnison County, Colorado
General Fund


Schedule of Revenues - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Taxes:
General property taxes 6,990,454     6,990,454     6,950,562     (39,892)         7,535,743     
Specific ownership tax 210,114        210,114        242,170        32,056          222,982        
Delinquent tax and interest 20,200          20,200          25,042          4,842            33,562          


2012


Delinquent tax and interest 20,200          20,200          25,042          4,842            33,562          
       Total Taxes 7,220,768     7,220,768     7,217,774     (2,994)           7,792,287     
Licenses and Permits:


Liquor licenses 1,500            1,500            4,283            2,783            8,195            
Building permits 185,000        170,000        130,130        (39,870)         121,698        
Other licenses and permits 141,970        141,970        166,365        24,395          258,172        


       Total Licenses and Permits 328,470        313,470        300,778        (12,692)         388,065        
Intergovernmental:


Federal Grants 360,873        374,393        422,955        48,562          345,142        
State Grants 1,040,517     1,152,680     1,308,563     155,883        1,236,709     State Grants 1,040,517     1,152,680     1,308,563     155,883        1,236,709     
Local Grants 137,347        137,347        120,304        (17,043)         104,783        


       Total Intergovernmental 1,538,737     1,664,420     1,851,822     187,402        1,686,634     
Charges for Services:


Clerk and recorder 277,601        277,601        433,242        155,641        329,477        
Sheriff's fees 69,000          69,000          68,278          (722)              69,576          
Treasurer's fees 750,000        750,000        715,265        (34,735)         828,236        
Other Fees 88,507          88,507          106,410        17,903          143,566        
Assessor's Fees 10,000          10,000          15,057          5,057            13,685          
Public Health Fees 55,700          55,700          43,392          (12,308)         46,829          Public Health Fees 55,700          55,700          43,392          (12,308)         46,829          
Useful Public Service 42,000          42,000          38,266          (3,734)           43,028          
Court Fines & Fees 21,100          21,100          43,623          22,523          36,316          


       Total Charges for Services 1,313,908     1,313,908     1,463,533     149,625        1,510,713     
Other Revenue:


Investment income 102,325        (59,720)         114,298        174,018        172,743        
Contributions 101,046        101,046        120,498        19,452          626,122        
Miscellaneous 344,656        349,256        388,456        39,200          188,664        


       Total Other Revenue 548,027        390,582        623,252        232,670        987,529        


       Total Revenues 10,949,910   10,903,148   11,457,159   554,011        12,365,228   


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


General Government:
Commissioners 574,938        574,938        451,766        123,172        394,877        


2012


Gunnison County, Colorado
General Fund


Schedule of Expenditures - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


Commissioners 574,938        574,938        451,766        123,172        394,877        
Board Support 109,385        109,385        111,485        (2,100)           102,834        
Executive Management 285,830        285,830        221,851        63,979          222,847        
Public Information 60,920          60,920          54,539          6,381            40,802          
Clerk 45,263          45,263          43,739          1,524            43,079          
Motor Vehicle 198,710        198,710        199,681        (971)              185,442        
Recording 122,702        122,702        118,343        4,359            143,375        
Elections 271,029        310,121        307,508        2,613            200,833        
Revenue (Treasurer) 265,154        265,154        248,899        16,255          291,334        
Investments (Treasurer) 16,321          16,321          13,495          2,826            20,905          
Human Resources 109,044        109,044        106,979        2,065            107,614        
Wildlife Conservation 111,932        111,932        110,425        1,507            106,189        
County Attorney 579,609        579,609        561,591        18,018          586,864        
Facilities & Grounds 789,666        804,195        646,228        157,967        545,202        Facilities & Grounds 789,666        804,195        646,228        157,967        545,202        
Project Services 114,466        114,466        92,777          21,689          96,144          
Assessment Administration 294,861        294,861        274,616        20,245          258,168        
Appraisal 353,873        353,873        372,551        (18,678)         335,006        
Appeals 140,637        140,637        138,947        1,690            121,156        
Personal Property 65,942          65,942          66,432          (490)              72,107          
Permitting & Plan Review 446,011        446,011        289,248        156,763        404,864        
Inspections 94,293          94,293          82,617          11,676          82,686          
Response & Resolution 83,846          83,846          79,771          4,075            81,110          
Data Collection 134,782        147,907        141,430        6,477            191,670        
Codes & Regulations 71,734          71,734          73,381          (1,647)           73,089          
Accounting & Auditing 304,095        304,095        292,397        11,698          281,939        
Planning & Analysis 184,143        184,143        178,398        5,745            172,478        Planning & Analysis 184,143        184,143        178,398        5,745            172,478        
Compensated Absences 56,963          56,963          49,410          7,553            57,766          
Weather Modification 93,918          93,918          97,462          (3,544)           76,637          
Other General Fund Expenditures 1,153,756     1,153,756     1,014,974     138,782        1,713,614     
Community Based Organizations -                -                -                -                147,125        
Energy Efficiency Intiatives 10,400          10,400          6,888            3,512            4,118            
Staff Support for Boards 104,358        104,358        95,091          9,267            -                


       Total General Government 7,248,581     7,315,327     6,542,919     772,408        7,161,874     
Judicial:


Distric Attorney 251,665        251,665        251,665        -                251,665        
       Total Judicial 251,665        251,665        251,665        -                251,665        
Public Safety:


Detention Services 723,268        723,268        720,515        2,753            732,744        Detention Services 723,268        723,268        720,515        2,753            732,744        
Enforcement 621,492        621,492        607,358        14,134          568,035        
Operational Support 779,461        779,461        723,017        56,444          846,209        
Courtroom Security 4,829            4,829            11,103          (6,274)           39,989          
Investigations 150,220        150,220        147,393        2,827            114,773        
Major Incident Response 33,272          33,272          29,724          3,548            31,206          
Operational Support-Detention 159,208        159,208        136,931        22,277          134,500        
Emergency Management 146,233        204,345        191,120        13,225          130,561        
Coroner 80,938          90,980          90,207          773               67,775          
Youth Intervention Services 128,566        128,566        128,152        414               100,314        


       Total Public Safety 2,827,487     2,895,641     2,785,520     110,121        2,766,106     
Health and Welfare:


Victim Services 110,398        110,398        91,725          18,673          102,018        
Substance Abuse Prevention 136,334        149,221        143,799        5,422            148,517        
Program Support 37,377          37,377          37,648          (271)              33,955          
Senior Resources 154,096        154,096        158,316        (4,220)           179,893        
Multicultural Client Services -                -                -                -                103,047        
Child & Family Health 250,488        250,488        226,265        24,223          181,075        
Community Health Services 13,500          13,500          14,095          (595)              50                 
Family Planning 178,655        178,655        151,304        27,351          166,129        


       Total Health and Welfare 880,848        893,735        823,152        70,583          914,684        
Auxiliary Services:


Alternative Services 87,478          87,478          85,924          1,554            105,768        
Adult Programming 77,601          77,601          68,488          9,113            73,719          
Youth Development 104,043        104,043        99,107          4,936            89,850          
Veterans 5,314            5,314            4,338            976               4,284            Veterans 5,314            5,314            4,338            976               4,284            


       Total Auxiliary Services 274,436        274,436        257,857        16,579          273,621        
Culture and Recreation:


Fairgrounds Management 219,009        226,208        222,874        3,334            231,070        
Trails - Parks 23,450          57,323          52,500          4,823            125               
Landfill 7,476            7,476            300               7,176            7,510            
Historic Preservation 5,180            5,180            3,740            1,440            4,842            


       Total Culture and Recreation 255,115        296,187        279,414        16,773          243,547        
Public Works:


Weed Management 150,223        150,223        137,559        12,664          127,869        
       Total Public Works 150,223        150,223        137,559        12,664          127,869        
Debt Service:


Principal 4,118            166,423        168,375        (1,952)           4,965            Principal 4,118            166,423        168,375        (1,952)           4,965            
Interest 24,844          32,983          37,183          (4,200)           28,411          


       Total Debt Service 28,962          199,406        205,558        (6,152)           33,376          


       Total Expenditures 11,917,317   12,276,620   11,283,644   992,976        11,772,742   


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2011


Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


2012


Gunnison County, Colorado
Special Revenue Funds
Road and Bridge Fund


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances


2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Revenues:
  Taxes:


Specific ownership tax 113,138        113,138        130,400        17,262          122,158        
       Total Taxes 113,138        113,138        130,400        17,262          122,158        
  Intergovernmental:


Payment in lieu of taxes 500,000        500,000        558,242        58,242          541,744        


2012


Payment in lieu of taxes 500,000        500,000        558,242        58,242          541,744        
Local grants 1,000            1,000            242               (758)              6,223            
Federal grants 355,400        355,400        93,256          (262,144)       8,160            
State grants 418,980        418,980        166,116        (252,864)       144,770        
Highway users trust fund 2,000,000     2,000,000     2,574,442     574,442        2,560,572     
Forest service 395,000        395,000        475,820        80,820          554,012        
Mineral leasing 1,000,000     1,000,000     978,035        (21,965)         1,259,023     


       Total Intergovernmental 4,670,380     4,670,380     4,846,153     175,773        5,074,504     
  Charges for Services:


Municipalities 51,836          51,836          46,460          (5,376)           50,611          
Permits 3,200            3,200            15,641          12,441          10,573          Permits 3,200            3,200            15,641          12,441          10,573          
Other 4,065            4,065            1,067            (2,998)           15,314          


       Total Charges for Services 59,101          59,101          63,168          4,067            76,498          
  Other:


Fines and forfeitures 50                 50                 -                (50)                1,671            
Investment income 29,392          29,392          52,534          23,142          55,826          
Contributions 16,750          16,750          -                (16,750)         16,750          
Miscellaneous 65,300          65,300          90,883          25,583          73,610          


       Total Other Revenue 111,492        111,492        143,417        31,925          147,857        


       Total Revenues 4,954,111     4,954,111     5,183,138     229,027        5,421,017     


Expenditures:
Road construction 674,761 674,761 581,646 93,115          364,621
Bridges 411,245 411,245 207,815 203,430        114
Winter maintenance 885,508 885,508 653,940 231,568        715,024
Operational support 428,740 448,686 400,018 48,668          405,585
Trails and park 398,175 398,175 7,264 390,911        11,493
Municipalities 83,652 83,652 69,352 14,300          84,556
Road maintenance 2,761,512 2,761,512 3,056,353 (294,841)       2,852,172Road maintenance 2,761,512 2,761,512 3,056,353 (294,841)       2,852,172


Total Expenditures 5,643,593     5,663,539     4,976,388     687,151        4,433,565     


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (689,482)       (709,428)       206,750        916,178        987,452        


Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 216,876        216,876        216,876        -                203,313        
Transfers (out) (789,010)       (897,009)       (897,009)       -                (137,691)       


       Total Other Financing
         Sources (Uses) (572,134)       (680,133)       (680,133)       -                65,622                   Sources (Uses) (572,134)       (680,133)       (680,133)       -                65,622          


Net Change in Fund Balances (1,261,616)    (1,389,561)    (473,383)       916,178        1,053,074     


Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 5,188,944     4,135,870     


Fund Balances - End of Year 4,715,561     5,188,944     


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
E4







Gunnison County, Colorado
Special Revenue Funds
Human Services Fund


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Revenues:
 Taxes:


Property tax revenue 268,823        268,823        270,277        1,454            292,559        


2012


Property tax revenue 268,823        268,823        270,277        1,454            292,559        
Delinquent tax and interest 660               660               854               194               1,420            


 Intergovernmental:
EBT reimbursements 3,160,770     3,391,115     3,302,856     (88,259)         3,254,198     
Other 35,000          35,000          34,878          (122)              31,393          


 Other:
Contributions 2,140            2,140            3,222            1,082            5,151            
Miscellaneous 2,500            2,500            2,765            265               8,721            


       Total Revenues 3,469,893     3,700,238     3,614,852     (85,386)         3,593,442            Total Revenues 3,469,893     3,700,238     3,614,852     (85,386)         3,593,442     


Expenditures:
Youth and family prevention services 102,112        102,112        85,019          17,093          86,055
Self-sufficiency development 211,029        235,935        195,051        40,884          191,675
Program support 446,084        446,084        407,932        38,152          404,989
Children and family services 818,436        818,436        870,040        (51,604)         871,785
Child support enforcement 76,439          76,439          76,643          (204)              74,254
Public assistance 1,648,667     1,903,689     1,840,221     63,468          1,711,246


       Total Expenditures 3,302,767     3,582,695     3,474,906     107,789        3,340,004     


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
 Over Expenditures 167,126        117,543        139,946        22,403          253,438        


Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers (out) (147,885)       (147,885)       (115,125)       32,760          (165,881)       


       Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (147,885)       (147,885)       (115,125)       32,760          (165,881)              Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (147,885)       (147,885)       (115,125)       32,760          (165,881)       


Net Change in Fund Balances 19,241          (30,342)         24,821          55,163          87,557          


Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 467,740        380,183        


Fund Balances - End of Year 492,561        467,740        


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


Gunnison County, Colorado
Special Revenue Funds


Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances


Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Revenues:
 Taxes:


Sales tax 1,334,266     1,334,266     1,416,908     82,642          1,382,079     
 Intergovernmental:


2012


 Intergovernmental:
Federal grants 327,934        327,934        -                (327,934)       285,121        
State grants -                -                -                -                57,664          


Investment Income 1,700            1,700            5,869            4,169            6,956            


       Total Revenues 1,663,900     1,663,900     1,422,777     (241,123)       1,731,820     


Expenditures:
 General Government:


Sales tax 47,717          47,717          41,540          6,177            228,195
Energy efficiency initiatives 2,797            2,797            2,700            97                 450               Energy efficiency initiatives 2,797            2,797            2,700            97                 450               


 Debt Service:
Principal 395,000        395,000        143,165        251,835        472,718        
Interest 1,107,021     1,107,021     19,002          1,088,019     854,686        


       Total Expenditures 1,552,535     1,552,535     206,407        1,346,128     1,556,049     


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
  Expenditures 111,365        111,365        1,216,370     1,105,005     175,771        


Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 259,200        259,200        271,743        12,543          256,600        
Transfers (out) (368,178)       (354,657)       (642,040)       (287,383)       (679,054)       


       Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (108,978)       (95,457)         (370,297)       (274,840)       (422,454)       


Net Change in Fund Balances 2,387            15,908          846,073        830,165        (246,683)       


Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 1,015,345     1,262,028     


Fund Balances - End of Year 1,861,418     1,015,345     


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Gunnison County, Colorado
Capital Project Funds


Airport Construction Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual


2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Revenues:
 Intergovernmental:


Federal grants 769,429        769,429        792,643        23,214          1,681,792     


2012


State grants 558,261        708,261        518,336        (189,925)       364,908        
 Charges for Services:


Passenger facility charges 130,000        130,000        112,421        (17,579)         125,301        
 Investment Income 1,156            1,156            367               (789)              2,325            
       Total Revenues 1,458,846     1,608,846     1,423,767     (185,079)       2,174,326     


Expenditures:
 Public Works 1,462,361     1,629,028     1,383,560     245,468        2,539,450     
 Debt Service:


Principal 1,070,618     1,070,618     1,070,618     -                68,010          
Interest 46,505          46,505          40,825          5,680            16,614          


       Total Expenditures 2,579,484     2,746,151     2,495,003     251,148        2,624,074     


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
 Over Expenditures (1,120,638)    (1,137,305)    (1,071,236)    66,069          (449,748)       


Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers (out) -                110,000        110,000        -                -                
Sale of capital assets 35,000          35,000          -                (35,000)         -                
Debt proceeds 300,000        300,000        -                (300,000)       1,000,000     


       Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 335,000        445,000        110,000        (335,000)       1,000,000     


Net Change in Fund Balances (785,638)       (692,305)       (961,236)       (268,931)       550,252        


Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 659,889        109,637        


Fund Balances - End of Year (301,347)       659,889        


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
F1







(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


Gunnison County, Colorado
Capital Projects Funds


Capital Expenditures Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances


Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Revenues:
Intergovernmental:


Federal grants -                36,579          35,738          (841)              366,696        


2012


Federal grants -                36,579          35,738          (841)              366,696        
State grants -                18,237          18,237          -                668,818        


Investment Income 1,500            1,500            5,603            4,103            7,630            
Contributions -                -                7,102            7,102            6,100            
       Total Revenues 1,500            56,316          66,680          10,364          1,049,244     


Expenditures:
General Government:


Ohio City town hall -                -                -                -                323               Ohio City town hall -                -                -                -                323               
Multi-purpose heating system 218,000        218,000        202,275        15,725          -                
Other capital expenditures -                -                128               (128)              446               


 Public Safety:
Jail construction -                131,301        220,309        (89,008)         8,677,365     


 Culture and Recreation:
Fairgrounds restroom -                -                -                -                312,159        


 Public Works:
Public works facility construction -                33,471          85,201          (51,730)         4,513,342     Public works facility construction -                33,471          85,201          (51,730)         4,513,342     


 Judicial:
District attorney -                101,384        114,486        (13,102)         -                


       Total Expenditures 218,000        484,156        622,399        (138,243)       13,503,635   


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (216,500)       (427,840)       (555,719)       (127,879)       (12,454,391)  


Other Financing Sources (Uses):Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 218,000        402,252        329,859        (72,393)         (97,225)         
Transfers (out) -                (144,800)       (144,800)       -                -                


       Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 218,000        257,452        185,059        (72,393)         (97,225)         


Net Change in Fund Balances 1,500            (170,388)       (370,660)       (200,272)       (12,551,616)  


Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 2,701,837     15,253,453   Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 2,701,837     15,253,453   


Fund Balances - End of Year 2,331,177     2,701,837     


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Debt Service


Gunnison Total


Conservation Public Mosquito Land Sage Risk County Local Debt Non-major


Special Revenue


Gunnison County, Colorado


Non-major Governmental Funds


Combining Balance Sheet


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


Conservation Public Mosquito Land Sage Risk County Local Debt Non-major


Trust Health Control Preservation Grouse Management Housing Auth. Marketing Service Governmental


Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Administration District Fund Funds


Assets:


Cash and investments 184,166        11,704          17,060          309,768        155,527        446,119        111,347        264,494        -                    1,500,185     


Accounts receivable -                    31,122          -                    51,559          -                    2,361            10,771          194,983        -                    290,796        


Prepaid expenses -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    20,000          -                    -                    -                    20,000          


Due from other funds -                    22,025          1,067            -                    -                    1,489            -                    -                    -                    24,581          Due from other funds -                    22,025          1,067            -                    -                    1,489            -                    -                    -                    24,581          


       Total Assets 184,166        64,851          18,127          361,327        155,527        469,969        122,118        459,477        -                    1,835,562     


Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of Resources, 


  and Fund Balances:


  Liabilities:


Accounts payable (528)              4,969            -                    -                    -                    14,357          5,495            14,186          -                    38,479          


Unearned grant revenue -                    39,194          -                    -                    -                    -                    12,090          -                    -                    51,284          


Due to other funds 99,561          -                    -                    25,963          -                    -                    2,231            9,766            -                    137,521        Due to other funds 99,561          -                    -                    25,963          -                    -                    2,231            9,766            -                    137,521        


       Total Liabilities 99,033          44,163          -                    25,963          -                    14,357          19,816          23,952          -                    227,284        


  Fund Balances:


Non-spendable -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    20,000          -                    -                    -                    20,000          


Spendable:


Restricted 85,133          -                    -                    335,364        -                    -                    -                    435,525        -                    856,022        


Committed -                    20,688          18,127          -                    155,527        -                    -                    -                    -                    194,342        Committed -                    20,688          18,127          -                    155,527        -                    -                    -                    -                    194,342        


Assigned -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    435,612        102,302        -                    -                    537,914        


       Total Fund Balances 85,133          20,688          18,127          335,364        155,527        455,612        102,302        435,525        -                    1,608,278     


       Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of
          Resources, and Fund Balances 184,166        64,851          18,127          361,327        155,527        469,969        122,118        459,477        -                    1,835,562     


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Debt Service


Gunnison Total


Conservation Public Mosquito Land Sage Risk County Local Debt Non-major


Trust Health Control Preservation Grouse Management Housing Auth. Marketing Service Governmental


Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Administration District Fund Funds


Revenues:


Taxes -                17,515          54,006          309,360        -                -                -                1,093,649     -                1,474,530     


Intergovernmental 52,899          213,469        13,521          -                -                -                96,914          -                327,934        704,737        


Charges for services -                39,927          -                -                -                -                49,727          -                -                89,654          


Investment income 2,048            -                -                1,978            -                4,030            1,497            4,013            55                 13,621          


Contributions -                2,140            -                -                -                128,348        -                -                -                130,488        


Miscellaneous -                11,722          319               -                64,537          6,275            10,782          -                -                93,635          


       Total Revenues 54,947          284,773        67,846          311,338        64,537          138,653        158,920        1,097,662     327,989        2,506,665     


Expenditures:


General government -                -                -                -                47,753          74,967          -                1,200,700     -                1,323,420     


Health and welfare -                383,003        81,540          -                -                -                109,551        -                -                574,094        


Culture and recreation 529               -                -                289,932        -                -                -                -                -                290,461        


Debt service -                -                -                136,265        -                -                61,590          -                1,341,876     1,539,731     


       Total Expenditures 529               383,003        81,540          426,197        47,753          74,967          171,141        1,200,700     1,341,876     3,727,706     


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues


 Over Expenditures 54,418          (98,230)         (13,694)         (114,859)       16,784          63,686          (12,221)         (103,038)       (1,013,887)    (1,221,041)    


Other Financing Sources (Uses):


Transfers in -                125,343        13,521          -                -                -                146,475        -                1,013,887     1,299,226     


Transfers (out) (20,000)         (30,732)         (1,116)           -                (80,000)         -                (73,428)         (16,440)         -                (221,716)       


       Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (20,000)         94,611          12,405          -                (80,000)         -                73,047          (16,440)         1,013,887     1,077,510     


Net Change in Fund Balances 34,418          (3,619)           (1,289)           (114,859)       (63,216)         63,686          60,826          (119,478)       -                (143,531)       


Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 50,715          24,307          19,416          450,223        218,743        391,926        41,476          555,003        -                1,751,809     


Fund Balances - End of Year 85,133          20,688          18,127          335,364        155,527        455,612        102,302        435,525        -                1,608,278     


Gunnison County, Colorado


Non-major Governmental Funds


Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


Special Revenue 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.


F4







2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Revenues:
Lottery proceeds 40,000          40,000          52,899          12,899          48,444          
Earnings on investments 380               360               2,048            1,688            1,278            


       Total Revenues 40,380          40,360          54,947          14,587          49,722          


Expenditures:
Other 85                 85                 -                85                 -                
Treasurer's fees 400               700               529               171               485               


       Total Expenditures 485               785               529               256               485               


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
 Over Expenditures 39,895          39,575          54,418          14,843          49,237          


Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers (out) (20,000)         (20,000)         (20,000)         -                (79,030)         


       Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (20,000)         (20,000)         (20,000)         -                (79,030)         


Net Change in Fund Balances 19,895          19,575          34,418          14,843          (29,793)         


Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 50,715          80,508          


Fund Balances - End of Year 85,133          50,715          


2012


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


Gunnison County, Colorado
Special Revenue Funds


Conservation Trust Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances


Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


Gunnison County, Colorado
Special Revenue Funds


Public Health Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances


Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual


2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Revenues:
 Taxes:


Other taxes 4,000            9,000            17,515          8,515            14,102          


2012


Other taxes 4,000            9,000            17,515          8,515            14,102          
 Intergovernmental:


Federal grants -                -                -                -                30,366          
State grants 178,931        207,714        200,682        (7,032)           237,157        
Local grants 19,458          21,858          12,787          (9,071)           65,840          


 Charges for Services 32,800          32,800          39,927          7,127            43,393          
 Contributions -                1,000            2,140            1,140            600               
 Miscellaneous -                10,000          11,722          1,722            -                


       Total Revenues 235,189        282,372        284,773        2,401            391,458               Total Revenues 235,189        282,372        284,773        2,401            391,458        


Expenditures:
 Health and welfare:


Program support 133,925 138,614 138,929 (315)              142,655
Multicultural client services -                -                -                -                14,186
Child and family health 120,840 153,704 126,346 27,358          106,574
Community health services 112,748 120,516 117,728 2,788            222,726


       Total Expenditures 367,513        412,834        383,003        29,831          486,141               Total Expenditures 367,513        412,834        383,003        29,831          486,141        


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over Expenditures (132,324)       (130,462)       (98,230)         32,232          (94,683)         


Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 155,369        155,369        125,343        (30,026)         93,749          
Transfers (out) (30,732)         (30,732)         (30,732)         -                -                


       Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 124,637        124,637        94,611          (30,026)         93,749                 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 124,637        124,637        94,611          (30,026)         93,749          


Net Change in Fund Balances (7,687)           (5,825)           (3,619)           2,206            (934)              


Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 24,307          25,241          


Fund Balances - End of Year 20,688          24,307          


The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.
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2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Revenues:
 Taxes:


Property tax revenue 53,884          53,884          54,024          140               53,204          
Delinquent tax and interest -                -                (18)                (18)                (36)                


 Intergovernmental:
Local grants 13,521          13,521          13,521          -                13,538          


Miscellaneous 200               200               319               119               335               
       Total Revenues 67,605          67,605          67,846          241               67,041          


Expenditures:
Operations 79,910          81,420          81,540          (120)              80,161          


       Total Expenditures 79,910          81,420          81,540          (120)              80,161          


 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
 Over Expenditures (12,305)         (13,815)         (13,694)         121               (13,120)         


Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 13,521          13,521          13,521          -                13,538          
Transfers (out) (1,116)           (1,116)           (1,116)           -                (1,056)           


       Total Other Financing 
          Sources (Uses) 12,405          12,405          12,405          -                12,482          


Net Change in Fund Balances 100               (1,410)           (1,289)           121               (638)              


Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 19,416          20,054


Fund Balances - End of Year 18,127          19,416          


2012


Gunnison County, Colorado
Special Revenue Funds
Mosquito Control Fund


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Revenues:
 Taxes:


Sales tax 303,733        303,733        309,360        5,627            304,848        
 Intergovernmental:
 Investment Income 950               950               1,978            1,028            2,758            
       Total Revenues 304,683        304,683        311,338        6,655            307,606        


Expenditures:
 Culture and Recreation:


Land preservation 301,268        301,268        289,932        11,336          324,910
 Debt Service:


Principal payments 157,795        157,795        133,762        24,033          150,697        
Interest payments 7,432            7,432            2,503            4,929            14,530          


       Total Expenditures 466,495        466,495        426,197        40,298          490,137        


Net Change in Fund Balances (161,812)       (161,812)       (114,859)       46,953          (182,531)       


Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 450,223        632,754


Fund Balances - End of Year 335,364        450,223        


2012


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


Gunnison County, Colorado
Special Revenue Funds
Land Preservation Fund


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Gunnison County, Colorado
Special Revenue Funds


Sage Grouse Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances


Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Revenues:
 Miscellaneous -                -                64,537          64,537          54,768          


2012


 Miscellaneous -                -                64,537          64,537          54,768          
       Total Revenues -                -                64,537          64,537          54,768          


Expenditures:
  General government 2,500            62,500          47,753          14,747          2,544            


    Total Expenditures 2,500            62,500          47,753          14,747          2,544            


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
 Over Expenditures (2,500)           (62,500)         16,784          79,284          52,224           Over Expenditures (2,500)           (62,500)         16,784          79,284          52,224          


Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 56,142          56,142          -                (56,142)         -                
Transfers (out) (80,000)         (80,000)         (80,000)         -                (75,219)         


       Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (23,858)         (23,858)         (80,000)         (56,142)         (75,219)         


Net Change in Fund Balances (26,358)         (86,358)         (63,216)         23,142          (22,995)         


Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 218,743        241,738


Fund Balances - End of Year 155,527        218,743        


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Revenues:
 Investment Income 2,925            2,925            4,030            1,105            5,715            
 Contributions 134,096        134,096        128,348        (5,748)           159,527        
 Miscellaneous -                -                6,275            6,275            1,028            
    Total Revenues 137,021        137,021        138,653        1,632            166,270        


Expenditures:
 General Government:


CAPP Insurance Claims 50,000          50,000          32,312          17,688          61,585          
Other expenses 69,500          69,500          42,655          26,845          107,848        


    Total Expenditures 119,500        119,500        74,967          44,533          169,433        


Net Change in Fund Balances 17,521          17,521          63,686          46,165          (3,163)           


Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 391,926        395,089


Fund Balances - End of Year 455,612        391,926        


2012


(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


Gunnison County, Colorado
Special Revenue Funds
Risk Management Fund


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Gunnison County, Colorado
Special Revenue Funds


Gunnison County Housing Authority Administration
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Available Resources


Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Revenues:
 Intergovernmental:


2012


Federal grants 17,358          17,358          16,310          (1,048)           18,706          
Local grants 80,604          80,604          80,604          -                80,002          


 Charges for Services:
Fees 44,398          44,398          49,727          5,329            22,968          


 Investment Income -                -                1,497            1,497            462               
 Contributions -                -                -                -                500               
 Miscellaneous -                -                10,782          10,782          18,236          
       Total Revenues 142,360        142,360        158,920        16,560          140,874        


Expenditures:
 Health and Welfare 159,429        165,429        109,551        55,878          177,140        
 Debt Service:


Principal 87,900          54,031          57,836          (3,805)           91,547          
Interest 18,982          7,560            3,754            3,806            15,334          


       Total Expenditures 266,311        227,020        171,141        55,879          284,021        


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
 Over Expenditures (123,951)       (84,660)         (12,221)         72,439          (143,147)       


Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 195,899        150,608        146,475        (4,133)           253,407        
Transfers (out) (73,428)         (93,428)         (73,428)         20,000          (79,141)         


       Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 122,471        57,180          73,047          15,867          174,266        


Net Change in Fund Balances (1,480)           (27,480)         60,826          88,306          31,119          


Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 41,476          10,357          


Fund Balances - End of Year 102,302        41,476          


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Gunnison County, Colorado
Special Revenue Funds
Local Marketing District


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Revenues:
Marketing and promotion tax 969,000        969,000        1,093,649     124,649        1,009,984     


2012


Marketing and promotion tax 969,000        969,000        1,093,649     124,649        1,009,984     
Earnings on investments 1,150            1,150            4,013            2,863            4,449            


       Total Revenues 970,150        970,150        1,097,662     127,512        1,014,433     


Expenditures:
 General Government:


Contracted services 948,000        1,188,000     1,180,107     7,893            908,000        
Other 15,815          21,614          20,593          1,021            26,569          


       Total Expenditures 963,815        1,209,614     1,200,700     8,914            934,569        


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 6,335            (239,464)       (103,038)       136,426        79,864          


Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers (out) (16,440)         (16,440)         (16,440)         -                (19,216)         


       Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (16,440)         (16,440)         (16,440)         -                (19,216)         


Net Change in Fund Balances (10,105)         (255,904)       (119,478)       136,426        60,648          Net Change in Fund Balances (10,105)         (255,904)       (119,478)       136,426        60,648          


Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 555,003        494,355        


Fund Balances - End of Year 435,525        555,003        


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Revenues:
Federal grants -                -                327,934        327,934        -                
Earnings on investments -                -                55                 55                 -                


       Total Revenues -                -                327,989        327,989        -                


Expenditures:
 Debt Service:


Principal -                -                395,000        (395,000)       -                
Interest -                944,855        944,855        -                -                
Other debt service -                2,300            2,021            279               -                


       Total Expenditures -                947,155        1,341,876     (394,721)       -                


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures -                (947,155)       (1,013,887)    (66,732)         -                


Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in -                -                1,013,887     1,013,887     -                


       Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                -                1,013,887     1,013,887     -                


Net Change in Fund Balances -                (947,155)       -                947,155        -                


Fund Balances - Beginning of Year -                -                


Fund Balances - End of Year -                -                


(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


2012


Gunnison County, Colorado
Debt Service Funds
Debt Service Fund


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


Gunnison County, Colorado
Enterprise Funds


Airport Operations Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Available Resources


Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Operating Revenues:
Airport fees 331,627        331,627        300,548        (31,079)         384,740        
Terminal & hanger rent 435,527        435,527        431,760        (3,767)           428,956        


2012


Terminal & hanger rent 435,527        435,527        431,760        (3,767)           428,956        
Parking fees & fines 79,500          79,500          72,985          (6,515)           76,148          
Grants 37,700          37,700          52,506          14,806          43,503          
Other 300,900        300,900        279,321        (21,579)         343,357        


       Total Operating Revenues 1,185,254     1,185,254     1,137,120     (48,134)         1,276,704     


Operating Expenditures:
Administration 215,374        215,374        193,953        21,421          224,566        
Terminal operations 221,272        221,272        212,318        8,954            196,190        
Runway & grounds maintenance. 203,472        203,472        183,900        19,572          168,158        Runway & grounds maintenance. 203,472        203,472        183,900        19,572          168,158        
Snow removal 131,609        131,609        80,950          50,659          75,945          
Aircraft rescue 143,198        143,198        124,173        19,025          152,340        
Security 93,557          93,557          107,797        (14,240)         97,408          
Wildlife 35,532 35,532 37,786          (2,254)           39,069          
Capital outlay 260,000        260,000        290,742        (30,742)         90,510          


       Total Operating Expenditures 1,304,014     1,304,014     1,231,619     72,395          1,044,186     


Operating Income (Loss) (118,760)       (118,760)       (94,499)         24,261          232,518        


Non-operating Revenues (Expenditures):
Proceeds from sale of assets -                -                10,100          10,100          170               
Transfers (out) (82,164)         (192,164)       (192,164)       -                (97,000)         
Investment revenue 12,000          12,000          9,896            (2,104)           10,645          


       Total Non-operating Revenues
        (Expenditures) (70,164)         (180,164)       (172,168)       7,996            (86,185)         


Change in Net Position - Budget Basis (188,924)       (298,924)       (266,667)       32,257          146,333        


Available Resources - Beginning of Year 1,033,328     886,995        


Available Resources - End of Year 766,661        1,033,328     


Available resources at year-end is computed as follows:
Current assets 970,996        1,149,805     
Current liabilities (131,488)       (48,908)         
Accrued compensated absences (72,847)         (67,569)         Accrued compensated absences (72,847)         (67,569)         


766,661        1,033,328     


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive


2012


Gunnison County, Colorado
Enterprise Funds


Gunnison County Sewer Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Available Resources


Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Revenues:
  Dos Rios Division:


Tap fees 5,500            5,500            -                (5,500)           5,500            
User fees 157,750        157,750        157,118        (632)              156,759        
Late fees 2,000            2,000            2,195            195               3,094            
Other revenue -                -                2,345            2,345            9,092            


       Total Dos Rios Division 165,250        165,250        161,658        (3,592)           174,445        
  Somerset Division:


User fees 8,350            8,350            8,341            (9)                  8,341            
Late fees 100               100               151               51                 175               Late fees 100               100               151               51                 175               
Other revenue -                -                693               693               -                


       Total Somerset Division 8,450            8,450            9,185            735               8,516            
  Antelope Hills Division:


User fees 44,430          44,430          44,435          5                   44,435          
Late fees 400               400               495               95                 649               
Other revenue -                -                4,102            4,102            -                


       Total Antelope Hills Division 44,830          44,830          49,032          4,202            45,084          
  North Gunnison Division:


Tap fees 6,000            6,000            37,500          31,500          30,000          
User fees 226,400        226,400        223,867        (2,533)           214,867        
Late fees 1,500            1,500            1,193            (307)              3,893            
Other revenue -                -                72,339          72,339          172,518        Other revenue -                -                72,339          72,339          172,518        


       Total North Gunnison Division 233,900        233,900        334,899        100,999        421,278        
  Tomichi Division:


Tap fees -                -                -                -                35,500          
User fees 9,793            9,793            7,554            (2,239)           -                
Other revenue -                -                230               230               316               


       Total Tomichi Division 9,793            9,793            7,784            (2,009)           35,816          
       Total Revenues 462,223        462,223        562,558        100,335        685,139        


Expenditures:
  Dos Rios Division:


Operations 114,461        114,461        115,649        (1,188)           85,750          Operations 114,461        114,461        115,649        (1,188)           85,750          
Transfers to other funds 39,983          39,983          39,064          919               40,702          
Capital outlay 85,000          85,000          71,631          13,369          102,666        


       Total Dos Rios Division 239,444        239,444        226,344        13,100          229,118        
  Somerset Division:


Operations 5,974            5,974            7,615            (1,641)           2,850            
Transfers to other funds 1,300            1,300            1,270            30                 1,406            


       Total Somerset Division 7,274            7,274            8,885            (1,611)           4,256            
  Antelope Hills Division:


Operations 26,467          26,467          21,004          5,463            23,136          
Transfers to other funds 8,949            8,949            8,781            168               8,203            
Capital outlay -                -                -                -                6,762            Capital outlay -                -                -                -                6,762            


       Total Antelope Hills Division 35,416          35,416          29,785          5,631            38,101          
  North Gunnison Division:


Operations 77,118          77,118          87,475          (10,357)         104,271        
Transfers to other funds 24,244          24,244          23,756          488               22,038          
Capital outlay -                -                -                -                57,393          
Debt service 115,244        115,244        114,451        793               114,487        


       Total North Gunnison Division 216,606        216,606        225,682        (9,076)           298,189        
  Tomichi Division:


Operations 9,429            9,429            7,234            2,195            23,208          
Transfers to other funds 364               364               334               30                 -                


       Total Tomichi Division 9,793            9,793            7,568            2,225            23,208          
       Total Expenditures 508,533        508,533        498,264        10,269          592,872               Total Expenditures 508,533        508,533        498,264        10,269          592,872        


Change in Net Position - Budget Basis (46,310)         (46,310)         64,294          110,604        92,267          


Available Resources - Beginning of Year 824,097        731,830        


Available Resources - End of Year 888,391        824,097        


Available resources at year-end is computed as follows:
Current assets 982,837        1,022,172     
Current liabilities (133,055)       (235,006)       
Current portion of long-term obligations 38,609          36,931          


888,391        824,097        


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Gunnison County, Colorado
Enterprise Funds


Water Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Available Resources


Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Operating Revenues:
User fees 289,858        289,858        198,741        (91,117)         198,601        
Availability fees 8,120            8,120            7,445            (675)              7,600            


2012


Availability fees 8,120            8,120            7,445            (675)              7,600            
Contributions -                -                5,000            5,000            13,500          
Grants -                -                -                -                51,384          
Earnings on investments -                -                2,854            2,854            2,790            
Other 18,184          18,184          5,661            (12,523)         4,071            


       Total Operating Revenues 316,162        316,162        219,701        (96,461)         277,946        


Operating Expenditures:
  Dos Rios Division:


Operating expenses 126,307        126,307        118,488        7,819            105,685        Operating expenses 126,307        126,307        118,488        7,819            105,685        
  Somerset Division:


Debt service 8,024            8,024            7,952            72                 7,949            
  Antelope Hills Division:


Operating expenses 91,964          91,964          7,187            84,777          231               
Capital outlay 796,881        796,881        848,375        (51,494)         126,548        
Capital outlay 1,809,030     1,809,030     -                1,809,030     -                


  Utilities Administration:
Operating expenses 44,652          44,652          43,408          1,244            48,704          
Capital outlay -                -                -                -                163,767        Capital outlay -                -                -                -                163,767        


       Total Operating Expenditures 2,876,858     2,876,858     1,025,410     1,851,448     452,884        


Operating Income (Loss) (2,560,696)    (2,560,696)    (805,709)       1,754,987     (174,938)       


Non-operating Revenues (Expenditures):
Grant revenue 1,696,000     1,696,000     -                (1,696,000)    -                
Transfers in 24,956          24,956          23,321          (1,635)           21,717          
Transfers (out) (25,336)         (25,336)         (24,836)         500               (25,283)         
Debt proceeds 913,357        913,357        808,147        (105,210)       -                


       Total Non-operating Revenues
        (Expenditures) 2,608,977     2,608,977     806,632        (1,802,345)    (3,566)           


Change in Net Position - Budget Basis 48,281          48,281          923               (47,358)         (178,504)       


Available Resources - Beginning of Year 288,138        466,642        


Available Resources - End of Year 289,061        288,138        Available Resources - End of Year 289,061        288,138        


Available resources at year-end is computed as follows:
Current assets 396,948        307,320        
Current liabilities (906,609)       (9,610)           
Current portion of long-term obligations 812,931        4,556            
Accrued compensated absences (14,209)         (14,128)         


289,061        288,138        


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


Gunnison County, Colorado
Enterprise Funds


Landfill Operations Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Available Resources


Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Operating Revenues:
  Sage Grouse mitigation 56,142          56,142          -                (56,142)         54,768          


2012


  Sage Grouse mitigation 56,142          56,142          -                (56,142)         54,768          
  Landfill:


Disposal fees 629,478        629,478        670,566        41,088          548,653        
Other 29,102          29,102          36,308          7,206            28,764          


       Total Landfill Revenues 714,722        714,722        706,874        (7,848)           632,185        
  Recycling:


Recycled material sales 95,000          95,000          129,463        34,463          175,388        
       Total Recycling Revenues 95,000          95,000          129,463        34,463          175,388        


       Total Operating Revenues 809,722        809,722        836,337        26,615          807,573               Total Operating Revenues 809,722        809,722        836,337        26,615          807,573        


Operating Expenditures:
Closure and postclosure 5,136            5,136            -                5,136            -                
Operations and maintenance 1,044,961     1,244,961     593,378        651,583        525,961        
Capital outlay 70,000          70,000          145,018        (75,018)         3,221            


   Total Landfill Expenditures 1,120,097     1,320,097     738,396        581,701        529,182        
Recycling Expenditures:


Capital outlay -                -                85,959          (85,959)         15,000          
       Total Recycling Expenditures -                -                85,959          (85,959)         15,000                 Total Recycling Expenditures -                -                85,959          (85,959)         15,000          


       Total Operating Expenditures 1,120,097     1,320,097     824,355        495,742        544,182        


Operating Income (Loss) (310,375)       (510,375)       11,982          522,357        263,391        


Non-operating Revenues (Expenditures):
Transfers (out) (140,634)       (140,634)       (84,492)         56,142          (84,192)         
Investment revenue 30,000          30,000          27,450          (2,550)           30,815          


       Total Non-operating Revenues       Total Non-operating Revenues
        (Expenditures) (110,634)       (110,634)       (57,042)         53,592          (53,377)         


Change in Net Position - Budget Basis (421,009)       (621,009)       (45,060)         575,949        210,014        


Available Resources - Beginning of Year 2,831,560     2,621,546     


Available Resources - End of Year 2,786,500     2,831,560     


Available resources at year-end is computed as follows:
Current assets 2,859,869     2,874,927     
Current liabilities (46,886)         (23,084)         
Accrued compensated absences (26,483)         (20,283)         


2,786,500     2,831,560     


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


Gunnison County, Colorado


Enterprise Funds


Gunnison County Housing Authority - Assisted Living


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Available Resources


Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


2011


Final Budget


Variance


Original Final Positive


Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Operating Revenues:


  Palisade Assisted Living:


Donations and debt service reimbursements 36,488          36,488          36,821          333               36,817          


2012


Donations and debt service reimbursements 36,488          36,488          36,821          333               36,817          


       Total Operating Revenues 36,488          36,488          36,821          333               36,817          


Operating Expenditures:


Principal payments 16,426          16,426          17,532          (1,106)           16,876          


Interest payments 20,062          20,062          19,289          773               19,941          


       Total Operating Expenditures 36,488          36,488          36,821          (333)              36,817          


Change in Net Position - Budget Basis -                -                -                -                -                


Available Resources - Beginning of Year 3,051            3,051            


Available Resources - End of Year 3,051            3,051            


Available resources at year-end is computed as follows:


Current assets 3,051            3,051            Current assets 3,051            3,051            


Current liabilities (18,324)         (17,532)         


Current portion of long-term obligations 18,324          17,532          
3,051            3,051            


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Gunnison County, Colorado
Enterprise Funds


Gunnison County Housing Authority - Mountain View
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Available Resources


Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


2012


Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Operating Revenues:
  Mountain View Apartments:


Tenant payments 87,070          87,070          92,742          5,672            92,526          
Assistance payment 131,850        131,850        128,950        (2,900)           127,458        
Vacancies (2,500)           (2,500)           (1,484)           1,016            (3,901)           
Other revenue 4,900            4,900            4,398            (502)              5,211            


       Total Operating Revenues 221,320        221,320        224,606        3,286            221,294        


Operating Expenditures:
  Mountain View Apartments:


Operations 181,988        181,988        153,332        28,656          169,404        
Capital outlay 26,000          26,000          -                26,000          13,523          
Principal on debt 12,850          49,300          50,426          (1,126)           42,649          
Interest on debt 21,000          26,125          34,063          (7,938)           35,519          


       Total Operating Expenditures 241,838        283,413        237,821        45,592          261,095        


Operating Income (Loss) (20,518)         (62,093)         (13,215)         48,878          (39,801)         Operating Income (Loss) (20,518)         (62,093)         (13,215)         48,878          (39,801)         


Non-operating Revenues (Expenditures):
Sale of capital assets -                -                -                -                (600)              
Transfers (out) -                20,000          -                (20,000)         -                
Investment revenue 320               320               86                 (234)              247               


       Total Non-operating Revenues
        (Expenditures) 320               20,320          86                 (20,234)         (353)              


Change in Net Position - Budget Basis (20,198)         (41,773)         (13,129)         28,644          (40,154)         


Available Resources - Beginning of Year 180,367        220,521        


Available Resources - End of Year 167,238        180,367        


Available resources at year-end is computed as follows:Available resources at year-end is computed as follows:
Current assets 227,815        242,606        
Current liabilities (72,071)         (73,092)         
Current portion of long-term obligations 11,494          10,853          


167,238        180,367        


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Internal Internal Internal


Gunnison County, Colorado
Internal Service Funds


Combining Statement of Net Position
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


Internal Internal Internal
Service Service Service
Fund I Fund II Fund III Total


Current Assets:
Cash 1,054,818     565,706        1,195,170     2,815,694     
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for 
 uncollectible accounts, where applicable 686               4,931            140,539        146,156        
Prepaid expenses 815               57,340          -                58,155          Prepaid expenses 815               57,340          -                58,155          
Due from other funds 226,199        -                1,182            227,381        
Inventory, at cost 711,853        7,507            -                719,360        


Total Current Assets 1,994,371     635,484        1,336,891     3,966,746     


Non-current Assets:
Land, property and equipment 17,980,401   1,528,282     -                19,508,683   
Less: Accumulated depreciation (8,417,325)    (1,058,232)    -                (9,475,557)    


Total Non-current Assets 9,563,076     470,050        -                10,033,126   Total Non-current Assets 9,563,076     470,050        -                10,033,126   


Total Assets 11,557,447   1,105,534     1,336,891     13,999,872   


Liabilities:
  Current Liabilities:


Accounts payable 393,103        24,061          58,978          476,142        
Accrued liabilities -                -                161,219        161,219        
Due to other funds -                2,364            -                2,364            Due to other funds -                2,364            -                2,364            


Total Current Liabilities 393,103        26,425          220,197        639,725        


  Non-current Liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences 54,470          25,708          5,146            85,324          


Total Non-current Liabilities 54,470          25,708          5,146            85,324          


Total Liabilities 447,573        52,133          225,343        725,049        


Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 9,563,076     470,050        -                10,033,126   
Restricted 815               57,340          -                58,155          
Unrestricted 1,545,983     526,011        1,111,548     3,183,542     


Total Net Position 11,109,874   1,053,401     1,111,548     13,274,823   


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Internal Internal Internal
Service Service Service
Fund I Fund II Fund III Total


Operating Revenues:
Rent, net 1,783,330     -                -                1,783,330     
Charges and fees 8,552            9                   237,969        246,530        
Other 259,490        754,746        2,076,751     3,090,987     


       Total Operating Revenues 2,051,372     754,755        2,314,720     5,120,847     


Operating Expenses:
Operations and maintenance 1,582,373     451,696        2,171,568     4,205,637     
Administration 71,899          125,266        -                197,165        
Depreciation and amortization 652,929        290,422        -                943,351        


       Total Operating Expenses 2,307,201     867,384        2,171,568     5,346,153     


Operating Income (Loss) (255,829)       (112,629)       143,152        (225,306)       


Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment revenue -                -                10,483          10,483          
Interest expense (2,978)           -                -                (2,978)           


       Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) (2,978)           -                10,483          7,505            


Income (Loss) Before Transfers (258,807)       (112,629)       153,635        (217,801)       


Capital Contributions 85,201          -                -                85,201          
Transfers In 802,025        5,500            -                807,525        
Transfers (Out) (97,896)         (73,788)         (27,564)         (199,248)       


Change in Net Position 530,523        (180,917)       126,071        475,677        


Total Net Position - Beginning of Year 10,579,351   1,234,318     985,477        12,799,146   


Total Net Position - End of Year 11,109,874   1,053,401     1,111,548     13,274,823   


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


Gunnison County, Colorado
Internal Service Funds


Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Internal Internal Internal
Service Service Service
Fund I Fund II Fund III Total


Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from charges for services 2,044,682     752,202        2,042,030     4,838,914     
Cash received from other sources 8,552            9                   237,969        246,530        
Cash payments to vendors for goods and services (763,437)       (362,796)       (2,230,970)    (3,357,203)    
Cash payments to employees for services (427,810)       (238,202)       (12,942)         (678,954)       
       Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
        Activities 861,987        151,213        36,087          1,049,287     


Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities:
Transfers from (to) other funds, net 645,325        (59,237)         (28,420)         557,668        
       Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital
        Financing Activities 645,325        (59,237)         (28,420)         557,668        


Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing
Activities:
Capital contributions 85,201          -                -                85,201          
Interest paid on debt (2,978)           -                -                (2,978)           
Principal paid on loans and leases (158,082)       -                -                (158,082)       
Purchase of capital assets (922,012)       (90,122)         -                (1,012,134)    
Cash from sale of assets 76,717          -                -                76,717          
       Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and
        Related Financing Activities (921,154)       (90,122)         -                (1,011,276)    


Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Cash from investment income -                -                10,483          10,483          
       Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing
        Activities -                -                10,483          10,483          


Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 586,158        1,854            18,150          606,162        
Cash - Beginning of Year 468,660        563,852        1,177,020     2,209,532     
Cash - End of Year 1,054,818     565,706        1,195,170     2,815,694     


 Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
  Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:


Operating income (loss) (255,829)       (112,629)       143,152        (225,306)       
   Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)
    to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:


Depreciation and amortization 652,929        290,422        -                943,351        
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:


(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 1,862            (2,544)           (34,721)         (35,403)         
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (370)              (20,868)         -                (21,238)         
(Increase) decrease in inventory 167,192        7,414            -                174,606        
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 298,489        (11,533)         (86,700)         200,256        
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities (2,555)           -                14,757          12,202          
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 269               951               (401)              819               


       Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating 
        Activities 861,987        151,213        36,087          1,049,287     


Gunnison County, Colorado
Internal Service Funds


Combing Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


Gunnison County, Colorado
Internal Service Funds 
Internal Service Fund I


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Available Resources
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Operating Revenues:
Equipment rent 1,781,161     1,781,161     1,783,330     2,169            1,839,420     
Material and gravel sales 403,500        403,500        257,430        (146,070)       258,030        


2012


Material and gravel sales 403,500        403,500        257,430        (146,070)       258,030        
Other revenues 5,241            5,241            95,814          90,573          7,333            


       Total Operating Revenues 2,189,902     2,189,902     2,136,574     (53,328)         2,104,783     


Operating Expenditures:
Administration 273,149        273,149        218,648        54,501          234,625        
Fleet maintenance 1,061,528     1,111,528     1,218,389     (106,861)       1,127,943     
Materials 403,500        403,500        269,265        134,235        290,321        
Property and equipment purchases 694,226        1,248,602     866,871        381,731        279,325        Property and equipment purchases 694,226        1,248,602     866,871        381,731        279,325        
Equipment lease payments 166,368        166,368        164,172        2,196            164,246        


       Total Operating Expenditures 2,598,771     3,203,147     2,737,345     465,802        2,096,460     


Operating Income (Loss) (408,869)       (1,013,245)    (600,771)       412,474        8,323            


Non-operating Revenues (Expenditures):
Sale of capital assets 7,500            213,563        76,717          (136,846)       10,243          
Grant revenue -                -                -                -                28,204          
Transfers in 694,026        802,025        802,025        -                316,750        Transfers in 694,026        802,025        802,025        -                316,750        
Transfers (out) (97,896)         (97,896)         (97,896)         -                (84,893)         


       Total Non-operating Revenues
        (Expenditures) 603,630        917,692        780,846        (136,846)       270,304        


Change in Net Position - Budget Basis 194,761        (95,553)         180,075        275,628        278,627        


Available Resources - Beginning of Year 1,366,723 1,088,096     
.


Available Resources - End of Year 1,546,798     1,366,723     Available Resources - End of Year 1,546,798     1,366,723     


Available resources at year-end is computed as follows:
Current assets 1,994,371     1,518,093     
Current liabilities (393,103)       (255,251)       
Current portion of long-term obligations -                158,082        
Accrued compensated absences (54,470)         (54,201)         


1,546,798     1,366,723     


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Gunnison County, Colorado
Internal Service Funds
Internal Service Fund II


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Available Resources
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Operating Revenues:
Data processing 394,856        394,856        396,565        1,709            391,102        
Mapping 190,483        190,483        190,708        225               195,795        


2012


Telephone system 73,008          73,008          74,660          1,652            74,040          
Photocopy and postage 64,991          64,991          92,008          27,017          66,572          
Other 2,000            2,000            814               (1,186)           2,541            


       Total Operating Revenues 725,338        725,338        754,755        29,417          730,050        


Operating Expenditures:
  Data Processing:


Operations 344,157        344,157        152,405        191,752        197,278        
Capital outlay -                -                -                -                350               


  GIS Mapping:  GIS Mapping:
Operations 184,563        184,563        137,378        47,185          154,150        
Capital outlay -                -                30,192          (30,192)         4,546            


  Telephone System:
Operations 38,807          38,807          31,001          7,806            41,393          
Capital outlay -                -                59,930          (59,930)         93,671          


  Photocopy and Postage:
Operations 64,496          64,496          80,577          (16,081)         62,319          


  Help Desk:
Operations 159,711        159,711        160,469        (758)              113,870        Operations 159,711        159,711        160,469        (758)              113,870        


  IT Infrastructure:
Operations 1,150            1,150            8,859            (7,709)           11,598          


  Systems Development:
Operations -                -                -                -                7,454            


  IT Training:
Operations 14,275          14,275          6,274            8,001            16,303          


       Total Operating Expenditures 807,159        807,159        667,085        140,074        702,932        


Operating Income (Loss) (81,821)         (81,821)         87,670          169,491        27,118          Operating Income (Loss) (81,821)         (81,821)         87,670          169,491        27,118          


Non-operating Revenues (Expenditures):
Transfers in 5,500            5,500            5,500            -                133,200        
Transfers (out) (73,788)         (73,788)         (73,788)         -                (62,924)         


       Total Non-operating Revenues
        (Expenditures) (68,288)         (68,288)         (68,288)         -                70,276          


Change in Net Position - Budget Basis (150,109)       (150,109)       19,382          169,491        97,394          


Available Resources - Beginning of Year 563,969 466,575        


Available Resources - End of Year 583,351        563,969        


Available resources at year-end is computed as follows:
Current assets 635,484        624,319        
Current liabilities (26,425)         (35,593)         
Accrued compensated absences (25,708)         (24,757)         Accrued compensated absences (25,708)         (24,757)         


583,351        563,969        


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2011)


Gunnison County, Colorado
Internal Service Funds


Internal Service Fund III
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Available Resources


Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual


2011
Final Budget


Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual


Operating Revenues:


2012


Operating Revenues:
Premium contributions 2,504,882     2,504,882     2,309,763     (195,119)       2,437,509     
Miscellaneous -                -                4,957            4,957            9,987            


       Total Operating Revenues 2,504,882     2,504,882     2,314,720     (190,162)       2,447,496     


Operating Expenditures:
Operations 2,494,245     2,494,245     2,171,568     322,677        2,665,496     


       Total Operating Expenditures 2,494,245     2,494,245     2,171,568     322,677        2,665,496     


Operating Income (Loss) 10,637          10,637          143,152        132,515        (218,000)       Operating Income (Loss) 10,637          10,637          143,152        132,515        (218,000)       


Non-operating Revenues (Expenditures):
Transfers (out) (27,564)         (27,564)         (27,564)         -                (26,021)         
Investment revenue 20,000          20,000          10,483          (9,517)           12,249          


       Total Non-operating Revenues
        (Expenditures) (7,564)           (7,564)           (17,081)         (9,517)           (13,772)         


Change in Net Position - Budget Basis 3,073            3,073            126,071        122,998        (231,772)       


Available Resources - Beginning of Year 985,477 1,217,249     


Available Resources - End of Year 1,111,548     985,477        


Available resources at year-end is computed as follows:
Current assets 1,336,891     1,283,164     
Current liabilities (220,197)       (292,140)       
Accrued compensated absences (5,146)           (5,547)           Accrued compensated absences (5,146)           (5,547)           


1,111,548     985,477        


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


Gunnison County, Colorado
Agency Funds


County Treasurer Agency Fund
Schedule of Changes in Assets and Liabilities


Balance Balance
Beginning End


                                                        of Year Additions Deletions of Year


Assets:


Cash 24,261,324 25,486,545      Cash 24,261,324 25,486,545      
} -                } 160,021        {


Less: Cash held for County funds (23,404,670) (24,469,870)     


       Total Assets 856,654       -                160,021        1,016,675        


Liabilities:


Due to other governments and agencies 856,654       -                160,021        1,016,675        Due to other governments and agencies 856,654       -                160,021        1,016,675        


     Total Liabilities 856,654       -                160,021        1,016,675        


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


Gunnison County, Colorado
Agency Funds


Public Trustee Agency Fund
Schedule of Changes in Assets and Liabilities


Balance Balance
Beginning End


                                                        of Year Additions Deletions of Year


Assets:


Cash 125,834 147,887 (180,726) 92,995  


       Total Assets 125,834     147,887 (180,726) 92,995  


Liabilities:


Due to governmental funds 25,322       413        -         25,735  
Held by Trustee 100,512 147,474 (180,726) 67,260  Held by Trustee 100,512 147,474 (180,726) 67,260  


       Total Liabilities 125,834     147,887 (180,726) 92,995  


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ANNUAL SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
FOR ROADS, BRIDGES AND STREETS







Financial Planning 02/01


The public report burden for this information collection is estimated to average 380 hours annually.  Form # 350-050-36


City or County:
Gunnison County
YEAR ENDING :
December 2012


This Information From The Records Of (example - City of _ or County of _):Prepared By: Linda Nienhueser
County of Gunnison Phone:  (970)641-7622


A.     Local         B.       Local           C.  Receipts from    D.  Receipts from  
Motor-Fuel Motor-Vehicle State Highway- Federal Highway


Taxes Taxes User Taxes Administration
1.  Total receipts available
2.  Minus amount used for collection expenses
3.  Minus amount used for nonhighway purposes
4.  Minus amount used for mass transit
5.  Remainder used for highway purposes 


AMOUNT AMOUNT
A.  Receipts from local sources: A.  Local highway disbursements:
     1.  Local highway-user taxes      1.  Capital outlay (from page 2) 804,906
          a.  Motor Fuel  (from Item I.A.5.)      2.  Maintenance: 3,166,008
          b.  Motor Vehicle (from Item I.B.5.)      3.  Road and street services:
          c.  Total (a.+b.)           a.  Traffic control operations
     2.  General fund appropriations           b.  Snow and ice removal 667,602
     3.  Other local imposts (from page 2) 177,101           c.  Other
     4.  Miscellaneous local receipts (from page 2) 380,522           d.  Total  (a. through c.) 667,602
     5.  Transfers from toll facilities      4.  General administration & miscellaneous 1,288,846
     6.  Proceeds of sale of bonds and notes:      5.  Highway law enforcement and safety
          a.  Bonds - Original Issues      6.  Total  (1 through 5) 5,927,362
          b.  Bonds - Refunding Issues B.  Debt service on local obligations:
          c.  Notes      1.  Bonds:
          d.  Total (a. + b. + c.) 0           a.  Interest
     7.  Total (1 through 6) 557,623           b.  Redemption
B.  Private Contributions           c.  Total (a. + b.) 0
C.  Receipts from State government      2.  Notes:
       (from page 2) 2,740,558           a.  Interest
D.  Receipts from Federal Government           b.  Redemption
       (from page 2) 2,077,149           c.  Total (a. + b.) 0
E.  Total receipts (A.7 + B + C + D) 5,375,330      3.  Total  (1.c + 2.c) 0


C.  Payments to State for highways
D.  Payments to toll facilities
E.  Total disbursements (A.6 + B.3 + C + D) 5,927,362


Opening Debt Amount Issued Redemptions Closing Debt
A.  Bonds (Total) 0
        1.  Bonds (Refunding Portion)
B.  Notes (Total) 0


A. Beginning Balance B. Total Receipts C. Total Disbursements D. Ending Balance E. Reconciliation
5,267,592 5,375,330 5,927,362 4,715,561 0


Notes and Comments:


FORM FHWA-536 (Rev. 1-05)           PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE (Next Page)
1


  AND STREET PURPOSES


LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT


I.  DISPOSITION OF HIGHWAY-USER REVENUES AVAILABLE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURE


ITEM


III.  DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD


V.  LOCAL ROAD AND STREET FUND BALANCE


ITEM


II.  RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES


IV.   LOCAL HIGHWAY DEBT STATUS
(Show all entries at par)


ITEM


{763A6D4D-20D5-471E-A674-4246F2DB27F8}







STATE:
Colorado
YEAR ENDING (mm/yy):
December 2012


AMOUNT AMOUNT
A.3.  Other local imposts: A.4.  Miscellaneous local receipts:
    a.  Property Taxes and Assessments           a.  Interest on investments 52,534
    b.  Other local imposts:           b.  Traffic Fines & Penalities
        1.  Sales Taxes           c. Parking Garage Fees
        2.  Infrastructure & Impact Fees           d.  Parking Meter Fees
        3.  Liens           e.  Sale of Surplus Property
        4. Licenses           f.  Charges for Services 15,086
        5. Specific Ownership &/or Other 177,101           g.  Other Misc. Receipts 312,901
        6.  Total (1. through 5.) 177,101           h.  Other
    c.  Total (a. + b.) 177,101           i.  Total (a. through h.) 380,522


(Carry forward to page 1) (Carry forward to page 1) 


AMOUNT AMOUNT
C.   Receipts from State Government D.  Receipts from Federal Government
    1.  Highway-user taxes 2,574,442     1.  FHWA (from Item I.D.5.)
    2.  State general funds     2.  Other Federal agencies:
    3.  Other State funds:         a.  Forest Service 517,516
        a.  State bond proceeds         b.  FEMA
        b.  Project Match         c.  HUD
        c.  Motor Vehicle Registrations 46,513         d.  Federal Transit Admin
        d. Other  (Specify) - DOLA Grant 117,506         e.  U.S. Corps of Engineers
        e.  Other (Specify) DOT 2,096         f.  Other Federal 1,559,633
         f.  Total (a. through e.) 166,116         g.  Total (a. through f.) 2,077,149
   4.  Total (1. + 2. + 3.f) 2,740,558     3.  Total (1. + 2.g)


(Carry forward to page 1) 


ON NATIONAL OFF NATIONAL
HIGHWAY HIGHWAY TOTAL
SYSTEM SYSTEM


(a) (b) (c)
A.1.  Capital outlay:
          a.  Right-Of-Way Costs 26,539 26,539
          b.  Engineering Costs 18,533 18,533
          c.  Construction:
               (1). New Facilities 0
               (2).  Capacity Improvements 305,183 305,183
               (3).  System Preservation 201,237 201,237
               (4).  System Enhancement & Operation 253,414 253,414
               (5).  Total Construction  (1) + (2) + (3) + (4) 0 759,834 759,834
         d.  Total Capital Outlay (Lines 1.a. + 1.b. + 1.c.5) 0 804,906 804,906


(Carry forward to page 1) 


Notes and Comments:


FORM FHWA-536 (Rev.1-05)           PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE
2


III.  DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL


II.  RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL


LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT


ITEM ITEM


ITEM ITEM
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 


ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL AUDITING STANDARDS


Independent Auditor’s Report


To the Board of County Commissioners
Gunnison County, Colorado


We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of  Gunnison County (the “County”) as of and for the 
year ended December 31, 2012, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the County’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated July 31, 2013.  


Internal Control Over Financial Reporting


In planning and performing our audit on the financial statements, we considered the County’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.  Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.


A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the County’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
that a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.


Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  







To the Board of County Commissioners
Gunnison County


G2


Compliance and Other Matters


As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.


Purpose of this Report


The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Governmental Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control and compliance.  
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.


McMahan and Associates, L.L.C.
Avon, Colorado
July 31, 2013
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; ON COMPLIANCE WITH 
THE PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 


COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE 
AUDIT GUIDE FOR PUBLIC AGENCIES


Independent Auditor’s Report


To the Board of County Commissioners
Gunnison County, Colorado


Report on Compliance for Each Major Program


We have audited the Gunnison County’s (the “County”) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of the County’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2012
and its compliance with the compliance requirements described in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit 
Guide for Public Agencies (the “Guide”), issued by the Federal Aviation Administration, for it passenger 
facility charge program for the year ended December 31, 2012.  The County’s major federal programs are 
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs.  


Management’s Responsibility


Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs and to the passenger facility charge program.


Auditor’s Responsibility


Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County’s major federal programs 
and to the passenger facility charge program based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above,  We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB 
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the Guide.  
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program and on the passenger 
facility charge program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances.  


We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program and on the passenger facility charge program.  However, our audit does not provide a 
legal determination on the County’s compliance with those requirements.







To the Board of County Commissioners
Gunnison County
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program and Passenger Facility Charge Program


In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs and 
on passenger facility charge program for the year ended December 31, 2012.  


Report on Internal Control Over Compliance


Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our 
audit, we considered the County’s internal control over compliance with types of requirements that could 
have a direct and material effect on each major federal program and on the passenger facility charge 
program  to determine our auditing procedures  that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and passenger facility charge 
program  and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-
133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance.  Accordingly, we do no express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal 
control over compliance.


A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program or passenger facility charge program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program or passenger facility charge program will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance 
is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program or passenger facility program that is less severe than a 
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charges with governance.


Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to indentify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.


The purpose of this report in internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB 
Circular A-133 and the Guide.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.


McMahan and Associates, L.L.C.
Avon, Colorado
July 31, 2013







Gunnison County, Colorado 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
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Part I: Summary of Auditor’s Results


Financial Statements


Type of auditor’s report issued Unqualified


Internal control over financial reporting:


  Material weakness identified None noted


  Significant deficiency identified None reported


  Noncompliance material to financial
    statements noted None noted


Federal Awards


Internal control over major programs:


  Material weakness identified None noted


  Significant deficiency identified None reported


  Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance 
    for major programs Unqualified


  Any audit findings disclosed that are required
    to be reported in accordance with section
      510(a) of Circular A-133 None noted


  Major program – Capitalization Grants for
  Airport Improvement Projects (total) CFDA# 20.106


Emergency Management Performance Grant CFDA# 97.042
Insured Loan Program CFDA# 14.135
Lower Income Housing Assistance Program CFDA# 14.871


  Dollar threshold used to identify Type A
    from Type B programs $300,000


  Identified as low-risk auditee Yes


Part II: Findings Related to Financial Statements


Findings related to financial statements as
  required by Government Auditing Standards None noted
Auditor-assigned reference number Not applicable


Part III: Findings Related to Federal Awards


Internal control findings None noted
Compliance findings None noted
Questioned costs None noted
Auditor-assigned reference number Not applicable
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Note:  There were no findings for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011.







Federal
CFDA Major


Program Title Number Program Expenditures


Department of Agriculture:
   Passed through Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment:
      Women, Infant, Children 10.557 No 68,241         
      Women, Infant, Children Breast Feeding Peer Counselor 10.557 No 12,159         
      Women, Infant, Children (non-cash vouchers) 10.557 No 147,478       
   Passed through Colorado Department of Human Services:
      Food Assistance-Administration 10.561 No 89,587         
Total Department of Agriculture: 317,465       


Department of Health and Human Services:
Drug-Free Communities Support Program 93.276 No 124,901       
   Passed through Colorado Department of Human Services:
      TANF CO Works 93.558 No 204,466       
      Title IV-D - Administration 93.563 No 113,785       
      Low-income Home Energy Assistance 93.568 No 132,141       
      CCDF Discretionary 93.596 No 77,573         
      CCDF 93.575 No 58,783         
      Child Welfare Services IVB 93.645 No 4,768           
      Foster Care-Title IV-E 93.658 No 151,958       
      Adoption 93.659 No 33,797         
      Social Services Block Grant 93.667 No 91,760         
      Independent Living 93.674 No 1,718           
      Promoting Safe and Stable Families (PSSF) 93.556 No (22,155)        
      TANF ARRA 93.714 No 1,117           
      Medicaid Assistance Program 93.778 No 49,909         
      Adjustments to Costs 93.000 No (499)             
   Passed through Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment:
      CORE (BT) 93.069 No 19,898         
      Family Planning 93.217 No 49,656         
      Immunizations 93.268 No 4,312           
      CWCCI/WWC 93.283 No 6,747           
      Nurturing parent 93.590 No 16,074         
      Sexually Transmitted Diseases 93.977 No 4,095           
      Public Health Nurse - Maternal and Child Health Service 93.994 No 5,211           
      Health Assmt & Plan (OPP) 93.991 No 10,000         
   Passed through Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment through Region 10 Area for Aging:
      Special Program for the Aging 93.044 No 21,096         
   Passed through Colorado Department of Local Affairs through Delta County:
      Medicaid Assistance Program 93.778 No 44,536         
   Passed through Colorado Department of State:
     Voting Access for Individuals with Disabilities - Grants to States 93.617 No 18,462         
Total Department of Health and Human Services: 1,224,109    


Department of Transportation: 
   Federal Aviation Administration:
    Airport Improvement Projects  (total) 20.106 Yes 792,643       


792,643       


Subtotal 2,334,217    
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Federal
CFDA Major


Program Title Number Program Expenditures


Department of Homeland Security:
   Passed through Colorado Department of Local Affairs
      Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 Yes 106,342       
      Emergency Operations Center 97.052 No 35,738         
Total Department of Homeland Security: 142,080       


Department of Justice:
Title V Delinquency Prevention Program 16.548 No 6,302           


   Victims of Crime Act, Crime Victim Assistance Program 16.575 No 43,768         
   Juvenile Accountability 16.523 No 35,150         
   Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 No 31,196         
   Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies and Enforcement of Protection Orders Program 16.590 No 12,911         
   State Criminal Alien Assistance Program 16.606 No 12,242         
Total Department of Justice: 141,569       


Department of Housing and Urban Development:
   Passed through Colorado Department of Local Affairs - Division of Housing:
      Section 8 Housing Assistance Payment Program 14.195 No 226,603       
   Passed through Colorado Department Housing and Finance Authority:
      Insured Loan Program 14.135 Yes 785,638       
      Lower Income Housing Assistance Program 14.871 Yes 128,950       
Total Department of Housing and Urban Development: 1,141,191    


Total Federal Assistance: 3,759,057    


Note 1.  Basis of Presentation:
The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of Gunnison County and is presented on


  the modified accrual basis of accounting.  The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements
   of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Therefore, some amounts
  presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in or used in the preparation of the general purpose financial 
  statements.


Note 2.  Determining the Name of Non-cash Awards Expended :
Fair market value of assistance at the time of disbursement to the recipient, or the assessed value provided by the state or
federal agency.


Note 3. Pass Through Sub recipients:
The County had no sub recipients as of December 31, 2012.
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Amounts for Unliquidated
Program Title Current Year Balance


Gunnison County, Colorado
Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges Collected and Expended


For the Year Ended December 31, 2012


Program Title Current Year Balance


Unliquidated PFC revenues, beginning of year -$            


Revenues:
    Revenues collected from air carriers 112,421
    Interest Earned -                      


Total PFC Revenues 112,421          112,421       Total PFC Revenues 112,421          112,421       


Project Expenditures:
     Construction           (112,421)


Total PFC project expenditures (112,421)         (112,421)     


Unliquidated PFC revenues, end of year -$            


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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